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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 06 NOVEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Ms Hofmeyr,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes we are .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Good morn ing  Ms Myen i .  

MS MYENI :   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  we s tar t  I  am jus t  go ing  to  repeat  

someth ing  tha t  I  sa id  yesterday Ms Myen i  namely  t ha t  the  10 

commiss ion  g ives  you an oppor tun i ty  to  dea l  w i th  a l l  

ev idence tha t  o r  a l legat ions tha t  may have been  made  

aga ins t  you or  your  board  in  the  commiss ion  so  as  to  

ensure  tha t  I  have befo re  me when I  p repare  the  repor t s  

your  ve rs ion  as  we l l  no t  jus t  what  they have to  say aga ins t  

you but  a lso  your  vers ion  and your  perspect ives .  

 The commiss ion  a lso  g ives  you  the  p la t fo rm in  

respond ing  to  quest ions tha t  a re  be ing  asked to  –  to  in fo rm 

the  pub l i c  o f  you r  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  in  re la t ion  to  whatever  

may have been sa id  to  –  aga ins t  you –  about  you by  20 

w i tnesses who have come to  the  commiss ion .  

 But  the  commiss ion  recogn ises tha t  you have a  

pr iv i lege not  to  incr im inate  yourse l f  and where  you invoke 

tha t  p r iv i lege and there  are  reasonab le  g rounds  fo r  i t s  

invocat ion  the  commiss ion  w i l l  no t  compel  you to  answer  
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the  quest ions.   

 But  a lso  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  impor tan t  tha t  when a  

quest ion  has been asked you make up your  m ind whethe r  

you are  go ing  to  invoke the  p r iv i lege not  to  answer  the  

quest ion  and on  the  bas i s  tha t  answer ing  the  quest ion  

m ight  lead to  you  incr im inat ing  yourse l f  o r  whethe r  you are  

go ing  to  answer  the  quest ion .  

 You cannot  have  i t  bo th  ways.   You cannot  g ive  

some answer  and then la te r  say  no  I  am invok ing  the  

pr iv i lege.  10 

 So where  you are  go ing  to  answer  you answer  bu t  

where  you invoke  the  pr i v i lege you  invoke i t  and tha t  i s  i t .   

I f  a t  some s tage I  m ight  seek to  enqu i re  whether  there  are  

reasonab le  g rounds to  invoke i t  and as  I  sa id  two days ago 

there  may be cases where  I  compe l  you to  answer  bu t  I  w i l l  

no t  do  so  un less  I  th ink  tha t  the  –  there  are  no  proper  

g rounds to  invoke  the  pr iv i lege.    

 So I  jus t  wanted to  remind you aga in  na tura l l y  

because as  th ings present ly  s tand  th is  i s  the  las t  day when  

you are  appear ing  to  say i t  i s  an  oppor tun i ty  you have to  20 

respond to  ques t ions and dea l  w i th  whatever  d i f fe ren t  

w i tnesses may have sa id  about  you or  your  board  bu t  

where  you choose to  no t  to  answer  on  the  bas i s  o f  invok ing  

the  pr i v i lege then tha t  w i l l  be  respected i f  there  are  

reasonab le  grounds fo r  invok ing  i t .  
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 Bu t  i t  i s  an  oppor tun i ty  tha t  you dec ide  whethe r  to  

use or  no t .  But  as  I  sa id  a lso  yesterday when I  p repare  the  

repor t  and I  have to  make f ind ings i t  i s  no t  as  i f  jus t  

because you –  you invoked the  pr iv i lege I  canno t  make 

f ind ings.   A l l  i t  wou ld  mean is  s imp ly  tha t  the  ev idence I  

have on wh ich  I  can make f ind ings wou ld  be  o f  those 

w i tnesses who have g i ven ev idence and some o f  them may 

have g i ven ev idence aga ins t  you and i f  I  do  no t  have your  

vers ion  I  make f ind ings based on ly  on  the  vers ions  I  have.  

 So I  thought  tha t  I  must  jus t  exp la in  tha t  once aga in  10 

but  where  you  invoke your  p r iv i lege and there  are  

reasonab le  grounds or  we have no –  we have no grounds  

to  th ink  there  are  no  grounds  to  do  so  tha t  w i l l  be  

respected.  

MS MYENI :   Thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t  thank you.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the  –  the  oa th  you took two days ago 

w i l l  con t inue to  app ly  Ms Myen i .   Okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  am jus t  wor r i ed .   Ms Myen i  I  have –  you  20 

seemed to  speak  there  and we cou ld  no t  hear  you.   Cou ld  

you say someth ing  aga in  jus t  so  we can check tha t  you are  

aud ib le?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Say Cha i rperson .  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Ah  exce l len t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay i t  i s  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Ms Myen i  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

beg in  th is  morn ing  by  focuss ing  on  BOSASA.   We looked 

yesterday in  the  conc lud ing  par t  o f  the  day a t  Mh la tuze and  

the  a l legat ions tha t  have been made aga ins t  you there  in  

re la t ion  to  Mr  X ’s  ev idence.  And now I  wou ld  l i ke  t o  spend 

some t ime focuss ing  on  the  ev idence re la ted  to  BOSASA.  10 

 Ms Myen i  how we l l  d id  you know Mr  Watson?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And Ms Myen i  how we l l  d id  you know Mr  

Agr izz i?  

MS MYENI :   May  I  Cha i r  –  may I  p lease Cha i rperson not  

respond to  the  quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Had you ever  me t  w i th  h im? 

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  no t  20 

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr  Agr i zz i  gave ev idence abou t  a very  

par t i cu la r  meet ing  tha t  he  a l leges  he had w i th  you  a t  the  

Shera ton  Hote l  on  the  23  September  2015.   Can you 

conf i rm whethe r  you were  a t  tha t  meet ing?  
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MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  no t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And there  is  another  meet ing  tha t  you are  

a l leged to  have he ld  w i th  h im a t  the  In te rcont inenta l  Hote l  

a t  the  a i rpor t  about  two months la te r  in  2015.   D id  you 

a t tend tha t  meet ing?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  no t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  Mr  Agr izz i  tes t i f ied  be fore  th is  

commiss ion  about  your  invo lvement  in  ser ious  ac ts  o f  10 

cor rup t ion  on  h i s  vers ion  and you  in  fac t  responded to  h is  

ev idence in  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  you prepared in  March o f  

2019.   I t  i s  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  we looked a t  b r ie f l y  yes terday.   

So what  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  do  in  the  course  o f  th is  morn ing  i s  

take  you to  aspects  o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  and g ive  you an 

oppor tun i ty  i f  you  need to  c la r i f y  o r  co r rec t  anyth ing  in  tha t  

a f f idav i t  as  we go th rough the  va r ious a l legat ions tha t  Mr  

Agr izz i  and o the rs  have made aga ins t  you in  connect ion  

w i th  BOSASA.  

 So I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  summar ise  the  nub o f  Mr  20 

Agr izz i ’s  a l legat ions i f  I  may and then what  I  w i l l  do  is  I  w i l l  

unpack each o f  them wi th  you.  

 Ms Myen i  Mr  Agr izz i  tes t i f ied  be fore  th is  

commiss ion  tha t  BOSASA had pa id  you money and o the r  

benef i t s  as  a  b r ibe  and one o f  those o ther  benef i t s  was an 
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e labora te  secur i t y  ins ta l la t ion  done a t  your  home.   So I  am 

go ing  to  ca l l  tha t  the  so r t  o f  genera l  b r ibe  a l legat ion .    

 The second a l legat ion  was tha t  BOSASA gave you  

money in  o rde r  fo r  you to  hand i t  over  to  fo rmer  P res ident  

Zuma.   I  am go ing  to  ca l l  tha t  the  condu i t  a l legat ion .  

 There  was a l so  ev idence f rom Mr  Agr izz i  tha t  you 

had fac i l i ta ted  meet ings w i th  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  fo r  

BOSASA in  orde r  to  advance the i r  in te res ts .   And I  am 

go ing  to  ca l l  tha t  the  fac i l i ta t ion  a l legat ion .  

 Ms Myen i  I  must  jus t  pause the re .   There  has a l so  10 

been another  a l legat ion  no t  connec ted per  se  w i th  BOSASA 

but  in  re la t ion  to  Eskom ev idence tha t  you  fac i l i ta ted  

another  meet ing  a t  wh ich  the  suspens ion  o f  the  Eskom 

execut ives  was dea l t  w i th .  

 Now tha t  aspect  o f  the  ev idence befo re  the  

commiss ion  is  go ing  to  be  dea l t  w i th  by  my learned f r iend  

Mr  Pu le  Se leka i n  quest ion ing  you because tha t  i s  an  area 

o f  the  commiss ion ’s  invest iga t ions  in  respect  o f  wh ich  he  

leads the  invest iga t ion .   So I  w i l l  no t  be  touch ing  on tha t  

one today.   I  am go ing  to  touch on the  a l legat ions tha t  20 

come f rom Mr  Agr izz i ’s  ev idence  wh ich  have to  do  w i th  

Karoo f rack ing  and BOSASA’s  s i tes  in  tha t  a rea .  

 And then the  four th  main  a l legat ion  Ms Myen i  i s  t ha t  

you obta ined con f ident ia l  po l i ce  documents  concern ing  the  

invest iga t ion  in to  BOSASA and tha t  you p rov ided those  
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documents  to  Mr  Watson and Mr  Agr izz i  in  September  2015  

a t  tha t  meet ing  wh ich  I  asked you about  moments  ago on 

the  23  September  2015 accord ing  to  Mr  Agr i zz i .  

 So what  I  w i l l  do  now is  I  w i l l  exp lo re  each o f  those  

w i th  you.   I  want  to  p ick  up  on the  meet ings f i rs t .    

 Now Mr  Agr i zz i  a l leged tha t  you used to  ass is t  

BOSASA genera l l y  w i th  coord ina t i ng  meet ings w i th  fo rmer  

Pres ident  Zuma and tha t  there  was  a  par t i cu la r  mat te r  tha t  

BOSASA was in te res ted  in  and i t  re la ted  to  f rack ing .  

 Now I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  10 

you deposed to  on  the  4  March 2019 so  tha t  we can look  

there  a t  your  response to  tha t  a l legat ion .  

 Ms Myen i  you w i l l  f ind  i t  in  your  ev idence Bund le  

DD34[b ]  and we shou ld  p ick  i t  up  a t  page 1081.   For  you r  

conven ience tha t  i s  under  Tab 9 .    

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  s ta r ts  a t  1080 is  i t  no t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And I  d id  no t  ac tua l l y  take  us  there  

yesterday.   I  made re ference to  i t  so  th is  i s  ac tua l l y  the  20 

f i rs t  t ime tha t  we are  go ing  to  i t  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  I  –  i t  may be conven ien t  to  en ter  i t  

in to  the  record .   I f  I  may suggest  to  fo l low ing the  i ndex ing  

as  DD34[b ] .9 .  
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MS MYENI :   Yes I  have i t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   I  w i l l  admi t  i t  a f te r  she has 

conf i rmed her  s ignature  and the  contents  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   Thank you  Cha i r.   Ms Myen i  i f  you  

w i l l  go  to  page 1083 you w i l l  see  a  s ignature  there  can you  

conf i rm tha t  tha t  is  your  s ignature?  

MS MYENI :   Yes tha t  i s  my s ignatu re .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And can you conf i rm tha t  th is  i s  you r  

a f f idav i t  and tha t  the  contents  o f  i t  a re  t rue  and co r rec t?  

MS MYENI :   Sor ry  –  so r ry  I  d id  no t  –  I  d id  no t  ge t  tha t  one.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  was jus t  ask ing  you to  conf i rm tha t  the  

contents  o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  tha t  bears  your  s ignatu re  a re  t rue  

and cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i r  the  –  the  –  Cha i rperson le t  me read th is  

because the  a l legat ions I  do  no t  have a  l i s t  o f  a l legat ions  

w i th  me o f  Agr i zz i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   Wel l  Ms Hofmeyr  was jus t  

seek ing  your  conf i rmat ion  tha t  the  contents  o f  your  

a f f idav i t  a re  to  the  best  o f  your  knowledge and be l ie f  t rue  

and cor rec t  w i thout  ask ing  about  Agr izz i  jus t  to  conf i rm.  20 

MS MYENI :   The contents  o f  the  -  the  contents  o f  th is  

s ta tement  as  I  was lega l l y  adv ised is  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   The a f f idav i t  by  Ms 

Duduz i le  Cynth ia  Myen i  s ta r t ing  a t  page 1080 is  admi t ted  

as  Exh ib i t  DD34[b ] .9 .   Okay.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Ms Myen i  and i f  we cou ld  

then go to  page 1081 a t  wh ich  you w i l l  f ind  pa ragraph 8  o f  

your  a f f idav i t .   Do you have tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Yes I  do  –  thanks Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   What  you say a t  parag raph 8  i s :  

“Th is  i s  jus t  ingenuous fo r  Mr  Agr izz i  to  

a l lege tha t  I  had  an in f luence over  fo rmer  

Pres ident  Jacob  Zuma to  a f fec t  cer ta in  

amendments  to  regu la t ions wh ich  a re  

requ i red  to  fac i l i ta te  the  Karoo f rack ing .   I  10 

vehement ly  deny  these a l legat ions.   The  

meet ing  d id  in  fac t  take  p lace in  Nkand la .   

There  was no a l leged bag o f  cash  tha t  was  

handed over  to  the  Pres ident  and tha t  

s ta tement  i s  den ied . ”  

 Ms Myen i  as  I  unders tand th i s  paragraph you a re  

conf i rm ing here  tha t  a t  least  one meet ing  d id  take  p lace a t  

Nkand la  invo l v ing  Mr  Agr izz i ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then Ms Myen i  i f  you  go over  the  

page to  page 1082 you dea l  w i th  o ther  meet ings.   You see 

a t  the  top  o f  tha t  page a t  parag raph 9  you say:  

“ I  deny tha t  I  coord ina ted  a  meet ing  

be tween fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma,  Mr  
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Watson,  Mr  O ’Quig ley  and Ms Oberho lze r. ”  

 Do you conf i rm tha t  you d id  no t  se t  up  a  meet ing  

be tween those four  peop le  in  re la t ion  to  Karoo f rack ing?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  Ms Oberho lzer  has prov ided an  

a f f idav i t  to  th is  commiss ion  in  wh ich  she says tha t  you d id 

se t  up  tha t  very  meet ing  tha t  Mr  Agr izz i  tes t i f ied  about .   I s  

she g iv ing  fa lse  ev idence before  th is  commiss ion  when she  

says tha t?  10 

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you her  a f f idav i t  and 

you w i l l  f ind  tha t  a t  page 1444 o f  the  same bund le  

DD34[b ] .   Sor ry  le t  me g ive  you the  s ta r t ing  page.   I t  

commences a t  page 1433.    

MS MYENI :   I  have i t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Cha i rperson th is  i s  the  f i rs t  

t ime tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  Ms  Oberho lzer ’s  a f f idav i t .   

Cha i r  i f  I  may suggest  tha t  we enter  i t  in to the  exh ib i t  20 

aga in  in  accordance w i th  the  index as  Exh ib i t  DD34[b ] .15  -  

.15  and th is  i s  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  Ms Oberho lzer  deposed to  

you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 1447 on the  22  October  2020.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  one second.   You sa id  DD34[b ] .15?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms L ize l  

Oberho lzer  s ta r t i ng  a t  page 1423 w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  

Exh ib i t  DD34[b ] .15 .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.   Now Ms Myen i  what  Ms 

Oberho lzer  says  in  th is  de ta i led  a f f idav i t  amongst  o ther  

th ings is  tha t  you  d id  coord ina te  a  meet ing  be tween herse l f  

and the  fo rmer  P res ident  and Mr  Watson and Mr  O ’Quig ley  

and she sa id  tha t  tha t  took p lace and tha t  you se t  tha t  

meet ing  up .    Do you reca l l  do ing  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond so  tha t  I  do  no t  10 

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   She was ve ry  spec i f i c  about  the  da te  o f  

tha t  meet ing .   She sa id  tha t  i t  took  p lace on the  27  Ju l y  

2014.  Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond so  tha t  I  do  no t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Because your  a f f idav i t  ev idence before  

th is  commiss ion  is  tha t  you deny  hav ing  se t  up  th is  very  

meet ing  and so  in  a  sense what  the  commiss ion  has be fore  

i t  i s  your  den ia l  on  the  one hand  and Mr  Agr izz i  and Ms  20 

Oberho lzer ’s  ev idence before  t h is  commiss ion  tha t  says  

you d id  se t  i t  up .   That  i s  why i t  is  qu i te  impor tan t  in  due 

course  fo r  th is  commiss ion  to  be  ab le  to  make a  

de terminat ion  be tween those two vers ions.   Do you accept  

tha t  i f  one s ide  o f  tha t  debate  had some documentary  proof  
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tha t  the  meet ing  was coord ina ted  by  you i t  m igh t  t i l t  the 

ba lance in  favour  o f  the i r  vers ion?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond so  tha t  I  do  no t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see what  Ms Oberho lzer  says about  

th is  meet ing  appears  a t  page 1444 o f  DD34[b ] .15 .   So I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you the re .   Page  1444 a t  paragraph 38.  

MS MYENI :   I  have i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  you w i l l  see  on tha t  page there  

is  a  head ing  in  bo ld  Nkand la  27  Ju ly  2014,  do  you see 10 

tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Yes I  do .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And a t  parag raph 38 th is  i s  what  Ms 

Oberho lzer  says.   She says:  

“On th is  da te  a  second meet ing  was he ld  

w i th  Pres ident  Zuma a t  h is  home in  

Nkand la . ”  

 Can I  jus t  pause there  to  contex tua l i se  where  she is  

in  the  a f f idav i t .   She dea l t  p r io r  to  th is  po in t  in  the  a f f idav i t  

w i th  the  f i rs t  meet ing  wh ich  I  unders tand f rom your  20 

paragraph 8  o f  your  a f f idav i t  you do not  d ispute  hav ing  

taken p lace.   So on tha t  aspect  you and she  are  in  

agreement .   But  on  th is  meet ing  because th i s  i s  the  one a t  

wh ich  Mr  O ’Quig ley,  yourse l f ,  fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma,  Mr  

Watson were  present .   You say on  your  a f f idav i t  be fore  th i s  
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commiss ion  i t  d id  no t  take  p lace.   So I  jus t  wanted to  g ive  

you tha t  contex t  fo r  where  we are .  

 Okay paragraph 38 she says the  fo l low ing:  

“On th is  da te  a  second was he ld  w i th  

Pres ident  Zuma a t  h is  home in  Nkand la   

P resent  a t  the  meet ing  w i th  me  were  Mr  

O ’Quig ley,  Ms Myen i ,  Mr  Watson –  sor ry  Mr  

Gav in  Watson and Pres ident  Zuma.   I  

unders tand tha t  Ms Myen i  had ar ranged the  

meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident .   The  10 

ar rangements  were  made by  emai l  be tween 

Mr  O ’Quig ley  and  Mr  Gav in  Watson in  wh ich  

I  was cop ied .   The suggest ion  tha t  I  a t tend  

th is  meet ing  came f rom Mr  O ’Quig ley  v ia  a  

te lephone ca l l .   I  a t tach  marked Annexure  

LO1 an emai l  cha in  wh ich  was fo rwarded to  

me.   The emai l  cha in  s ta r t ing  on  20 Ju ly  

2014.   The emai l  f rom Ms Myen i  to  Mr  Gav in  

Watson is  da ted  20 Ju ly  2014 a t  11 :58  in  

the  morn ing  and  52 seconds.   I t  w i l l  be  20 

noted tha t  Ms Myen i  adv ises tha t  I  am 

t ry ing  to  se t  up  a  meet ing  fo r  the  27 t h .   I t  i s  

fo r  th is  reason tha t  I  have assumed tha t  Ms  

Myen i  a r ranged the  meet ing . ”  

 I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  us  to  tha t  emai l  i f  we may go 
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there?  And you w i l l  f ind  tha t  a t  page 1448.   Do you have 

tha t?  

MS MYENI :   I  see  the  emai l  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  you need to  s ta r t  as  one o f ten  does  

w i th  emai l s… 

MS MYENI :   Yes  Cha i rperson I  have –  sor ry  I  have the  

emai l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   So you have to  s ta r t  w i th  

emai l  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  page as  you o f ten  have to  do  

w i th  emai l  cha ins .   And what  you w i l l  see  in  the  second 10 

ha l f  o f  the  emai l  i s  in  bo ld  the  s ta r t  o f  an  emai l  tha t  says  

‘ f rom;  dudum wi th  an  emai l  address  there 

dudumyen i@te lkokmsa.net .   Can you conf i rm tha t  tha t  was  

an emai l  address you were  us ing  in  Ju ly  o f  2014?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   The date  o f  the  emai l  i s  20  Ju ly  2014 and 

the  sub jec t  i s  Forward  address by  Pres ident  Jacob Zuma a t  

the  launch o f  opera t ion  Phak isa  b ig  fas t  resu l ts  

imp lementa t ion  methodo logy.   And then I  wou ld  l i ke  to  read  20 

in to  the  reco rd  what  appears  then in  the  body o f  the  emai l .   

I t  reads:  

“For  my Mkhokhe l i ”  

 Cou ld  you t rans la te  what  Mkhokhe l i  means?   Ms 

Myen i  can you hear  us?  

mailto:dudumyeni@telkokmsa.net
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MS MYENI :   Sor ry  –  sor ry  I  can hear.   Sor ry  I  was –  I  was  

check ing  where  Mkhokhe l i  i s .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh so r ry  so  i t  i s  in  the  body o f  the  emai l .  

MS MYENI :   I  can  see on the  emai l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   What  does Mkhokhe l i  mean?  

MS MYENI :   That  was the  word  tha t  was used by  Mr 

Watson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Because you are  address ing  h im here  so  

cou ld  you t rans la te  i t  fo r  us  in to  Eng l ish?  What  mean ing  

does i t  have fo r  you in  Eng l i sh?  10 

MS MYENI :   I  am not  sure  i t  appears  to  be  a  Xhosa word .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay but  you were  us ing  i t  in  th is  emai l  

so  what  d id  you mean by  i t?  

MS MYENI :   Can I  no t  respond to  th is  quest ion  

Cha i rperson I  do  no t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And the  emai l  reads as  fo l lows:  

”For  my Mkhokhe l i  I  hope you a re  we l l .   By  

God ’s  g race we are  a l l  we l l .   I  have to  ge t  

th is  speech o f  the  launch o f  yes terday ’s  

event  because I  fe l t  you have to  know what  20 

the  event  o r  launch was about .   P lease be  

assured a l l  i s  under  cont ro l .   I  am t ry ing  to  

se t  up  a  meet ing  fo r  the  27 t h . ”  

 You see i t  i s  tha t  las t  –  oh  and then i t  says :  

“Regards. ”  
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 I t  i s  tha t  las t  sentence o f  tha t  emai l  where  you say I  

am t ry ing  to  se t  up  a  meet ing  fo r  the  27 t h  tha t  fo rms the  

bas is  fo r  Ms Oberho lzer ’s  ev idence before  th is  commiss ion  

tha t  you d id  se t  up  th is  meet ing .   You have den ied  tha t  on  

a f f idav i t .   

 Bu t  I  want  to  pu t  to  you tha t  th is  i s  p re t ty  c lear  in  

i t s  te rms tha t  you  are  se t t ing  up  a  meet ing .   Do you  have a  

response to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Le t  us  jus t  cont inue w i th  the  emai l  

because then you w i l l  see  how i t  ge ts  to  Ms Oberho lze r.   

You have to  now go up f rom the  bot tom.   So above your  

emai l  i s  the  ema i l  tha t  Mr  Gav in  Watson appears  to  have 

fo rwarded a  b i t  la te r  on  tha t  same day the  20 t h  Ju ly  2014 a t  

16 :11  in  the  a f te rnoon.  And what  th is  records  i s  Gav in  

Watson us ing  a  par t i cu la r  Gmai l  address wro te  and I  am 

quot ing :  

“P lease see the  emai l  I  rece ived  and who  

a t tended the  mee t ing .   We can d i scuss th is  20 

fu r ther  when we meet  aga in .   Regards  

Gav in  Watson. ”  

 And i f  you go above tha t  you see how the  emai l  

reached Ms Oberho lze r.   Because i t  i s  Mr  –  the re  i s  then a t  

the  top  o f  the  page.  
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MS MYENI :   Yes I  see.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   An  emai l  f rom Mr  O ’Quig ley  da ted the  

20 t h  Ju ly  2014 tha t  much la te r  in  the  day a t  s i x  m inutes  

past  e igh t  in  the  even ing  and he sends to  Mr  Watson,  Mr  

Agr izz i ,  Ross Watson and L i ze l  Oberho lzer  who is  Ms  

Oberho lzer  to  send tha t  emai l  cha in  to  a l l  o f  them and h is  

emai l  reads:  

“So hopefu l l y  we are  se t  up  fo r  the  meet ing  

to  take  p lace on the  27 t h .   I  am booked on a  

f l igh t  to  LHR on the  24 t h  bu t  w i l l  change as  10 

soon as  you con f i rm the  meet ing  is  go ing  

ahead.   K ind  Regards.   Ph i l l i p . ”  

 Ms Myen i  in  the  face  o f  tha t  documenta ry  ind i ca t ion  

tha t  you d id  in  fac t  se t  up  th is  meet ing  do  you want  to  

recons ider  your  ev idence under  oa th  on  a f f idav i t  be fore  

th is  commiss ion  tha t  you d id  no t  do  so?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  looks  l i ke  the re  –  the re  may be some 

techn ica l  p rob lem.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can you hear  me  Ms Myen i .  20 

MS MYENI :   Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to the  

quest ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MS MYENI :   I  can  hear  you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Ms  Hofmeyr.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  I  unders tand you to  have  

dec l ined to  answer  tha t  quest ion  on  tha t  bas i s  tha t  i t  may  

tend to  incr im inate  you.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :   Wel l  i t  i s  po in t less  tha t  may I  p lease  invoke 

the  pr iv i lege o f  answer ing  the  quest ion  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   I  wou ld  now l i ke  to  move to  

the  a l legat ion  o f  cash hav ing  been p rov ided to  you f rom 

t ime to  t ime by  BOSASA.   Mr Agrizzi ’s evidence was that  Mr 

Watson had told him that  he was giving you R 300 000,00 a 10 

month for the President  and that  i t  was being paid to the 

Jacob Zuma Foundat ion.  

 Chai r,  that  for record purposes.   Mr Agrizzi  deal t  wi th  

that  in the t ranscr ipt  of  the ev idence on the 

28t h of  January 2019,  page 52,  l ines 4 to 8.  

 Ms Myeni ,  are you aware of  that  al legat ion? 

MS MYENI :    What page?  Page? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  Ms Myeni .   Sorry.    

MS MYENI :    [ Indist inct ]  [d istor t ion present  – speaker 

unclear]  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is only. . .   That  is just  a reference to 

the t ranscr ipt .   I t  is  not  in  your documents.   I t  is  the 

t ranscr ipts of  his evidence on the day and I  am just  

recording that  for record purposes.   We do not  need to go to  

i t .    
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 You are,  no doubt,  aware of  Mr Agrizz i ’s evidence 

because you provided an aff idavi t  to the Commission 

responding to i t .    

 What I  would l ike to just  conf i rm is  that  you were aware 

of  th is speci f ic al legat ion that  Mr Watson told Mr Agrizzi  that  

Mr Watson was giving you R 300 000,00 a month of  the 

President  and that  i t  was being paid to the Jacob Zuma 

Foundat ion.    

 Are you aware that  that  al legat ion was made against  

you? 10 

MS MYENI :    Chair,  may I  not  answer that  quest ion so that  I  

do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now that  al legat ion was another one of  

the al legat ions that  you took up in  your  aff idavi t .   I  would 

l ike to go back to  your  aff idavi t  i f  we may?  You wi l l  f ind the 

re levant  paragraph at  page 1081 of  the bundle we are in at  

the moment which is DD34-B.   

MS MYENI :    Sorry,  i t  is page? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    1081.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ten-eighty-one.  20 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  I  have i t  Chairperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now there is one paragraph. . .   Wel l ,  two 

paragraphs here where you deal  wi th th is R 300 000,00 that  

was al leged to have been given to you.   At  paragraph 4 you 

say:  



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 22 of 265 
 

“ I  further deny that  I  received R 300 000,00 per 

month f rom the BOSASA Group.”  

 And then i f  you jump down to paragraph 6 you also say 

there:  

“ I  do not  possess a Louis Vi ton handbag which was 

al legedly f i l led wi th cash to the amount of  

R 300 000,00.   No such amount of  money was ever  

given to me as al leged. ”  

 Ms Myeni ,  when I  read those two paragraphs together,  I  

understand you to be conveying that  you did not  receive 10 

money f rom the BOSASA Group which found i ts way into the 

foundat ion in due course.  

 I  mean, your denial  is even broader.   You say no cash.   

But  I  want to focus part icular ly on the al legat ion of  

Mr Agr izzi  that  Mr Watson told h im that  he was giving i t  to  

you and then that  is f inding i ts way into the Jacob Zuma 

Foundat ion.  

 Do you deny that  you received money f rom BOSASA and 

put  i t  into the Jacob Zuma Foundat ion? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to th is quest ion 20 

because I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now what we d id manage to t raverse a 

l i t t le bi t  in your evidence yesterday was that  there were on 

occasion cash deposi ts made to the Jacob Zuma Foundat ion.   

Do you recal l  g iv ing that  evidence yesterday? 
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MS MYENI :    I  conf i rm that  I  said that  yesterday.   Indeed.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.  

MS MYENI :    There was context .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And what  I  was seeking to probe w i th you 

yesterday was.   I t  is not  easy to  ident i fy on cash deposi t  

s l ips.   Indeed,  somet imes,  I  would suggest ,  i t  is impossible 

to ident i fy how the deposi tor is on a cash deposi t  s l ip.   Do 

you accept  that? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because I  put  i t  to you that  i f  i t  is not  

possible to ident i fy who the deposi tor is i f  a l l  you got  is cash 

deposi t  s l ip.   Then i t  is possible that  BOSASA was 

deposi t ing cash into the account of  the Jacob Zuma 

Foundat ion,  provided there is evidence of  cash deposi t  s l ips.   

Do you accept  that? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Did you yoursel f  Ms Myeni  ever take cash 

and deposi ted in the foundat ion’s bank account? 20 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you remember amounts as great  as 

R 50 000,00 and R 100 000,00 and deposi t ing those amounts 

as cash in the Jacob Zuma Foundat ion bank account? 
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MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  because the Commission has 

managed to f ind numerous deposi t  s l ips of  amounts in those 

large quant i t ies which appear f rom signatures on those cash 

sl ips to have been deposi ted by you.    

 So I  would l ike to take you to those cash sl ips i f  I  may.   I  

would l ike to start  wi th the one that  appears in the same 

bundle that  you are in at  the moment,  DD34-B.  And I  would 

l ike to look at  the one appearing at  page 1476.   One 10 

thousand four hundred-and-seventy six.  

MS MYENI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you have that  page? 

MS MYENI :    I  have i t  Chai rperson.   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  you had helpful ly assisted us 

on two occasions before this Commission in conf i rming that  

a signature that  appears on a part icular page is your 

signature.    

 You did i t  yesterday when you conf i rmed that  the let ter  

you sent  in response to the complaints f rom your co-board 20 

members in 2014 was your signature.  

 And you did i t  moments ago when you conf i rmed your  

signature on the aff idavi t  that  you presented to the 

Commission in March of  2019.    

 So I  am hoping you wi l l  be able to assist  us wi th  the 
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s ignatures that  appear on these deposi t  s l ips.   You wi l l  see a 

signature on this deposi t  s l ip on page 1476.   

 Can you conf i rm that  that  is your signature?  Actual ly,  i t  

appears twice at  the bot tom of  the page.  Do you see that? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  invoke the pr iv i lege of  not  

responding to th is  quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then i f  we go . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    The reason is that  each quest ion fol lows 

another quest ion.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i f  we go over to page 1478, there is  10 

another signature on that  page on a deposi t  s l ip.   Can you 

conf i rm whether that  is your signature? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to the quest ion Chai rperson 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Before I  go to other that  we have wi th 

your signature.   I t  is probably appropriate to just  have 

recorded what the amounts of  each of  these deposi t  s l ips 

was.   Let  us go back to the deposi t  s l ip at  page 1476.   

 Ms Myeni ,  i t  is somet imes di ff icul t  to see the number ing 

on the deposi t  s l ip.   I t  took me, I  must  be honest ,  some t ime 20 

to work out  how these deposi t  s l ips record the amounts but  

let  me t ry and help you.    

 I f  you go to the top of  the deposi t  s l ip,  you wi l l  see there 

is emblem, ABSA on the lef t -hand s ide and then an emblem 

for Barclays.   And then below that  you have a date,  8 
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December 2014 and there is a t ime.  I t  looks l ike one o’clock 

in the af ternoon and two seconds.    

 Then i t  says CC.  And then you wi l l  see there,  f i f ty 

comma zero,  zero,  zero point  zero,  zero.   So that  is an 

indicat ion that  th is is a deposi t  of  R 50 000,00.  

 And what is then interest ing.   I f  you go just  a bi t  fur ther  

down, there is Jacob Zuma Foundat ion,  MPC.  There is 

reference number:   Donat ion dash. .   I  cannot qui te make that  

out .   SAS, maybe?   

 And then there is . . .   Do you see a one hundred there?  10 

And then you wi l l  see Rands and then zero,  zero,  zero 

comma zero comma f i f ty comma zero,  zero,  zero point  zero,  

zero.    

 So that ,  as I  understand i t ,  is  indicat ing that  the 

R 50 000,00 came in hundred rand notes.   I f  you had been 

deposi t ing this,  could you conf i rm for us that  you took 

R 50 000,00’s worth of  a hundred Rand notes and deposi ted 

i t  in the foundat ion’s bank account on the 

8 t h  of  December 2014? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  not  respond to th is  20 

quest ion?  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then i f  we go to the one that  also 

bears a signature wi th qui te a st r ik ing resembles to the 

signatures that  you have conf i rmed before the Commission in 

your  evidence.   That  is at  page 1478.  You wi l l  see there that  
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that  deposi t  s l ip is dated the 3r d of  November 2016.   That  is  

under the emblem of  ABSA at  the top of  the deposi t  s l ip.   Do 

you see that? 

MS MYENI :    Chai r,  I  see the deposi t  s l ip Ma’am.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you and then what that  te l ls us is,  

that  on this occasion R 100 000,00 was deposi ted.   And i f  

you go further down and fol low the logic of  the previous 

deposi t  s l ip.   I t  was R 20 000,00 in  two hundred Rand notes 

and R 80 000,00 in one hundred Rand notes.    

 Do you recal l  tak ing R 20 000,00 in two hundred Rand 10 

notes and R 80 000,00 in one hundred Rand notes and 

deposi t ing them in the Jacob Zuma Foundat ion on the 3r d o f  

November 2016? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  in the sect ion of  your  bundle 

there a number of  deposi t  s l ips.   Not  al l  of  them.  There what 

appears to be your  signature.   Some of  them bears 

signatures the Commission has not  been able to ident i fy.    

 Some of  them give a descr ipt ion l ike the one I  20 

referenced a moment ago,  Donat ion SAS.  Others bear no 

descr ipt ion at  al l .    

 I  wi l l  g ive you a. . .   Wel l ,  other than donat ion.   But  I  wi l l  

g ive you an example of  one of  those.   I f  we go to page 1482.   

Do you have that? 
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MS MYENI :    Yes,  Chairperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see that  one . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    I  have i t  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I f  you look at  that  one,  i t  just  says af ter  

the date which i t  looks l ike i t  is 16 September 2017.   

Chairperson,  can I  just  pause there?  We did t ry to  do the 

best  copying we could but  these are old deposi t  s l ips.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  mean, they are the or ig inals.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    So. . .   But  th is was the best  that  we could 

do for the purposes of  the bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  were deposi t  s l ips that  I  understand 

i t ,  are in the possession of  the Commission.   But  le t  us just  

look at  th is one.   You see,  th is one has a date.   I t  looks l ike 

maybe 14 or 16 September 2017.   And there is just  says,  

Jacob Zuma Foundat ion,  NPC, reference number:   Donat ion.   

So on the f i rst  one we got  Donat ion SAS.  Here we get  

nothing.    20 

 Unl ike elect ronic t ransfers,  you just  do not  know who is  

making these deposi ts unless you can ident i fy the signature.   

Ms Myeni ,  there is just  one other of  the deposi t  s l ips bearing 

your signature that  I  would l ike to take you to and that  is at  

1488.    



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 29 of 265 
 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Chairperson I  have i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  take you to th is one because i t  is  

amongst  some of  the clearest  of  the signatures that  appear 

on that  page.   Can you conf i rm that  that  is your s ignature at  

page 1488? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You wi l l  see Ms Myeni  that  th is is a  

deposi t  that  was made on the 6t h o f  February 2016.   And i t  is 

in the amount of  R 100 000,00 and i t  appears on this 10 

occasion the R 100 000,00 was made up of  two hundred 

Rand notes.    

 Ms Myeni ,  i f  you did indeed deposi t  these large cash 

amounts.   Can you assist  the Commission as to where you 

got  these large cash amounts f rom to deposi t  them into the 

Jacob Zuma Foundat ion bank account? 

MS MYENI :    . . . i t  is  mysel f .  [d istort ion present  – speaker 

unclear]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   We did not  hear the whole 

sentence Ms Myeni .  20 

MS MYENI :    Thanks,  Chai rperson.   May I  not  respond to the 

quest ion so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  I  must  put  i t  to you that  the 

discovery of  these cash deposi t  s l ips,  bearing what  on the 
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face looks l ike your  signature,  lends credence to Mr Agrizzi ’s 

vers ion,  potent ia l ly,  that  you were deposi t ing cash which you 

received f rom BOSASA into the Jacob Zuma Foundat ion bank 

account.   What is your response to that? 

MS MYENI :    May I  invoke the pr iv i lege Chai rperson that  I  do 

not  respond to the quest ion so that  I  do not  incr iminate 

mysel f?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  in  fa i rness to  you.   I  must  

record that  the Commission has not  found regular deposi t  

s l ips amount ing to R 300 000,00 cash bearing your signature 10 

each month.    

 But  what i t  has found are these deposi t  s l ips which 

appear in your ev idence bundle.   I  have not  taken you to al l  

of  them but  they are large amounts of  cash deposi ted by you 

and without  explanat ion,  given the approach that  you are 

taking to your evidence today.    

 Are you sure that  you do not  want to give this  

Commission an explanat ion for those deposi ts of  large cash 

amounts? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  wi th respect ,  may I  not  respond to 20 

the quest ion so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  I  would l ike now to move off  

cash and go to t ravel  benef i t .  

[d istort ion present ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  know you said Ms Hofmeyr,  you did not  
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take her to al l  of  them.  I  see there is one at  page 1490 that  

has a signature that  seems to be her signature.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed, Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  We could maybe ask Ms Myeni  

again i f  she could conf i rm that  s ignature.   That  would be 

useful .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  i f  you could go to page 1490.  

MS MYENI :    [No audible reply]   10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you have that? 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  I  do.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  appears to be a deposi t ,  a lso on the 

6t h of  February 2016.   We looked at  another one wi th th is  

date a moment ago.   This t ime in the amount of  R 50 000,00 

made up of  hundred Rand notes.   And there is a  signature at  

the bot tom of  that  page.   Can you conf i rm whether  that  is 

your signature? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to th is quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Chai r,  wi th  your leave,  I  wi l l  

then move to the t ravel  benef i ts.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I f  I  may? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    So the evidence of  Mr Agr izzi  and others 

has not  been conf ined to  cash benef i ts  that  BOSASA was 

al leged to have g iven to you wi th some expectat ion that  i t  

would f ind i ts way to the foundat ion.    

 But  there are a lso t ravel  benef i ts that  you are al leged to 

have benef i ted f rom.  So I  would l ike to deal  wi th those.   The 

al legat ions are those that  come from the ent i ty cal led Blakes 

Travel .  

 And the al legat ion is that  you received a number of  

t ravel  and accommodat ion benef i ts through Blakes Travel  10 

that  were paid for by BOSASA.   

 Can you conf i rm that  you received those benef i ts? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now Mr Agrizzi ’s evidence before the 

Commission on th is aspect .   Chai r,  can be found both in his  

aff idavi t ,  which I  am not  suggest ing we need to go to.   This 

is again just  for record purposes.    

 Ms Myeni  is  wel l -aware of  these al legat ions.   She has 

responded to them on aff idavi t  but  just  for record purposes.   20 

I t  is Mr Agrizzi ’s aff idavi t ,  Exhibi t  AA at  page 65,  paragraph 

30.1.    

 And he also then addressed i t  in the t ranscr ipt  of  

evidence on the 22n d of  January 2015,  page 156,  l ines 5 to 

10.   So what Mr Agr izzi  says in his aff idavi t  and in test imony 
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before this Commission is,  that  BOSASA used Blakes Travel  

to fac i l i tate arrangements for var ious government off ic ia ls 

and other persons that  they regarded to have inf luence.  

 And that  evidence was then corroborated by 

Mr Brian Blake who is an employee of  Blakes Travel .   He 

also test i f ied before this Commission and his evidence is  to  

be found in Exhibi t  T.   That  is  T for tomato.   T-18.  

 Ms Myeni ,  that  should be amongst  the bundles that  you 

have wi th you.   We have unt i l  th is point ,  I  th ink,  only been 

deal ing wi th your bundle.   But  I  am now going to want  to take 10 

you to T-18.    

 So can you look for Bundle T-18 amongst  the mountain 

of  f i les that  you have?  And Chai r,  yours wi l l  be provided to 

you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    T-18,  I  take i t  wi l l  be wri t ten on the sp ine 

of  the f i le . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  wi l l  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . for the benef i t  of  Ms Myeni .   So look at  

the spine of  your f i les and look for one that  is wri t ten T-18.  

MS MYENI :    [No audible reply]   20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  i f  you wi l l  just  alert  us to when 

you have the f i le?  And we wi l l  s tart  wi th i t  at  page 70.   

Seven, zero.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Her picture i f  off  the screen but  she may 

be hearing us.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    I  th ink that  is r ight .   I  th ink she has gone 

off  v ideo so that  she can move around and f ind i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So i f  we can just  give Ms Myeni  a moment.   

Thank you,  Chai r.  

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson. . .   Sorry,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    A l l  my f i les are Exhib i t  DD.  

CHAIRPERSON :    There is no T-18? 

MS MYENI :    There is no T-18.   Al l  of  them, they are DD and 10 

then they have A,  B,  C or Exhibi t  DD11.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    DD9, DD8, DD14, 13,  12 and so on.   There is 

no TT.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Could i t  be that  her at torney might  have 

i t?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is possible.   These. . .   You see,  the DD 

ser ies Chai r,  the 55 f i les that  are assembled behind me, are 

the Aviat ion f i les.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    The other  ones – and they are usual ly 

kept  together – the other ones where I  have to go to other 

work st reams . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Work streams, ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So this  is a T f i le .   Now this. . .   Ms Myeni ,  
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these two f i les,  I  am going to take you to T-18 and later on I  

am going to take you to T-21.   I t  d id not  come with the f i rst  

shipment of  f i les.   They came la ter  on your f i rst  day of  

evidence,  as I  understand the arrangements.   So i t  might  be 

that  your at torney put  them somewhere else? 

MS MYENI :    Can I  turn?  Because my at torney 

representat ive is here who brought the f i rst  shipment.   So let  

me just  quickly hear i f  we have them or not .   Or we can 

maybe cont inue wi thout  the f i les.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   Look,  the purpose of  the f i le is to 

take you to certain . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  wi th your. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Maybe we should take an 

adjournment.  

MS MYENI :    Ja,  please.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  th ink so Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe we take an adjournment to enable 

Ms Myeni  to ta lk to her at torney or the representat ive of  her  

at torney to establ ish whether they have got  the f i le.    20 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Let  us make the tea-break.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink i t  is eleven.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Quarter to ten.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   I t  is . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    We started ear ly  but  i t  is  very convenient  

to take.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  wi l l  be a break wi thout  tea.   [ laughing]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  indeed.  Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    How many minutes Chai rperson? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Shal l  we make i t  ten?  I  th ink make i t  15.   

I  am just  not  sure. . .   Let  us say,  we wi l l  make i t  15 but  i f  the 

f i le is  found earl ier  before the end of  15 minutes,  I  must  be 10 

informed and then we wi l l  resume.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you so much.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We adjourn.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  the  cha l l enges in  f ind ing  the  f i le  

took a  lo t  o f  our  t ime.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed.   Unfo r tunate ly,  Cha i r,  i t  seems 20 

what  was not  even a  tea  break became more  l i ke  a  lunch 

break and we do apo log ise  fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  I  have d i scussed w i th  my learned  

f r iends is  tha t  we  are  go ing  to  make ar rangements .   I t  was  
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sen t  e lec t ron i ca l l y  to  Ms Myen i ’s  lawyers  bu t  the re  is  an  

issue w i th  i t  be ing  downloaded a t  the  moment  g iven i t s  

s ize .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  we are  fac i l i ta t ing  a  hard  copy 

get t ing  to  he r.   I  am go ing  to  move o f f  top ic  tha t  requ i re  

those two f i les  to  be  addressed and the  hope is  tha t  by  

lunch or  a f te r  lunch she w i l l  have those hard  cop ies  and we 

can re turn  to  those mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  we are  indebted.   So I  

was go ing  to  be  dea l ing  w i th  t rave l  benef i t s .   I  am now 

pend ing  tha t  and I  am mov ing  to  tha t  a l leged,  Ms Myen i ,  on  

the  23  September  2015.   That  i s  the  meet ing  tha t  Mr  

Agr izz i  sa id  had taken p lace w i th  you and i t  i s  the  meet ing  

a t  the  Shera ton  where  Mr  Agr izz i  sa id  you handed to  h im 

and Mr  Watson  conf ident ia l  po l i ce  docket  in fo rmat ion  

regard ing  an  i nvest iga t ion  i n to  BOSASA.   Can you conf i rm 

tha t  you had tha t  meet ing?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  20 

quest ion ,  I  wou ld  no t  l i ke  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  you d id  prev ious ly  respond to 

th is  a l legat ion  though and you d id  so  in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  

we were  look ing  a t  ear l ie r,  so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  i t ,  

i t  i s  a t  page 1082 a t  paragraph 13 tha t  I  am in te res ted  in  
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and you w i l l  f ind  i t  in  your  bund le  DD34B.  

CHAIRPERSON:    10 . .?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    82 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    I  have i t ,  Cha i rperson,  be fore  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  Mr  Agr izz i  d id  no t  tes t i f y  about  on ly  

one meet ing  a t  the  Shera ton  but  there  was th i s  par t i cu la r  

meet ing  on  the  23  September  2015 where  th is  ve ry  spec i f i c  

exchange o f  the  conf ident ia l  po l i ce  in fo rmat ion ,  accord ing  10 

to  Mr  Agr izz i ,  took  p lace and as  I  read your  a f f idav i t ,  Ms 

Myen i ,  o f  March  2019 tha t  you presented to  the  

Commiss ion ,  you on ly  dea l  w i th  Shera ton  meet ings w i th  Mr  

Agr izz i  a t  paragraph 13 and I  wou ld  inv i te  you to  d i rec t  me  

anywhere  e lse  i n  the  a f f idav i t  i f  you  have a  d i f fe ren t  

unders tand ing  o f  i t  bu t  what  happens a t  pa ragraph 13 is  

you say:  

“Mr  Agr izz i  and I  had on ly  met  in  Shera ton  fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime as  s ta ted  on the  a l legat ions o f  h is  

a f f idav i t .   However,  I  was meet ing  Mr  Watson to  20 

request  a  dona t ion  fo r  the  fo rmer  P res ident ’s  

b i r thday event . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  have the  document ,  page 1082 

in  f ron t  o f  me.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you and  then I  was jus t  read ing  

paragraph 13 where  i t  seems to  me you dea l  w i th  Shera ton  

meet ings and you  say there :  

“Mr  Agr izz i  and I  had on ly  met  in  Shera ton  fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime as  s ta ted  on the  a l legat ions o f  h is  

a f f idav i t .   However,  I  was meet ing  Mr  Watson to  

request  a  donat ion  fo r  fo rmer  Pres ident ’s  b i r thday 

event . ”  

I  asked whether  you –  do  you have  tha t  in  f ron t  o f  you?  Do 

you see pa ragraph 13,  Ms Myen i?  10 

MS MYENI :    I  have page 1082 w i th  a l l  the  pa ragraphs,  

indeed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  super.   So I  want  to  jus t  convey to  

you,  when I  read tha t  paragraph,  i t  says  to  me tha t  you are  

deny ing  the  mee t ing  tha t  occu r red  on the  23  Sep tember  

2015.   I s  tha t  co r rec t?   Do you deny meet ing  h im on tha t  

day?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  invoke the  pr iv i lege  o f  no t  

respond ing  to  the  quest ion  so  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you a lso  do  dea l  w i th  th is  exchange 20 

o f  documents  in  your  a f f idav i t  bu t  no t  spec i f i ca l l y  the  

meet ing  a t  paragraph 11.   You say a t  paragraph 11:  

“ I  deny tha t . . . ”  

I  th ink  i t  i s  meant  to  say:  

“ . . . I  had met  anyone f rom the  NPA nor  am I  aware  o f  
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the  document  re fe r red  to .   I  in tend to  ra i se  th is  

mat te r  in  the  c ross-examinat ion .   I  was not  in  

possess ion  o f  any document  f rom the  NPA.   I  deny  

tha t  I  shared such a  document  w i th  Mr  Agr i zz i  o r  Mr  

Watson,  i t  i s  indeed a  l ie .   Mr  Agr izz i  must  exp la in  

about  th is  document  in  the  cross-examinat ion .   I  

had no reason to  ge t  invo lved in  the i r  bus iness. ”  

Do you s tand by  tha t  den ia l  tha t  you handed over  th i s  

conf ident ia l  po l i ce  in fo rmat ion  to  Mr  Agr izz i  and Mr  Watson 

on the  27  September  2015?  10 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  I  do  no t  want  to  incr im ina te  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  can you te l l  us  when the  

fo rmer  Pres ident ’s  b i r thday is?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  I  wou ld  no t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  f rom pub l ic ly  ava i lab le  

in fo rmat ion   i t  appears  tha t  the  fo rmer  Pres ident ’s  b i r thday 

fa l l s  on  the  12  Apr i l  each year  and i f  tha t  i s  so ,  i t  seems to  

me,  a t  leas t ,  and I  wou ld  l i ke  your  comment  on  th is ,  to  be  20 

un l i ke ly  tha t  you  wou ld  have a  meet ing  in  September  o f  

2015 a t  wh ich  you were  request ing  a  donat ion  fo r  the  

Pres ident ’s  b i r thday event  because  h is  b i r thday wou ld  have 

passed a  few months ea r l ie r  o r  i t  wou ld  have been many 

months  in  the  fu tu re .   Do you agree w i th  me  i t  i s  un l i ke ly  
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tha t  you wou ld  be  ask ing  fo r  a  donat ion  fo r  the  fo rmer  

Pres ident ’s  b i r thday event  in  September  o f  a  year?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im ina te  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  as  I  unders tand your  a f f idav i t  

be fore  th is  Commiss ion  you are  accept ing  a  d i f fe ren t  

meet ing  may have taken p lace a t  the  Shera ton  w i th  Mr  

Agr izz i  bu t  you a re  deny ing  tha t  th is  spec i f i c  meet ing  took 

p lace and i f  tha t  is  indeed your  den ia l  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  p robe  

the  den ia l  a  b i t  fu r ther  because there  is  a  ser ies  o f  10 

independent  ev idence tha t  th is  Commiss ion  has rece ived 

wh ich  I  am go ing  to  pu t  to  you tends to  ind i ca te  t ha t  you  

were  p resent  a t  the  Shera ton  on the  23  September  2015.   

So I  want  to  take  you to  each e lement  o f  tha t  independent  

ev idence.    

 The f i rs t  i s  tha t  your  –  le t  me s ta r t ,  who is  Mr  N ick  

L inne l l ,  Ms Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion  tha t  i s  be ing  asked in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  the  Commiss ion  has rece ived 20 

ev idence f rom Mr  L inne l l  in  wh ich  he  says tha t  he  was an  

adv iser,  genera l l y  speak ing ,  to  you and tha t  he  was qu i te  

invo l ved in  the  SAA mat te rs ,  cer ta in ly  in  2015 and 2016.   

Can you conf i rm tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  
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quest ion ,  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im ina te  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  th ink  in  h is  ev idence my learned f r iend  

Mr  Se leka put  i t  to  h im tha t  he  has been descr ibed as  Mr  

F i x - i t .   A re  you aware  o f  tha t  desc r ip t ion  o f  Mr  L inne l l?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im ina te  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  Mr  L inne l l ,  was invo i c ing  SAA 

between 2015 and par t  o f  2016 fo r  a  number  o f  serv ices  he  

was prov id ing  to  SAA,  so  what  we were  ab le  to  f ind  –  and I  

am go ing  to  come to  the  top ic  o f  Mr  L inne l l  in  due ,  bu t  we 10 

were  ab le  to  f ind  among those invo ices was an invo i ce  tha t  

he  se t t led  a t  the  Shera ton  Hote l  wh ich  pu ts  h im there  on  

the  22  and the  23  September  2015.   Can you conf i rm tha t  

Mr  L inne l l ,  who wou ld  regu lar ly  p rov ide  adv ice  to  SAA,  was 

a lso  a t  the  Shera ton  Hote l  on  those dates?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im ina te  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  show you h is  invo i ce  

f rom the  Shera ton  so  tha t  there  can be no debate  on  the  

mat te r.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you,  Ms Myen i ,  fo r  tha t  20 

purpose to  your  bund le  tha t  you have in  f ron t  o f  you,  

DD34B a t  page 1631 and you w i l l  f ind  i t  under  tab  27 .  

MS MYENI :    I  have i t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  th is  i s  an  invo ice  tha t  Mr  L inne l l  

submi t ted  to  Sou th  A f r i can A i rways fo r  re imbursement  and 
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you  w i l l  see  a t  the  top  r igh t  hand corne r  there  is  the  

emblem o f  the  Shera ton .   You w i l l  see  there  in te res t ing l y  

tha t  he  was s tay ing  in  room 619.   I  am go ing  to  take  you to  

the  ev idence tha t  has a l ready been presented  to  the 

Commiss ion  tha t  you were  s tay ing  in  room 616 on these 

dates .   Wel l ,  you s tayed ac tua l l y  an  ex t ra  da te  to  the  one  

tha t  Mr  L inne l l  s tayed.   So you w i l l  see  in  the  co lumns on 

the  r igh t  hand s ide  says room number  619 and i t  says  

ar r i va l  22 .09 .15 and depar tu re  23 .09.15.   Can you  conf i rm  

tha t  Mr  L inne l l  was s tay ing  a t  the  Shera ton  over  the  same 10 

dates  tha t  you were  s tay ing  a t  the  Shera ton ,  Ms Myen i ,  in  

September  o f  2015?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Can you te l l  us  what  you and Mr  L inne l l  

were  do ing  a t  the  Shera ton  on the  22  and 23 Sep tember  

2015?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now the  Commiss ion  went  to  some 20 

ex tens i ve  l engths  to  in te r rogate  the  photographs tha t  Mr  

Agr izz i  tes t i f ied  he  had taken on tha t  da te  o f  the  23  

September  2015 when,  on  h is  ve rs ion ,  you handed over  the  

conf ident ia l  po l i ce  in fo rmat ion  to  h im.   Do you reca l l  h is  

ev idence about  the  photograph and then the  e f fo r ts  tha t  
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were  taken by  the  Commiss ion  to  ver i f y  the  carpet  tha t  

appears  on  the  photograph?  Are  you aware  o f  tha t  

ev idence?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  no t  on ly  were  e f fo r t s  made to  

go  and check what  the  carpet  looked l i ke  on  the  6 t h  f loor  o f  

the  Shera ton  Hote l  where  th is  a l leged exchange took 

p lace,  accord ing  to  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  ev idence between you and  

h im and Mr  Watson.   The Commiss ion  a lso  went  to  the 10 

lengths  o f  ana lys ing  the  photograph i t se l f  wh ich  they were  

ab le  to  take  f rom Mr  Agr izz i ’s  dev i ce  and ev idence was  

presented by  Mr  Frank Dut ton ,  one o f  the  invest iga tors  o f  

the  Commiss ion ,  conf i rm ing tha t  the  ana lyses tha t  had 

been done show tha t  tha t  par t i cu la r  photograph ev idenc ing  

the  po l i ce  in fo rmat ion  and in  the  background the  carpet  

tha t  he  conf i rmed f rom h is  own inspect ion  i n  loco  had the  

same pat te rn  as  the  one in  the  p i c tu re ,  conf i rmed tha t  the  

da te  the  p i c tu re  was taken was the  23  September  2015,  

tha t  the  t ime i t  was taken was 10.37 in  the  morn ing  and 20 

they cou ld  assess the  loca t ion  o f  the  photographs as  

hav ing  been a t  the  Shera ton  Hote l .  

 Now in  the  fac t  o f  tha t  independent  ev idence,  Ms  

Myen i ,  do  you pe rs is t  in  your  den ia l  tha t  you were  i nvo lved 

in  g iv ing  tha t  document  to  Mr  Agr i zz i  on  the  23  September  
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2015?  

MS MYENI :    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  invoke the  pr iv i lege,  

Cha i rperson,  o f  remain ing  s i len t  and not  respond ing  to  the 

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you deny tha t  you were  s tay ing  in  

room 616 on the  6 t h  f loor  be tween  the  da tes  o f  the  22  and  

24 September  2015 a t  the  Shera ton  Hote l  in  Pre to r ia?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion ,  

Cha i rperson,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you deny tha t  you r  adv i ser  Mr  L inne l l  10 

was s tay ing  th ree  doors  down a t  room 619 on the  6 t h  f loor  

o f  the  Shera ton  on the  23  September  2015? 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  to  the 

quest ion   in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The Shera ton  Hote l ’s  record  wh ich  Mr  

Frank Dut ton  a l so  addressed in  h is  ev idence conf i rmed tha t  

you s tayed a t  the  ho te l  be tween the  22n d  and  the  24 

September  2015 and I  want  to  there fo re  pu t  i t  to  you,  Ms  

Myen i ,  tha t  the  independent  ev idence ava i lab le  to  th is  

Commiss ion  ind ica tes  on  a  s t rong probab i l i t y  tha t  you were  20 

there ,  tha t  you were  s tay ing  on  the  6 t h  f loor,  tha t  the  6 t h  

f loor  had l im i ted  access,  tha t  was another  par t  o f  Mr  

Agr izz i ’s  ev idence,  tha t  Mr  Agr i zz i  on  the  6 t h  f loor  o f  the  

Shera ton  on the  23  September  2015 took photog raphs o f  

conf ident ia l  po l i ce  in fo rmat ion  re f lec t ing  in  i t s  background  
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the  carpet  in  the  f loor  o f  the  Shera ton  on the  6 t h  f loor  tha t  

our  invest iga tor  went  and conf i rmed in  2019 remained the  

same pat te rned carpet .  

 Aga ins t  a l l  o f  tha t  ev idence w i l l  you  deny tha t  you 

were  present  on  tha t  day?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  the  cha l lenge,  Ms Myen i ,  i s  

tha t  as  the  we igh t  o f  independent  ev idence mounts  a  ba ld 

den ia l  on  your  par t  o r  as  i s  happen ing  today,  a  re fusa l  to  10 

engage in  any o f  th is ,  I  pu t  to  you is  go ing  to  leave the  

Commiss ion  in  a  d i f f i cu l t  pos i t ion  bu t  to  conc lude tha t  

there  is  a  p robab i l i t y  tha t  you were  the re  and tha t  i s  Mr  

Agr izz i  i s  to  be  be l ieved in  h is  ev idence,  tha t  you  handed  

over  tha t  conf ident ia l  po l i ce  in fo rmat ion .   Do you want  to  

respond to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  want  to  incr im inate  

myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  I  wou ld  then l i ke  to  move to  

another  o f  the  benef i t s  tha t  you are  a l leged to  have 20 

rece ived f rom BOSASA and tha t  re la tes  to  a  secur i t y  

ins ta l la t ion .   D id  you have a  secur i t y  ins ta l la t ion  done a t  

your  home in  R ichard ’s  Bay in  May  o f  2014? 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion ,  

Cha i rperson,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  BOSASA pay fo r  tha t  ins ta l la t ion?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  R ichard  le  Roux gave ev idence 

before  th is  Commiss ion  because  he is  the  person who  

tes t i f ied  be fore  the  Commiss ion  tha t  he  ac tua l l y  under took 

tha t  secur i t y  ins ta l la t ion .   A re  you  aware  tha t  he  gave tha t  

ev idence?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You were  sent  a  Ru le  3 .3  no t ice  in  

re la t ion  to  Mr  le  Roux ’s  ev idence on the  3  Ju l y  2020.   Do  

you reca l l  rece i v ing  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now in  Mr  le  Roux ’s  tes t imony he 

ind ica ted  tha t  th is  ins ta l la t ion  a t  your  home had  taken 

p lace,  as  I  say,  in  May o f  2014.   He es t imated tha t  i t  took 

over  21  days in  to ta l  to  ins ta l l  i t  because i t  was  a  very  

de ta i led  ins ta l la t i on  and he approx imated the  to ta l  va lue  o f  20 

i t  when he inc luded labour  as  we l l  as  the  ac tua l  pu rchas ing  

o f  the  equ ipment  a t  R486 514.63.   A re  you aware  tha t  tha t  

ins ta l la t ion  costs  jus t  under  ha l f  a  m i l l ion  rand?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion   in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you ag ree tha t  rece iv ing  someth ing  

to  the  va lue  o f  jus t  less  than ha l f  a  m i l l i on  rand is  a  

substant ia l  benef i t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you accept  tha t  i f  you  d id  no t  

re imburse  BOSASA for  those cos ts  i t  wou ld  have  been a  

g i f t  to  you?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r,  may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  in  

case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    In  March 2014,  Ms Myen i ,  you were  the  

Cha i rperson o f  bo th  the  SAA board  and the  uMhla thuze  

Water  Board ,  can  you conf i rm tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond so  tha t  do  no t   

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  po l i cy  i s  tha t  

bo th  o f  those ent i t ies  requ i re  g i f t s  to  be  dec la red.   A re  you  

aware  o f  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  in  Ms Myen i ’s  bund le  there  are  

a f f idav i t s  tha t  we have obta ined  both  f rom uMh la thuze  

Water  Board  as  we l l  as  f rom SAA.   I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  

necessary  to  go  there  now.   Wi th  your  leave and i f  Ms 

Myen i  i s  comfor tab le  w i th  i t  I  w i l l  s imp ly  summar i se  what  
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they  say about  the i r  records  on  g i f t  d isc losures ,  i f  I  may? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tha t  wou ld  be  f ine .   Do you 

have any p rob lem wi th  tha t ,  Ms Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t ,  Cha i rperson,  a l though I  am par t  o f  

the  peop le  tha t  wou ld  ac tua l l y  deve lop  some po l i c ies  

re la t ing  to  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  and ensure  and enforce  such  

po l i c ies  a t  every  board  and every  ins t i tu t ion  tha t  I  have 

pres ided over,  bu t  I  am happy tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  reads the  

po l i cy  i f  the  Cha i rpe rson a l lows her.   I t  can  educate  many 

o ther  peop le .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  we l l  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  the  conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t  po l i cy  tha t  opera ted  a t  SAA a t  the  t ime because  

tha t  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t   po l i cy,  and  I  quote :  

“Requ i red  non-execut ive  board  members  o f  SAA to  

dec la re  a l l  g i f t s  rece ived by  non-execut ive  d i rec tors  

in  the i r  capac i ty  o f  o f f i c ia l l y  serv ing  SAA and o f  a  

monetary  va lue  es t imated to  be  more  than R1 000 

sha l l  be  dec la red by  the  re levant  non-execut ive  

d i rec to r. ”  

Were  you aware  o f  tha t  requ i rement  in  the  con f l i c t  o f  20 

in te res t  po l i cy  in  May o f  2014?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now we asked SAA to  go  th rough i t s  

records  o f  g i f t  dec la ra t ions and the  a f f idav i t  tha t  has been  
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p rov ided by  SAA has ind i ca ted  tha t  there  is  no  dec la ra t ion  

by  you,  Ms Myen i ,  o f  hav ing  rece ived a  g i f t  in  the  orde r  o f  

R486 514.63 f rom BOSASA a t  tha t  t ime.   Do you  d ispute  

the  records  o f  SAA? 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The uMhla thuze Wate r  Board  had a  

s im i la r  p rov i s ion ,  i t  requ i red  dec lara t ions to  be  made o f  

g i f t s  rece ived by  board  members  and in  tha t  case there  

was ac tua l l y  a  dec la ra t ion  by  you hav ing  rece ived a  g i f t .   I t  10 

is  a  dec la ra t ion  you made la te r  though in  2016.   Do you 

reca l l  mak ing  tha t  dec la ra t ion  in  2016? 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  jus t  fo r  reco rd  purposes I  w i l l  

i nd ica te  where  tha t  en t ry  i s  on  the  uMhla thuze g i f t  reg is te r.   

I  do  no t  suggest  i t  necessary  fo r  us  to  go  there  un less  Ms  

Myen i  wants  us  to .   The ent ry  o f  Ms Myen i  fo r  th is  

d isc losure  in  2016 appears  a t  DD34B a t  page 1471.   Ms  

Myen i ,  i t  was a  dec la ra t ion  tha t  you had rece ived  –  we l l ,  20 

maybe le t  us  go  there  momentar i l y.   Wi l l  you  ca l l  up  1471 

in  EXHIBIT DD34B? 

MS MYENI :    I  have i t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  th is  i s  the  reg is te r  o f  the  

dec la ra t ion  o f  g i f t s  rece ived by  any board  member  o f  
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uMhla thuze Wate r  Board  and the  page I  have asked you to 

look  a t  –  oh  and i t  spans f rom 2012.   I  th ink  i t  goes up to  

2017,  th is  one.   No,  sor ry ,  i t  i s  much more  recent ,  i t  goes 

as  fa r  as  th is  year .   And what  i t  says  on  the  page  we are 

look ing  a t ,  we searched the  who le  reg is te r  f rom 2012 to  

2020 fo r  any dec la ra t ions tha t  you had made  and i t  

appears  a t  page 1471.   I f  you  look a t  the  f i f th  l ine  in  tha t  

tab le  tha t  there  was a  g i f t  rece i ved on the  20  January  

2016.   The f i rs t  co lumn ind i ca ted  was rece ived f rom an  

ent i t y ,  I  assume,  ca l led  ZDM,  the  rec ip ien t  i s  ind ica ted  as  10 

Ms D Myen i .   The descr ip t ion  o f  the  g i f t  rece ived is  

no tebook and pen and the  va lue  is  dec la red a t  R200.   Do  

you remember  mak ing  tha t  dec la ra t ion?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond in  case I   

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  I  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  th i s  en t ry  

in  th is  g i f t s  dec la ra t ion  ind ica tes  a  few th ings .   I t  i s  

ind ica tes  tha t  you were  aware  o f  your  ob l iga t ion  to  dec la re  

g i f t s  rece ived.   Do you accept  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  20 

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  ind ica tes  tha t  you took the  rece ip t  o f  a  

no tebook and pen to  the  va lue  o f  R200 to  be  su f f i c ien t ly  

impor tan t  to  dec la re  in  th is  g i f t s  reg is te r.   Do you accept  

tha t?  
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MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  no t  

want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  a lso  pu t  to  you tha t  i t  ind ica tes  

tha t  a  fa i lu re  in  May 2014 to  dec la re  a  g i f t  o f  R486 515.63 

wou ld  have been  in  b reach o f  th is  po l i cy.   Do you  accept  

tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now,  Ms Myen i ,  you w i l l  reca l l  when I  

dea l t  w i th  the  SAA po l i cy  on  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t ,  they  way 10 

tha t  tha t  po l i cy  works  is  tha t  i t  requ i res  the  dec la ra t ion  to  

be  made.   I f  i t  i s  a  g i f t  rece ived –  and I  am quot ing  now:  

“ In  the  capac i ty  o f  o f f i c ia l l y  serv ing  SAA” 

Were  you aware  tha t  tha t  was  the  way in  wh ich  the  

ob l iga t ion  was f ramed in  the  SAA conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  

po l i cy?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  in  fa i rness to  you,  Ms Myen i ,  i t  

may we l l  be  tha t  had you come before  th is  Commiss ion  20 

today to  answer  the  quest ions  and  not  invoke tha t  

p r iv i lege,  you might  have sa id  we l l ,  th is  ins ta l la t ion  was 

not  in  any way re la ted  to  my o f f i c ia l  capac i ty  a t  SAA.   Do 

you th ink  i f  you  were  m inded to  have g iven your  vers ion  

you might  have ra ised tha t  po in t  o f  content ion?  
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MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  –  w i th  your  permiss ion ,  may I  

no t  be  fed  words  to  say or  to  have sa id  to  maybe i f  I  was  

somewhere  e l se  I  wou ld  have sa id  someth ing .   I  wou ld  

pre fe r  to  say he re  is  my response and I  s tand w i th  the  

response I  am mak ing  tha t  says may I  p lease,  w i th  your  

permiss ion ,  invoke my r igh t  o f  no t  respond ing  to  the 

quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  Mr  Agr izz i  tes t i f ied  be fore  th is  

Commiss ion  tha t  a  few months,  I  th ink  i t  was two months  

a f te r  the  September  2015 mee t ing  there  was another  10 

meet ing  tha t  took p lace where  BOSASA was meet ing  w i th  

the  SAA CEO at  the  t ime,  because i t  was in te res ted  in  

pursu ing  secur i t y  and ca ter ing  con t rac ts  w i th  SAA.   Do you  

remember  tha t  ev idence o f  Mr  Agr i zz i?  

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  don ’ t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We got  in  contac t  w i th  the  then SAA 

CEO Mr  N ico  Bezu idenhout  to  f ind  ou t  f rom h im whe ther  he  

cou ld  reca l l  any  such meet ing  hav ing  taken p lace and 

prov ided –  I  am go ing  to  say a  s ta tement ,  I  w i l l  exp la in  why 20 

in  a  moment ,  to  the  Commiss ion .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  us  to  

i t  i f  we may go there ,  i t  i s  in  the  same bund le  we have 

been dea l ing  w i th ,  BB34B and i t  commences a t  page 1558  

o f  tha t  bund le .   

MS MYENI :    I  have i t  cha i rpe rson,  an  a f f idav i t .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r  th is  i s  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  

we have not  come to  ye t  and so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  request  tha t  

we enter  i t  as  an  exh ib i t ,  th is  w i l l  be  in  accordance w i th  

the  index Exh ib i t  DD34B.25,  bu t  Cha i r  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  

request  be fo re  we ente r  i t  in to  the  reco rd  tha t  I  can g i ve  

the  exp lanat ion  o f  why I  am ca l l ing  i t  a  s ta tement  and not  

an  a f f idav i t ,  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  i t  says  a f f idav i t  on  the  

f i rs t  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes I  see tha t .   I  th ink  you are  go ing  to  

te l l  me what  I  jus t  p icked up.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  the  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths  d id  no t  

s ign .  

ADV HOFMEYR:  Wel l  i t  i s  no t  qu i te  tha t ,  the  s i tua t ion  is  

such tha t  th is  was prepared by  Mr  Bezu idenhout  and  

s igned on the  29 t h  o f  October  2020,  you see tha t  da te  on  

the  las t  page where  the  Commiss ioner  shou ld  have s igned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  –  and we have these  

communica t ions on  th is  w i th  the  Commiss ion ,  he  was a t  20 

tha t  po in t  in  i so la t ion  fo r  reasons  s im i la r  to  Ms Myen i  and 

so  what  he  d id  was he prov ided  th is  s igned,  he  had – i t  

was prepared as  an  a f f idav i t  because he had eve ry  

in ten t ion  o f  depos ing  to  i t ,  and the  ar rangement  we 

reached w i th  h im is  tha t  as  soon as  he  is  in  a  pos i t ion  to  
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go  be fore  a  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths  he  w i l l  p roper ly  depose  

to  i t  so  tha t  tha t  w i l l  come before  the  Commiss ion  bu t  we 

needed to  have th is  vers ion  to  pu t  Ms Myen i  today  so  we  

made tha t  a r rangement  in  the  c i rcumstances,  w i th  your  

leave.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So i f  we cou ld  en ter  i t  as  EXHIBIT 

DD34B.25.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  DD34B.?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   .25 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    25 ,  the  s ta tement /a f f idav i t  by  Mr  N ico  

Bezu idenhout  s ta r t ing  a t  page 1558 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  

DD34B.25.    I  take  i t  you  w i l l  seek to  have to  have i t  

rep laced w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th  one wh ich  has go t  the  

Commiss ioner ’s  s tamp as we l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So fo r  now I  jus t  want  to  enab le  Ms  20 

Myen i  to  respond shou ld  you  w ish  to ,  to  what  Mr  

Bezu idenhout  conf i rms here .    I f  we s tar t  a t  page 1559 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  we –  I  guess we s ta r t  by  say ing  

who he is .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He was ac t ing  CEO of  SAA f rom 10 

November  2014 to  10  Ju ly  2015.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  he  says ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes you may proceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  I  rea l i se  t ha t  I  have made an er ror  

in  da tes ,  and I  need to  jus t  cor rec t  tha t ,  you w i l l  see  here  

a t  parag raph 4  on  page 1559 Mr  Bezu idenhout  says there  10 

f i rs t :  

“ I  do  no t  car ry  any awareness o f  any meet ing  Ms  

Myen i  had a t  BOSASA’s  o f f i ces  and was never  

in fo rmed o f  such. ”  

He was asked genera l l y  to  ind ica te  to  the  Commiss ion  what  

knowledge he had o f  any such meet ings,  so  he  ind ica tes  

f i rs t l y  he  had no awareness o f  any  meet ing  tha t  Ms  Myen i ,  

you may have had a t  BOSASA’s  o f f i ces ,  bu t  then what  he  

goes on to  say is  tha t  you d id  shor t l y  a f te r  he  assumed h is  

ac t ing  CEO ro le  a t  SAA in  November  o f  2015 and a t  a  t ime 20 

when A i r  Chefs  was exper ienc ing  opera t iona l  d i f f i cu l t ies 

suggest  tha t  A i r  Chefs  shou ld  cons ide r  engag ing  w i th  and 

get t ing  adv ice  f rom BOSASA and he sa id  tha t  you had sa id  

tha t  BOSASA was exper ienced in  p rov id ing  mea ls  a t  la rge  

sca le  on  a  da i l y  bas is  and he goes on says tha t  they,  
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acco rd ing  to  you,  Ms Myen i ,  had proven th is  capab i l i t y  in  

the  Pr ison Serv i ce ,  and he sa id  I  am under  cor rec t ion  I  

seem to  reca l l  she a lso  ment ioned hosp i ta ls .    

 Do you remember  hav ing  tha t  conversa t ion  w i th  Mr  

Bezu idenhout?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond I  wou ld  no t  

want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  goes on and says tha t  you adv ised 

tha t  the  CEO of  BOSASA was t rave l l ing  in  Johannesburg ,  

he  sa id  i t  was on a  Saturday morn ing  as  I  reca l l  and  tha t  10 

Ms Myen i  was in  Johannesburg  on  the  day and you asked  

h im i f  he  cou ld  jo in  fo r  an  in t roductory  meet ing  a t  the 

In te rcont inenta l  Hote l .   Do you reca l l  hav ing  tha t  

conversa t ion  w i th  Mr  Bezu idenhout?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  so  tha t  I  don ’ t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  I  ind ica ted  tha t  I  had made a  da te  

er ror,  I  want  to  jus t  exp la in  why I  th ink  I  made a  da te  er ror  

bu t  I  suspect  tha t  i t  m igh t  no t  be  my er ror  and tha t  i t  may 

be necessary  to  go  back to  Mr  Bezu idenhout .   You see  20 

what  I  no t iced tha t  as  I  was go ing  th rough the  a f f idav i t  tha t  

Mr  Bezu idenhout  says a t  parag raph 1  tha t  he  was the  

Act ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i ce r  fo r  SAA f rom 10 November  

2014 to  approx imate ly  10  Ju l y  2015 and then  he  goes on  

to  ta lk  about  these in te rac t ions and he ta lks  abou t  them 
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hav ing  taken p lace in  November  o f  2015 and he says tha t  

tha t  was shor t l y  a f te r  assuming h is  ac t ing  ro le  a t  SAA,  

Cha i r  tha t  da te  doesn ’ t  make sense in  the  contents  o f  

parag raph 1 ,  so  we a re  go ing  to  need to  ge t  c la r i t y  f rom Mr  

Bezu idenhout .   I t  may be tha t  there  is  an  er ror  in  the  year  

tha t  he  pu t  in  2015 when he means 2014,  because tha t  

wou ld  accord  w i th  h is  f i r s t  parag raph where  he  says he  

took up  the  pos i t ion  f rom approx imate ly  10  November  

2014.   I t  i s  then cons is ten t  to  say  shor t l y  thereaf te r  there  

was th is  in te rac t i on .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And cer ta in ly  my knowledge is  tha t  he 

was there  a t  tha t  t ime,  i t  i s  November  2014 to  m id  2015,  he  

is  no t  in  tha t  ro le  a t  the  end o f  2015,  because tha t ’s  when  

a  lo t  i s  happen ing  w i th  Ms Mpshe  who was f i l l i ng  the  ro le  

and the  Mr  Zwane who rep laced  her  so  tha t  c rea ted the  

concern  in  my mind about  today,  bu t  sub jec t  to  a 

c la r i f i ca t ion  f rom Mr  Bezu idenhou t  tha t  i f  there  i s  an  er ror  

in  h is  pa ragraph  4  i t  shou ld  be  November  2014 and not  

November  2015.   I  then want  to  go  on to  te l l ing  Ms  Myen i  20 

what  he  sa id  about  the  meet ing  and fo r  p resent  purposes I  

wou ld  l i ke  us  to  assume tha t  i t  took  p lace in  November  o f  

2014,  g iven what  I  have jus t  sa id .  

 So i f  we go to  paragraph 5  on  page 1559 tha t  i s  

where  he  ind ica ted  tha t  you sa id  tha t  the  CEO of  BOSASA 
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wanted to  have th is  meet ing  and you asked h im whether  he  

cou ld  jo in  i t  a t  the  In te rcont inenta l  Hote l  and  then a t  

parag raph 6  he  says:  

“When I  a r r i ved a t  the  ho te l  Ms Myen i  in t roduced 

me to  Mr  Gav in  Watson as  BOSASA’s  CEO and Mr  

Ange lo  Agr izz i  as  COO.   I  cannot  spec i f i ca l l y  reca l l  

bu t  there  may have been a  th i rd  unknown person  

but  I  am not  sure . ”  

He says:  

“A f te r  in t roduct ions Mr  Watson proceeded to  do  a  10 

prayer  and then d iscuss ions went  in to  genera l  

top ics  and took a  re l ig ious tone. ”  

Ms Myen i  d id  you  know Mr  Watson as  a  re l ig ious person? 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you eve r  in tend o ther  meet ings  

where  Mr  Watson  wou ld  open the  meet ing  w i th  a  prayer?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    He goes on a t  paragraph 7  on  page 1559 20 

to  say:  

”Wi thout  the  d iscuss ion  hav ing  any ob jec t i ve  as  fa r  

as  I  know o ther  than be ing  an i n t roduct ion  one o f  

the  par t ies ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  wh ich  one,  re fe renced  

SAA Secur i t y  Tender  tha t  was in  p rogress a t  the  
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t ime and as  I  reca l l  appeared to  quest ion  whethe r  

the  tender  was be ing  fa i r l y  hand led . ”  

He says:  

“ I  s ta ted  tha t  wh i l s t  I  am not  d i rec t l y  invo l ved w i th  

the  tender  SAA’s  tender  p rocesses enta i l  var ious  

checks and ba lances and tha t  no  in fo rmat ion  has 

been b rought  to  me [ tha t  i s  h im]  to  ind i ca te  tha t  the  

process as  fa r  as  the  secur i t y  tender  was not  be ing  

fa i r l y  hand led . ”  

He then goes on a t  paragraph 8  and he says:  10 

“One o f  the  par t ies  [aga in  he  doesn ’ t  reca l l  wh ich  

one]  tu rn  to  BOSASA’s  exper ience  in  runn ing  l a rge  

sca le  canteens and tha t  there  may have been  

ass is tance in  th i s  regard  a t  A i r  Chefs .   He sa id  I  

adv ised tha t  the  management  a t  A i r  Chefs  w i l l  

rev iew a l l  poss ib le  supp l ie rs  and  in te rvent ions as  

the  need to  improve A i r  Chefs  de l i very  was top i ca l  

amongst  S  A Group Management . ”  

Do you reca l l  those d i scuss ions hav ing  taken p lace a t  th is  

meet ing  in  November  o f  2014?  20 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    He says a t  paragraph 9  tha t  the  meet ing  

then conc luded,  as  he  reca l l s  i t ,  w i th  Mr  Watson  ask ing  

whethe r :  
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“ I  had any persona l  secur i t y  concerns,  and me 

adv is ing  tha t  no  I  had not  and tha t  SAA Secur i t y  

D iv i s ion  as  is  cus tomary  fo r  CEO’s  or  Act ing  CEO’s  

had  pe r fo rmed secur i t y  r i sk  assessment  a t  my  

proper ty. ”  

And he goes on and says:  

“The meet ing  then conc luded. ”  

Do you remember  tha t  d iscuss ion  hav ing  taken p lace a t  

tha t  meet ing?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  10 

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    He says a t  paragraph 10:  

“Fo l lowing the  meet ing  I  ob ta ined  conf i rmat ion  f rom 

SAA’s  head o f  secur i t y  tha t  the  then cur ren t  tender  

p rocess fo r  SAA Secur i t y  Serv ices  were  be ing  

conducted fu l l y  compl ian t  to  SAA’s  procurement  

p rocedures. ”  

And he goes on f ina l l y  to  say a t  pa rag raph 11:  

“ I  fu r ther  no t i f ied  the  A i r  Chefs  Act ing  CEO of  

BOSASA’s  c la imed capab i l i t y  fo r  cons idera t ion  20 

amongst  the  o ther  poss ib le  se rv ice  p rov ide rs  fo r  

in te rvent ions the  A i r  Chefs  team were  cons ide r ing  

a t  the  t ime. ”  

And then he says he  had no subsequent  in te rac t i ons w i th  

BOSASA.   D id  those,  Myen i  aga in  jus t  fo r  you r  ve rs ion  do  
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you  conf i rm tha t  any o f  those accounts  o f  the  meet ing  took 

p lace?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  the  ev idence about  the 

secur i t y  ins ta l la t ion  a t  your  home was f i rs t  rece ived by  the  

Commiss ion  th rough Mr  Agr i zz i  and as  I  ind ica ted  to  you  

ear l ie r  Mr  Le  Roux then gave ev idence to  conf i rm  tha t  he  

had done the  ins ta l la t ion  a t  you r  home in  R ichards Bay,  he  

gave the  approx imate  va lue  o f  i t ,  he  ind ica ted  how many  10 

days i t  has  taken  and then the  Commiss ion  has ident i f ied 

tha t  in  October  o f  las t  yea r  a  search  and se izure  war ran t  

was obta ined by  the   Hawks in  re la t ion  to  the  ev idence tha t  

had been g iven a t  the  Commiss ion ,  a re  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The search  and se izure  –  we l l  fo r  

reasons tha t  w i l l  become apparen t  I  don ’ t  ac tua l l y  th ink  I  

shou ld  re fer  to  i t  as  a  search  and se izu re ,  an  opera t ion  

took p lace in  October  o f  las t  year  pursuant  to  tha t  war ran t  20 

a t  you r  res idence  in  R ichards Bay,  can you conf i rm tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  so  I  don ’ t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Le  Roux was invo lved  in  tha t  

opera t ion ,  as  was Capta in  Nev in  o f  the  Hawks and  both  o f  



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 63 of 265 
 

them had deposed to  a f f idav i t s  wh ich  appear  in  your  

bund le  Ms Myen i ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  f i rs t  Mr  Nev in ’s  

a f f idav i t ,  you w i l l  f ind  tha t  a t  DD34B a t  page1936.   No 

sor ry,  I  th ink  tha t  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :    I  have i t  Cha i rpe rson .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  th ink  i t  s ta r ts  a t  1941.   Oh sor ry,  I  go t  

confused . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :    I  have i t  Cha i rpe rson .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Le t ’s  s ta r t  –  apo log ies  cha i r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  

to  s ta r t  a t  1936 but  tha t  i s  no t  Capta in  Nev in ’s  a f f idav i t ,  10 

tha t  i s  R ichard  Le  Roux ’s  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So do you have  1936 in  f ron t  o f  you Ms 

Myen i?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you got  page 1936 in  f ron t  o f  you? 

MS MYENI :    Yes I  do  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:  Chai r  th is  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime we a re  coming  

to  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Le  Roux,  now th is  i s  ac tua l l y  the  4 t h 

a f f idav i t  tha t  Mr  Le  Roux has prov ided to  the  Commiss ion .   20 

May I  request  tha t  we enter  i t  as  Exh ib i t  DD34B.37 in  

acco rdance w i th  the  index.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  R ichard  Le  Roux 

s tar t ing  a t  page 1936 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  DD34B.37.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  and Ms Myen i  what  Mr  Le  Roux 
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beg ins  by  do ing  i s  rea l l y  jus t  fo r  loca t ing  the  read he ta lks  

a  b i t  about  the  prev ious ev idence he has g i ven,  he  

conf i rms aga in  tha t  he  d id  the  ins ta l la t ion ,  tha t  there  were  

invo i ces ident i f ied  wh ich  re f lec ted  the  equ ipment  tha t  he 

purchased between the  21s t  o f  May and the  26 t h  o f  May 

2014.   He aga in  conf i rms tha t  i t  took  approx imate ly  21  

days,  he  conf i rms who he was  w i th  when he d id  the  

ins ta l la t ion ,  he  conf i rms where  they s tayed,  e tce te ra ,  and 

he conc ludes,  a t  page 1937 to  say  a t  parag raph 13:  

“A l l  the  expenses re la t ing  to  the  secur i t y  10 

equ ipment ,  the  costs ,  the  labour,  the  

accommodat ion  and the  t rave l  were  a l l  pa id  fo r  by  

BOSASA or  A f r i can G loba l  Opera t ions. ”  

In  paragraph 14 he says:  

“ I  in  my duty  as  head o f  spec ia l  p ro jec t s  have no 

persona l  knowledge o f  what  i f  any  ar rangements  

had been made by  BOSASA and Ms Myen i  in  regard  

to  the  costs  made by  BOSASA or  A f r i can G loba l  

Opera t ions. ”  

Ms Myen i  I  th ink  I   asked  you ea r l ie r  bu t  in  case I  d idn ’ t  20 

can I  jus t  conf i rm d id  you ever  re imburse  BOSASA for  the 

R486 514,63 tha t  was ins ta l la t ion  costs?   

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you hear  tha t  Ms Myen i ,  can you s t i l l  

hea r  us?   I t  looks  l i ke  she can ’ t  hear  us .  

MS MYENI :    There  was a  –  there  was no –  ja ,  I  can hear  
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you  now Cha i rpe rson,  there  was no  connect ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  Ms Hofmeyr  w i l l  repeat  he r  

quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  I  was j us t  ask ing  Ms Myen i  fo r  

conf i rmat ion  whether  you eve r  re imbursed BOSASA for  the  

R486 514,63 tha t  th is  ins ta l la t ion  cost  a t  you r  home? 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond  Cha i rpe rson,  so  I  avo id  

incr im inat ing  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess Ms  Hofmeyr  when  you say 

ins ta l la t ion  costs ,  i t  sounds l i ke  i t  is  jus t  labour  costs .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    No I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You mean inc lud ing  mater ia l?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed,  indeed.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  tha t  i s  an  es t imate  o f  the  

approx imate  cost ,  th is  i s  dea l t  w i th  a t  parag raph 12,  o f  the  

equ ipment  and labour  as  he  prev ious ly  se t  ou t ,  thank you 

fo r  tha t  c la r i f i ca t ion  Cha i r.   Cha i r  jus t  be fo re  I  cont inue 

w i th  the  quest ions I  have jus t  been  sent  a  no te  by  the  

Secre tar ia t  o f  the  Commiss ion  tha t  they are  hav ing  20 

d i f f i cu l t y  mak ing  contac t  w i th  ms Myen i ’s  lawyers  to  

a r range fo r  the  drop o f f  o f  the  hard  copy f i le  in  Pre tor ia .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So I  have been asked i f  I  cou ld  j us t  ask  

my lea rned f r iend  i f  they  can p lease make ar rangements  so  
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tha t  tha t  contac t  can be made so  tha t  we can fac i l i ta te  the  

drop o f f  as  soon as  you a re  ab le  to  do  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR:  Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and somebody w i l l  te l l  them who to  

contac t  w i th in  the  Commiss ion  to  make tha t  poss ib le?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  as  I  unders tand i t  the  Commiss ion  

has the  contac t  number  and is  endeavour ing  to  contac t  the  

lega l  representa t i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   He hasn ’ t  answered those ca l l s  bu t  the  

person is  wa i t ing  to  make the  de l i very,  so  jus t  so  tha t  you  

know we are  ready and wa i t ing  a t  any po in t  tha t  contac t  

can be made,  we can fac i l i ta te  the  de l i very,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    Because tha t  de l i very  i s  u rgent  

le t  me f ind  ou t  whethe r  you th ink  you cou ld  be  o f  

ass is tance in  th is  regard?  

ADV BUTHELIZI :    Sorry  Cha i r,  un less  we take f i ve  

m inutes  and see what  we can do,  because now we have got  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .    Okay le t  us  take  a  f i ve  

m inute  ad journment  so  tha t  –  because I  was th ink ing  tha t  i f  

we take  a  shor t  ad journment  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  Ms Myen i  

who hears  what  Ms Hofmeyr  has j us t  sa id  m ight  on  her  s ide  

a lso  contac t  her  a t to rney to  say p lease make yourse l f  
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ava i lab le ,  the  Commiss ion  is  t ry ing  to  contac t  you to  

de l i ver  a  bund le ,  so  le t ’s  take  sha l l  we say ten  m inutes ,  i t  

i s  twenty  f i ve  past  e leven,  le t  us  resume a t  twenty  f i ve  to  

twe lve .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  hope that  i t  has been sorted out? 10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed Chai r  contact  has been made and 

arrangements are now being made for the handover.   So we 

real ly are very indebted to you.   Thank you so much.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No thank you.   Okay let  us proceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  before we took the adjournment and 

Ms Myeni  we were looking at  Mr Richard Le Roux’s fourth 

aff idavi t  before the commission and we were at  page 1937 

and I  would l ike us now to turn up page 1938 which 

commences wi th paragraph 15.    

Chair  and Ms Myeni  i t  is qui te – i t  is not  a very long 20 

aff idavi t  and i t  is qui te an important  piece of  evidence before 

the commission and so I  am going to propose just  to read 

parts of  i t  into the record also for your benef i t  Ms Myeni .   I t  

has formed part  o f  your bundle but  you may not  have had an 

opportuni ty to look at  i t  in detai l .    
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What Mr Le Roux starts to recount f rom paragraph 15 

is an operat ion that  he was involved in in October of  last  

year and just  to – Ms Myeni  are you… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second are you – are you set t led 

Ms Myeni? 

MS MYENI:   I  am Chairperson thank you.   I  have – I  have the 

page in f ront  of  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So Mr Le Roux was involved in th is 

operat ion in October of  2019 and I  just  want to locate us in  10 

t ime before – as I  d id before the break.    

 Mr Agrizzi  g ives evidence in ear ly 2019.   Mr Le Roux 

himsel f  g ives evidence in mid-2019 and then this is what 

fo l lows.    

 There is an operat ion conducted by the Hawks at  Ms 

Myeni ’s home in Richards Bay and what Mr Le Roux is now 

going to tel l  us about in his aff idavi t .  

 So he says at  paragraph 15:  

“ In or about  October 2019 I  was taken to 

Durban by vehicle wi th Captain Nevin of  the 20 

South Afr ican Pol ice Services the Hawks 

together wi th other members of  the South 

Afr ican Pol ice Services the Hawks.   Capta in 

Nevin requested me to assist  h im in point ing 

out  both the premises and the equipment  
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mysel f  and my team instal led at  Ms Myeni ’s  

house on the inst ruct ions of  BOSASA and 

Gavin Watson.   I  remember there was also a 

pol ice photographer that  came down with the 

group of  people.   Captain Nevin wi l l  be able 

to give more detai ls as to  the names and 

ranks of  the people that  came down with us.”  

 And I  just  pause there to indicate we have obta ined 

Chair  an aff idavi t  of  Captain Nevin.   Mr Le Roux goes on to 

say:  10 

“To the best  of  my recol lect ion we went down 

to Durban on a Wednesday in  October 2019 

where we slept  over at  a hotel  in Durban we 

lef t  Thursday morning for Richards Bay by 

road.   We t ravel led down in two vehicles.   

Capta in Nevin asked me i f  I  was in a posi t ion 

to point  out  the premises to him as he did not  

want to give me the address and when we 

arr ived in Richards Bay I  took them to the 

premises and pointed i t  out .   When we 20 

arr ived at  the premises Ms Myeni  was not  

there and we were not  able to gain access to  

the premises.   We spent  many hours si t t ing 

outside the premises and the South Af r ican 

Pol ice Services were busy in  te lephonic 
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d iscussions wi th both the State Advocate and 

what I  understood were Ms Myeni ’s lawyers.   

We did not  gain access to the house and 

then we lef t  to return to the hotel  in Durban.   

We t ravel led at  approximately six  am the 

next  morning back to Richards Bay and af ter  

var ious phone cal ls between the lawyers 

when we arr ived there we were given access 

to only certain parts of  the premises.   I  

personal ly wai ted outside unt i l  I  was told by 10 

Capta in Nevin to  come onto the premises.   

We only gained access on the Fr iday. ”  

 Ms Myeni  I  am now over at  page 1939 and I  am 

reading f rom paragraph 25.   What Mr Nevin then – sorry Mr 

Le Roux then says is:  

“When I  went onto the premises I  was able to  

point  out  var ious of  the equipment that  I  had 

instal led but  th is was only on the outside of  

the premises and I  pointed out  cer tain i tems 

inside the premises.   The Hawks were unable 20 

to get  access to other parts of  the house as 

these were closed off  wi th Trel l idor and no-

one had keys in order to open same.  The 

main equipment  that  I  together  wi th  my 

technic ians had instal led was contained in  
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the main off ice inside the house to which no 

access was provided on the day of  the 

search warrant  execut ion.   This consisted of  

the switches and the mains system that  

operated the securi ty equipment.   The Hawks 

were also unable to get  access to the 

passage where I  and my technic ians had 

instal led the a larm panel  which had 

control led the passives and the beams for  

the alarm system.  The Hawks were also 10 

unable to get  access to the garage where I  

had instal led the energiser which had 

control led the elect r ic fence which 

surrounded the premises.   I  recal l  that  whi le I  

was doing the instal lat ion there was a 

standalone safe inside the room that  was 

used as an off ice.   Towards the garage there 

was also a large walk- in safe door and this  

safe did not  appear to be in use.   I  mysel f  

have no personal  knowledge as to  why the 20 

Hawks did not  gain further access into the 

premises and I  very,  ver i ly be l ieve that  

Capta in Nevin can give facts relat ing to why 

no further access was obtained in  terms of  

the search warrant .   From the securi ty  
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equipment that  access was obtained we 

managed to obtain ser ia l  numbers which 

were taken down by the Hawks and recorded.   

Members of  the Hawks took photographs and 

kept  notes of  what I  had pointed out  to 

them.”  

 And now from page 1940.  

“Af ter the Hawks had completed the search 

of  the premises I  can conf i rm no securi ty 

equipment were taken away f rom the – were 10 

taken f rom the premises.   We then lef t  to 

return to Jo 'burg.   I  further recal l  that  whi le  

we were t ravel l ing back to Johannesburg I  

was in the motor vehicle when Captain Nevin 

received a phone cal l  f rom one of  his fe l low 

off icers.   The context  of  the conversat ion 

that  I  p icked up was that  Ms Myeni  was 

extremely upset  about  the way in  which the 

search warrant  had been executed and 

conducted and she had phoned a very senior  20 

person in Durban who had contacted Captain 

Nevin’s off ices in order to reg ister  her  

complaint . ”  

 Ms Myeni  before I  ask for your comment on those 

events that  took place in October last  year  I  would l ike us 
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just  to look at  what the search and seizure warrant  ent i t led 

The South Afr ican Pol ice Service to do at  your premises.  

 And you wi l l  f ind the search and seizure warrant  

at tached to Captain Nevin’s aff idavi t  which is the next  

document in the bundle.  I t  commences at  page 1941.  Do 

you have that? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chair  i f  we could enter th is aff idavi t  of  Mr 

Charles Nevin into the record as Exhibi t  DD34[b] .38.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So the aff idavi t  of  Mr Charles Nevin 10 

start ing at  page 1941 is admit ted as Exhibi t  DD34[b] .38.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So Chai r  I  wi l l  return i f  necessary in a 

moment to the actual  aff idavi t  i tsel f  but  what Captain Nevin 

does is he gives his account which in substant ia l  measure 

accords wi th the account that  I  have just  given of  Mr Le 

Roux and then he at taches to h is aff idavi t  both the warrant  

i tsel f  which you wi l l  see commencing at  page 1946 as wel l  as 

the appl icat ion that  was made for  the search and seizure 

warrant  which commences at  page 1950 and that  is 

accompanied by the aff idavi t  support ing the search and 20 

seizure warrant  being issued and that  commences at  page 

1591.  

 Now what Captain Nevin conf i rms he was the 

deponent both to the aff idavi t  support ing the appl icat ion for 

the search warrant  as wel l  as the aff idavi t  that  he has 
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provided to the commission to expla in what happened on the 

days of  the execut ion of  the warrant? 

 You see what he says in essence to the Magistrate 

before he came in order to obta in the search warrant  is that  

– and Chai r  I  am going to paraphrase a bi t  and read 

pert inent  parts where i t  is appropria te to do so.   And also for  

you benef i t  Ms Myeni .    

 Capta in Nevin conf i rms in his aff idavi t  pursuant  to  

which the search and warrant  was given that  he had been 

assigned to invest igate the commiss ion of  the offence that  is 10 

deal t  wi th further  below in the SAPS cr iminal  invest igat ion 

team.  And at  page 15 – 1952 paragraph 4.2 he says:  

“The offence being invest igated at  th is point  

in th is t ime in the above invest igat ion which 

is relevant  to th is appl icat ion and which is  

submit ted is at  least  reasonably capable of  

being bel ieve or  suspected to have been 

commit ted or are being commit ted as 

[00:10:12]  more detai l  below is as fol lows”.  

 And then i t  is offences in relat ion to  corrupt  act iv i t ies 20 

re lat ing to publ ic  a off icer that  is then set  out .   Those are 

provisions f rom PRECCA as I  understand the legislat ion.  Oh 

Chair  i t  seems that  we might  have lost  connect ion to Ms 

Myeni .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   We looking into i t  I  can see.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  us wai t  hopeful ly the technicians 

wi l l  sort  i t  out  quickly.    

MS MYENI:   I  am back Chairperson.  There was – there was 

a connect ion problem. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay al r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  – but  I  have been fol lowing what – 

I  have been hear ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You have been hear ing.  

MS MYENI:    What evidence leader was saying.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So what the aff idavi t  does is i t  ident i f ies 

that  there is an invest igat ion and reasonable grounds for  

suspect ing that  offences related to corrupt  act iv i t ies may 

have taken place.   And the evidence is then set  out  and that  

is the evidence of  Mr Le Roux that  was provided to th is  

commission.    

 Chair  you wi l l  see that  and Ms Myeni  at  page 1953 

f rom paragraph 5.2.   So what Captain Nevin is effect ively 

doing here is  going before a Magist rate to  get  a  search and 20 

seizure warrant  of  Ms Myeni ’s premises based on the 

evidence that  Mr Richard Le Rous presented to this  

commission and that  is set  out  c lear ly  in paragraph 5.2 

because he makes reference to the statement of  Mr Le Roux 

before the commission.  
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 And then he says that  that  evidence is  enough to 

warrant  the search and seizure – to warrant  the issue of  the 

search and seizure warrants and he concludes wi th 

something that  I  do bel ieve i t  is necessary to read verbat im 

into the record.   And that  appears at  page 1956 f rom 

paragraph 9 on that  page.   

 You see paragraph 9 is headed The need for the 

search and seizure of  the art ic les referred above.   And what  

Capta in Nevin says in th is aff idavi t  pursuant  to  which a 

warrant  was issued is the fol lowing;  10 

“ I t  is submit ted that  there is a need to secure 

the art ic les concerned by way of  a  search for 

and seizure of  the art ic les at  the premises 

concerned and in terms of  a warrant  that  has 

been appl ied for and issued. ”  

9.2 

“The reasons are:  

The above art ic les wi l l  form par t  of  the 

evidence to st rengthen the t ruthfulness of  

the a l legat ions made against  the suspect  20 

thus strengthening the state case.   The said 

Ms Dudu Myeni  is the al leged perpetrator  of  

the offence concerned.   Any other manner of  

at tempt ing to secure the art ic les concerned 

wi l l  forewarn the said Ms Myeni .   In th is 
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c i rcumstance the said Ms Myeni  is l ikely to 

take al l  reasonable steps she can to hide,  

destroy or otherwise prevent  the art ic les 

being secured for the purposes of  the 

invest igat ion. ”  

 And then he seeks a warrant  in the terms that  were 

at tached to his aff idavi t  and that  was a warrant  ent i t l ing the 

Hawks to go to Ms Myeni ’s premises to obtain access,  to  

search for the var ious art ic les of  secur i ty equipment that  Mr 

Le Roux had test i f ied about before this commission and to 10 

seize those art ic les because and I  emphasise again their  

v iew was that  there would otherwise be a r isk that  that  

equipment could be hidden,  destroyed or otherwise 

prevented f rom being secured for the purposes of  an 

invest igat ion.   And they made i t  c lear  that  that  would be 

evidence necessary in any subsequent case in involv ing Ms 

Myeni .  

 So Ms Myeni  I  have indicated to you the basis upon 

which the warrant  was sought and obtained and I  have 

indicated to you what Ms Le Roux has said about  how that  20 

search warrant  was executed.   Can you conf i rm whether  

there events did take place as Mr Le Roux descr ibes them in 

October of  last  year? 

MS MYENI:   May I  invoke the pr iv i lege Chairperson of  not  

responding to the quest ion so that  I  do not  incr iminate 
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mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  I  would l ike to put  i t  to you that  i t  

is qui te remarkable that  the pol ice serv ice our country could 

obtain a search and seizure warrant  to secure evidence that  

may be relevant  in a cr iminal  t r ia l  to arr ive at  your premises 

to seek to execute that  warrant  and to be kept  outs ide the 

premises for a fu l l  day only to return the second day.   Were 

you involved in barr ing the ir  entry  for  the f i rst  day to your  

premises? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson may I  not  respond to the quest ion 10 

that  is being asked so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   When the pol ice arr ived on the second day 

they were then permit ted access but  they were not  permit ted 

to access the whole of  the premises.   Were you involved in  

giv ing an inst ruct ion that  they could only access parts of  the 

premises? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson may I  not  answer the quest ion so 

that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You gave evidence yesterday that  no-one 

accesses your premises wi thout  your  permission.   So I  put  i t  20 

to you that  i t  is  l ike ly that  you were responsible for the 

instruct ions that  denied access to certa in parts of  the 

premises.  Can you conf i rm that? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   The pol ice were there wi th Mr Le Roux 

whose evidence before this commission is that  he made 

these instal lat ions himsel f  and he told them that  in the parts 

of  the house and the garage that  they were not  permi t ted to  

access he had instal led the very equipment that  the search 

and seizure warrant  ent i t led the pol ice to look for and seize.   

Did you give a speci f ic instruct ion that  they would not  be 

permit ted to do that? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  i f  you did give this instruct ion do 

you have any idea of  why the instruct ion was abided? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  maybe you can assist  the 

commission wi th indicat ing to us how i t  can happen that  a 

search and seizure warrant  is author ised by a Magistrate.  

The pol ice t ravel  down to your home in Richards Bay.   That  

they are delayed for the f i rst  day.   They return on the second 

day in ci rcumstances where the very reason that  they got  20 

this warrant  is because they sa id that  there reasonable 

grounds for suspect ing the equipment may be hidden or 

destroyed or otherwise prevented f rom being accessed.  And 

then when they f inal ly are given access they only are given 

access to parts of  the house.   How does that  happen Ms 
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Myeni? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson may I  not  respond so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   The f inal  point  I  want to pick up on is you  

gave evidence yesterday that  you do not  have a safe ei ther  

in your  off ice,  in your house or  in  your garage.   Mr Le Roux 

says you do.   Is he ly ing? 

MS MYENI:   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  I  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  you are  –  10 

we l l  you have been and you a re  -  remain  a  power fu l  

person.   You are  a  person who  can de lay  the  po l i ce  

execut ing  a  search  and se i zu re  war ran t  as  recent ly  as  

October  o f  las t  yea r.   Do you have  a  response to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   I  cannot  comment  Cha i rperson on somebody ’s  

v iew un less  I  am asked a  ques t ion  about  Ms Hofmeyr ’s  

v iew Cha i rperson .   He has made a  v iew,  i t  i s  h is  op in ion .   I  

am –  I  cannot  comment  on  somebody ’s  op in ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  you r  way o f  engagements  w i th  

ins t i tu t ions  o f  the  s ta te  i s  someth ing  on  wh ich  th is  20 

commiss ion  has a lso  rece ived o ther  ev idence and tha t  was 

ev idence in  re la t ion  to  the  ac t iv i t ies  o f  the  s ta te  secur i t y  

agency a t  SAA wh i le  you were  cha i rperson o f  the  board  

and tha t  i s  the  top ic  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  move to  next .  

 And jus t  w i th  the  [00 :20 :04]  Cha i r  I  –  I  o rd inar i l y  
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wou ld  have conc luded the  BOSASA ev idence but  we w i l l  

come back to  the  t rave l  benef i t s  once Ms Myen i  has the  

bund le .  But  we are  now go ing  to  move to  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  

Agency.  

 Ms Myen i  you had pro tec t ion  se rv ices  prov ided to  

you f rom the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency,  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond  Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You rece ived those pro tec t ion  serv i ces  

accord ing  to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Y before  th is  commiss ion  10 

f rom a  spec ia l  opera t ions un i t  w i th in  the  S ta te Secur i t y  

Agency.   Can you  conf i rm tha t?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson to  avo id  

incr im inat ing  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  when Mr  Y gave ev idence  one o f  

the  th ings tha t  was a t tached to  h is  a f f idav i t  was the  h igh  

leve l  rev iew pane ls  rev iew in to  the  ac t iv i t ies  o f  the  S ta te  

Secur i t y  Agency.   That  pane l  had found tha t  th is  spec ia l  

opera t ions un i t  o f  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency was quote  “a  

law unto  i t se l f ”  and i t  was found to  have “d i rec t l y  served  20 

the  in te res ts  o f  the  execut ives” .  

 Cha i r  and Ms Myen i  I  do  no t  suggest  we go the re  

bu t  jus t  fo r  the  record  tha t  re fe rence is  in  Exh ib i t  DD23 a t  

page 237.  

 What  tha t  repor t  a lso  conf i rms i s  tha t  those who 
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rece ived p ro tec t ion  serv i ces  f rom the  spec ia l  opera t ions 

un i t  were  no t  en t i t led  to  i t .    

 Ms Myen i  be fore  you rece ived the  serv ices  d id  you  

ever  make enqu i r ies  as  to  whether  you wou ld  be  lawfu l l y  

secur ing  them? 

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

to  avo id  incr im ina t ing  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr  Y ’s  ev idence was tha t  no  secur i t y  

assessment  seems to  have been done on you before  these  

pro tec t ion  serv ices  were  prov ided  accord ing  to  the  records  10 

o f  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency.  Can you d ispute  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   For  the  record  Cha i r  tha t  aspect  o f  Mr  

Y ’s  ev idence can  be found in  the  reco rd  a t  Exh ib i t  DD23 

page 12 paragraph 5 .3 .  

 The ev idence o f  Mr  Y,  Mr  Moonsamy whose a f f idav i t  

was presented when Mr  Y gave  ev idence is  tha t  those 

S ta te  Secur i t y  personne l  who were  prov id ing  you w i th  

p ro tec t ion  serv i ces  were  a lso  on  occas ion  i nvo lved in  20 

conf isca t ing  i tems f rom members  o f  the  board  o f  SAA wh i le  

you were  i t s  cha i rperson.   Do you d ispute  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  no t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ev idence has  been prev ious l y  been  
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rece ived by  th i s  commiss ion  tha t  you on occas ion  wou ld  

ins is t  tha t  members  o f  the  board  and management  o f  SAA 

leave a l l  record ing  dev i ces –  we l l  dev i ces capab le  o f  

record ing  so  ce l l  phones,  lap tops e t ce te ra  ou ts ide  o f  

meet ing  rooms and you fu r ther  wou ld  requ i re  any no tes  

f rom meet ings to  be  to rn  up  befo re  peop le  le f t  the  meet ing .   

Do you d ispute  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to  tha t  

quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  do  you know why you were  10 

prov ided w i th  these serv ices  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  they 

were  no t  lawfu l l y  p rocured?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  why  d id  you ar range  fo r  the 

S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency to  conduct  a  secur i t y  ve t t ing  

opera t ion  on  the  managers  and suppor t  s ta f f  a t  SAA/  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rperson the  quest ion  tha t  i s  be ing  asked 

is  fac t  –  i s  a  fac tua l  quest ion .   Why d id  I  a r range or  

somebody has a l leged or  i t  i s  a  fac t .   Jus t  c la r i t y  Cha i r  20 

there  –  I  am request ing  respect fu l l y  fo r  c la r i t y.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes I  w i l l  cer ta in ly  ass is t  Ms  Myen i .   

What  we d id  in  the  ev idence las t  year  i s  we had Ms D lamin i  

who I  unders tand conducted the  opera t ion  – the  secur i t y  

ve t t ing  opera t ion  a t  SAA g ive  ev idence.   Do you know Ms 
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D lamin i?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  was Ms D lam in i  whose ev idence was  

tha t  i t  was pursuant  to  engagements  be tween yourse l f  and 

then Min i s te r  Mah lobo tha t  the  secur i t y  opera t ion  was 

under taken.   Can  you conf i rm tha t?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  no t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   When Ms Dlamin i  gave ev idence we were  10 

taken to  the  exchange o f  le t te rs  be tween Min is te r  Mah lobo  

and Min is te r  Nene a t  the  t ime  in  te rms o f  wh ich  the  

secur i t y  ve t t ing  opera t ion  had been author ised.   And what  

was g iven in  tha t  cor respondence as  the  bas i s  fo r  the 

opera t ion  was tha t  there  was quo te  “sens i t i ve  in fo rmat ion ”  

tha t  was be ing  rece ived on an  on-go ing  bas is  by  the  

management  and suppor t  s ta f f  o f  SAA.   Do you reca l l  be ing  

concerned about  the  rece ip t  o f  sens i t i ve  in fo rmat ion  by  

managers  and suppor t  s ta f f  a t  SAA? 

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  Cha i rperson 20 

so  tha t  I  –  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  aga in  fo r  t he  record  tha t  le t te r  f rom 

Min is te r  Mah lobo  to  Min is te r  Nene in  wh ich  th is  bas i s  fo r  

the  opera t ion  is  se t  ou t  can be found in  Exh ib i t  DD24 page 

17.   And a lso  jus t  fo r  the  reco rd  the  ev idence  o f  Ms  
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D lamin i  occu r red  on the  19  February  2020.    

 Now Ms Myen i  in  the  course  o f  Ms D lamin i ’s  

ev idence we es tab l i shed w i th  he r  tha t  the  en t i re  ve t t ing 

opera t ion  was not  in  accordance w i th  the  govern ing  

leg is la t ion .   A re  you aware  o f  tha t  ev idence hav ing  been 

g iven?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see what  we have probed w i th  Ms  

D lamin i  i s  tha t  in  te rms o f  the  govern ing  leg i s la t ion  these 10 

types o f  opera t ions can on ly  be  conducted where  c lass i f ied  

in fo rmat ion  is  be ing  accessed by  those who w i l l  be  secur i t y  

ve t ted .   And tha t  c lass i f ied  i n fo rmat ion  is  someth ing  

d i f fe ren t  f rom sens i t i ve  in fo rmat ion .   Before  th is  opera t ion  

was conducted a t  SAA d id  you ever  take  t ime to  cons ide r  

tha t  d is t inc t ion  be tween c lass i f ied  in fo rmat ion  and 

sens i t i ve  in fo rmat ion?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rperson w i th  your  permiss ion  can Ms 

Hofmeyr  read the  le t te r  tha t  she is  ta lk ing  about?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wi th  p leasure .  20 

MS MYENI :   O r  show me the  l e t te r  tha t  she is  ta lk ing  

about?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wi th  p leasure  le t  us  go  to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   She w i l l  do  so .   She w i l l  do  so  Ms  Myen i .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now for  th is  Ms Myen i  i t  i s  a  DD Bund le .  
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MS MYENI :   DD.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  I  am caut ious ly  op t im is t i c  tha t  you  

have i t  w i th  you.   I t  i s  DD24 a t  page 17.   So i f  you  w i l l  jus t  

f ind  tha t  bund le  and then we can look a t  the  le t te r.    

MS MYENI :   I  have the  le t te r  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  th is  le t te r  Cha i r  and Ms  Myen i  

appears  as  an  annexure  –  oh  apo log ies  Cha i r  you do not  

have i t .   Le t  me jus t  pause fo r  a  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  ye t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  was qu icke r  than you or  I  10 

tak ing  the  bund le  so…  I t  w i l l  be  page 17.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  i t  now.   I  have got  i t  Ms 

Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Myen i  I  was jus t  

a lso  loca t ing  you.   So th is  i s  the  f i rs t  annexure  to  Ms 

D lamin i ’s  a f f idav i t  wh ich  precedes  i t  in  th is  at  BB24.  And 

what you wi l l  see there,  i t  is a let ter.   I f  you go over the page 

to 18,  i t  is the let ter that  the then Minister of  State Securi ty,  

Mr David Mahlobo,  wri tes to the then Minister of  Finance,  Mr 

Nene.  And th is  is a let ter that  was copied to you,  the 20 

Chairperson of  the Board of  SAA.  Do you remember 

receiving this let ter around October of  2015? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chairperson?  The reason 

why I  ask i t  Chai r  was,  for the record,  the let ter be read,  as I  

requested to you Chai rperson.   Because i t  appears f rom 
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what  is being said and asked.   I  am the one who asked of  the 

securi ty of  al l  South Af r ican state-owned enterpr ises.    

 And I  do not  th ink there is any Chai rperson who si ts in  

any cabinet  to take such decisions.   That  is why Chai rperson 

I  am asking,  for  the record,  that  these let ters be read 

because there is an insinuat ion that  I  would use state organs 

and the views that  have been expressed here,  which are 

unreserved views Chai r.    

 I  am here as an innocent person.   And the way in which 

the evidence leader is t ry ing to meet quest ions,  is t ry ing to  10 

put  my secur i ty  issues back in my house that  any person can 

just  access somebody’s house without  have been present  in  

the premises.    

 And I  can see that  I  have no r ight  as a black woman 

because no whi te woman who has a house wi thout  her being 

in the premises can al low any – just  about  any person to 

walk into the house.    

 Here now, I  am the one who has given the cabinet  a  

decision to  vet  al l  state-owned enterpr ises.   I t  cannot  be so.   

I  am here because my gui l t  is the associat ion wi th Jacob 20 

Zuma.  So i t  cannot be.    

 Chairperson,  I  want – I  would l ike wi th your permiss ion 

to get  the protect ion.   I  am an ordinary human being that  

makes mistakes.   Where I  make a mistake,  I  admit  to make a 

mistake but  I  cannot cont inue. . .  cont inuously be associated 
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wi th certa in  decis ions in state organs that  are unfai r.   This is 

misleading.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    That  is why I  am asking for the record.   That  

the evidence leader read this let ter.   Because now i t  appears 

as though I  am the one who went and asked Minister 

Mahlobo and Min ister Nene to invest igate or to vet  only 

South Afr ican Ai rways stuff .   I  cannot be.   I  protected the 

stuff  of  South Afr ican Airways through and through when I  

was chairperson there.   Thanks,  Chai rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr wi l l  read that  let ter or 

she might  ask you to read i t  so that  i t  is  read into the record.   

I  just  want to say about other matters that  you have raised.    

 That  when there is only one side of  the story,  i t  could 

give r ise to certain perspect ives.   So where you are able to  

put  your side of  the story or your  perspect ives,  i t  helps to 

give a balanced view.  

 But  when I  say that ,  I  am not  saying that  you must  not  

invoke your pr iv i lege i f  you consider i t  appropriate.   I  am just  

ment ioning that  there is  an disadvantage or the disadvantage 20 

is when there is  only one side of  the story as compared to 

where there are both s ides.  

 So when there is one s ide,  that  could easi ly give r ise to  

misunderstandings or give r ise to certain perspect ives which 

might  not  be there i f  there are a l l  s ides placed before the 
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Commission.    

 Ms Hofmeyr,  are you going to read i t  or are you going to  

ask her to read i t?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  I  wi l l  read i t  wi th  pleasure.   I  do 

just  want to indicate one point  of  c lar i f icat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because I  do want Ms Myeni  to 

understand that  – and the record wi l l  show this – at  no point  

did I  in my quest ioning state that  Ms Myeni  had been 

responsible for the arranging of  the vet t ing of  al l  SOE’s.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is not  something that  I  sa id.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    What  I  said is  that  there had been 

evidence before this Commission that  she was involved in 

arranging the vet t ing of  SAA management and thei r  support  

staff .   I t  is a very di fferent  statement and i t  is that  statement 

that  I  am explor ing wi th Ms Myeni  in the evidence r ight  now.  

 And when she asked for c lar i f icat ion as to where that  

came from, I  made i t  c lear that  i t  came from the evidence of  20 

Ms Dlamini  who had conducted the operat ion at  SAA.  

 And she was asked in part icular about  the background to 

these let ters.   So i t  is not  my statement.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is Ms Dlamini ’s statement giv ing 
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evidence before this Commission.   But  let  me read the let ter 

into the record.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    As Ms Myeni  has requested.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  i t  is a let ter  f rom Mr David Mahlobo,  

Minister of  State Securi ty,  dated 18 October 2015,  addressed 

to Mr N M Nene, Minister of  Finance at  the t ime.  Yes,  

cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.   And just  to note.   I t  is  

copied to Ms Myeni  as Chai rperson of  the Board of  SAA.  I t  10 

says:   Dear Col leagues.   So this is Minister Mahlobo 

speaking to Minister Nene.  

“Securi ty vet t ing of  the South Afr ican Ai rways 

Execut ive Management and Support  Staff .  

1.  The above matter refers.  

2.  I t  has come to the at tent ion of  the State 

Securi ty Agency that  there is an urgent  need for  

vet t ing and re-vet t ing of  the state-owned enterpr ises 

given sensi t ive in format ion received on an ongoing 

basis. ”  20 

 I  would just  l ike to pause there.   I t  is precisely how i t  

came to the at tent ion of  the State Securi ty Agency that  we 

t raversed wi th Ms Dlamini  her  knowledge of  what was 

happening around this.  

 This let ter was probed with her and her evidence was 
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that  there had,  she assumed – I  do not  recal l  her  having 

personal  knowledge of  i t  – but  she assumed that  there had 

been engagements between Minister Mahlobo and Ms Myeni  

about  th is.  

 And certainly,  the later let ter is a let ter f rom Ms Myeni  

providing the l ist  of  the people who are requi red to be 

vet ted.    

 Paragraph 3 goes on.  

“3.  SOC, as the government ent i t ies have a huge 

impact  on the economy of  the count ry and therefore 10 

extremely important  for the SSA to conduct  securi t y  

vet t ing as per Sect ion 1 of  the Nat ional  St rategic 

Inte l l igence Act .   That  is Act  39 of  1994 as amended 

by Act  67 of  2002.    

I t  states that :   

“The Nat ional  In tel l igence Agency (NIA) has the 

mandate to vet  al l  other nat ional ,  provincial  and 

local  government departments,  parastata ls and the ir  

serv ice providers. ””  

 Chai r,  I  should inter ject  there as wel l  just  to give the 20 

benef i t  of  Ms Dlamini ’s evidence.   We looked in her evidence 

for that  al leged sect ion f rom the act .   You may recal l  th is  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  recal l .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And that  sect ion does not  exist  in the act .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    So i t  appears in th is let ter as though i t  is 

quot ing f rom a sect ion of  the act .   I t  does not  – i t  cannot be 

found in the act .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Paragraph 4 over  the page reads:  

“4.  This should be understood f rom the 

background of  chal lenges affect ing most  of  the 

state-owned companies.  

6.  The chai rperson of  SAA wi l l  be required to 10 

provide a l ist  of  a l l  execut ive management and 

support  staff .  

7.  And update wi l l  be provided on complet ion.  

8.  Your Sincerely. ”  

 And then i t  is s igned by Minister Mahlobo.   Ms Myeni ,  so 

that  is the let ter that  you have requested that  we read into 

the record.   I  had asked you before your last  answer,  

whether pr ior to th is exercise being conducted,  you had ever  

had the occasion to consider  the dist inct ion between 

classi f ied informat ion and sensi t ive informat ion.   What is  20 

your response to that? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  not  respond in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f?  Thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now this  was a vet t ing operat ion that  was 

conducted at  SAA in late 2015.  Ms Dlamin i ’s evidence was 
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a lso that  there were no other state-owned ent i t ies that  were 

vet ted at  that  t ime.  The only other ones that  have been 

vet ted are wi th Transnet  two years later in December of  2017 

and Eskom in Apri l  of  2019.  

 So dur ing the per iod of  2015 and 2016 there was no 

other vet t ing going on of  SOE’s.   That  reference you wi l l  f ind 

Chair  and Ms Myeni  in  Ms Dlamini ’s  aff idavi t ,  which is  ear l ier 

in the bundle,  DD24 at  page 15.  

 Now Ms Myeni ,  one quest ion that  we probed with  

Ms Dlamini  is the fol lowing.   I f  the concern which 10 

underscored the need to vet  people at  SAA, was there 

access to sensi t ive informat ion.    

 We asked her for her view.  Would i t  not  then have made 

sense that  not  on ly management and support  staff  but  also 

the board members of  SAA be vet ted?   

 Did you ever consider before this operat ion whether you 

and your col leagues on the board should be vet ted? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson to the quest ion 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  But  Chairperson,  yesterday the 

Chair  said,  once I  have responded to the quest ion,  I  can say 20 

something af ter I  have responded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i f  you. . .   I f  i t  is  a  quest ion in respect  

of  which you do not  invoke your  pr iv i lege and you say 

something l ike yes to a quest ion but  you want to  explain 

something.   Yes,  that  you can do.    
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 So,  in other words,  or i f  you say:   No,  but  I  want  to 

explain something,  that  is f ine.   But  what  I  said this morning 

which I  d id not  say yesterday was that  i f  you invoke the 

pr iv i lege,  then you invoke the pr iv i lege.    

 You cannot give some answer and then af terwards you 

are saying you are invoking the pr iv i lege to  that  quest ion.   

So you have to make up your mind on each quest ion.   Am I  

invoking my pr iv i lege?  I f  you do,  that  is what you do.    

 But  i f  you elect  to  answer,  then I  am not . . .  we are not . . .  

you are not  forced to say yes or no necessari ly i f  you would 10 

l ike to explain something.    

 Obviously,  i t  helps i f  you are able to say yes or  no or  – 

in terms of  quest ions so that  we make progress.   But  i f  there 

is a need to qual i fy your explain,  I  wi l l  a l low you to do that .   

You understand? 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  thank you very much Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    I  understand and i t  is c lear.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MS MYENI :    What I  would l ike to say.   I t  is a comment.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS MYENI :    To you Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS MYENI :    I t  is unrelated to whether. . .  to the quest ion that  

was asked.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS MYENI :    Under normal c i rcumstances Chai rperson,  in 

state-owned enterpr ises,  board members before they get  

appointed they would be vet ted.   I  am saying under normal 

c i rcumstances.   This is a comment for you Chairperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Alr ight .  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  Ms Dlamini  indicated that  no 

board members were vet ted dur ing this operat ion in late 10 

2015.  Do you dispute that? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to the quest ion Chai rperson 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    She indicated that  in her view – and I  

would l ike your comment on whether  you disagree wi th th is  

view – i f  the management and support  staff  were being 

vet ted because of  access to sensi t ive informat ion,  and the 

board also had access to sensi t ive informat ion,  then the 

board members should also be vet ted on the basis of  

Minister Mahlobo’s let ter.   Do you agree wi th that  v iew? 20 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chairperson to the view of  

Ms Dlamini  in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you know why this operat ion was 

conducted wi thout  board members who would have had as 

much access to sensi t ive informat ion as anyone else in SAA, 
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were not  vet ted? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson?  I  invoked the 

pr iv i lege so I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you think i t  might  have been because 

the board members did not  want to be conf ronted wi th the 

very int imate quest ions that  management were subjected to 

when they had to undergo the polygraph tests? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Would you agree that  being asked a 10 

quest ion l ike:   Have you ever had an affa i r?  Is a sensi t ive 

and int imate matter? 

MS MYENI :    I  was not  there.   Chairperson,  may I  not  

respond to th is quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    [No audible reply]   

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to th is quest ion because I  do 

not  want to incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    We have received evidence f rom 

Ms Phumeza Nhantsi  before this  Commission that  you 

conveyed to her that  you wanted to use the outcome of  the 20 

vet t ing to remove one of  the people in the Finance 

Department of  SAA, Ms Lindsay Ol i tzki .   Do you dispute her 

evidence on that  count? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f?   
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ADV HOFMEYR :    For the record again.   And Ms Myeni ,  i f  

you would l ike to go there,  we can.   Ms Nhantsi ’s aff idavi t  on 

the score can be found in Exhibi t  DD2, page 22,  paragraph 

70.   Her vers ion before th is Commission is that  you told her 

to get  r id of  Ms Nhantsi  because she fai led. . .   Sorry,  to get  

r id of  Ms Ol i tzki  because she fai led the vet t ing on account of  

her dual  c i t izenship.   Do you dispute that? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Nhantsi ’s ev idence was further to the 10 

effect  that  when.. .   Wel l ,  she had a conversat ion,  I  th ink i t  

was wi th Mr Zwane.  She fel t  a bi t  uncomfortable about th is.   

They were worr ied that  there would be labour issues i f  th is  

was taken forward and so she d id not  take i t  forward.   And 

she said when she relayed that  to you,  you said that  you 

were not  happy about i t .   Do you dispute that? 

MS MYENI :    What did you say?  Who told. . .  who sent  

informat ion to SAA that  the person is that . . .   Wel l ,  d id not  

pass the vet t ing?  Sorry,  d id you say that? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  sorry.   So le t  me go back a step.   The 20 

outcome of  Ms Ol i tzki ’s securi ty vet t ing was that  

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    Where is i t?  On the. . .   On the f i le,  is i t  here? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Ol i tzk i ’s outcome? 

MS MYENI :    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  i t  is not  because State Securi ty 

Agency did not  provide us wi th those documents.   But  we do 

have an aff idavi t  of  Ms Ol i tzki  conf i rming that  what was 

communicated to her was that  she. . .    

 Wel l ,  that  her dual  c i t izenship was f lagged as an issue 

for her securi ty vet t ing and she was asked for her at t i tude in  

re lat ion to  her dual  c i t izenship.   So that  is  the background 

Ms Myeni .    

 But  what I  was put t ing to you was that  Ms Nhantsi  gave 

evidence in  th is Commission that  you,  Ms Myeni ,  said to 10 

Ms Nhantsi  that  you wanted to remove Ms Ol i tzki  on the 

grounds or fo l lowing f rom the fact  that  she had fai led the 

vet t ing on account of  her dual  c i t izenship.   Do you dispute 

having said that  to Ms Nhantsi?  

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  not  respond to th is  

quest ion?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Is that  on the grounds that  i t  may tend to  

incr iminate you? 

MS MYENI :    Sorry,  Chairperson I  missed that .   There was a 

bi t  of  delay.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  she is asking whether that  is on the 

grounds that  you do not  want to incr iminate yoursel f .  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  I  completed the sentence Chai rperson.   I  

d id.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  apologies.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay we did not  hear th is side.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  because you have raised the 

issue.   I  actual ly  do think i t  is fa i r  to you to read exact ly 

what Ms Nhantsi  said on this score.   And i f . . .  would you l ike 

to take up the bundle?  I t  is DD2.  So you can have i t  in f ront  

of  you.  

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  I  thought there was a le t ter that  

Ms Hofmeyr was referr ing to that  came f rom the State 

Securi ty that  made or communicated the outcomes of  vet t ing.   

That  was the main quest ion that  I  was asking because I  10 

heard Ms Hofmeyr saying i t  was communicated to her.   I  

thought she is referr ing to me communicat ing to her.  

CHAIRPERSON :    She is go ing to . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    Not  to Ms Nhants i .   Not  to Ms Nhantsi .   To 

Ol i tzki .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay she is going to clar i fy that .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  let  me just  be c lear.   Sorry.   And you 

know, there might  have been a bi t  of  a  break in  the 

t ransmission.  

MS MYENI :    There was.   There was.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    So what  happened is.   Ms Nhantsi  g ives 

evidence before this Commission about a conversat ion that  

she had with you,  according to her  evidence.   And I  just  th ink 

i t  is appropriate,  given that  th is is a  matter  that  requires 

clar i ty.  
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 And in fa i rness to you Ms Myeni ,  I  completely accept  

that  we should be absolute ly clear about  i t .   I f  we go to  

Bundle DD2 at  page 21 at  paragraph 70.   This is 

Ms Nhantsi ’s aff idavi t .  

 Ms Myeni ,  you may want to get  i t  in f ront  of  you.   I  see 

you gone to do that .    

MS MYENI :    Yes,  I  am doing that .   Thank you,  Chai r.   I  have 

got  DD2.  Phumeza Nhantsi .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    Sorry,  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Ms Hofmeyr.   I  bel ieve I  got  i t  too.  

MS MYENI :    I  have DD2 and I  have Phumeza Nhantsi ’s 

statements.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you say page 21 Ms Hofmeyr? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Page 21.   Chai r,  yes . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 21.   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now at  paragraph 70 at  the bot tom of  that  

page just  before there is a heading,  Vet t ing Resul t  of  

Ms Lindsay Ol i tzki  that  were performed by State Securi ty 

Agency.   And I  am reading f rom paragraph 70 there of 20 

Ms Nhantsi ’s aff idavi t .   She says:  

“Ms Myeni  to ld me that  the SSA people are st i l l  in  

progress wi th vet t ing for top securi ty c learance 

cert i f icate but  they are done with some people.  

She added that  one of  my staff  members fai led the 
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vet t ing due to dual  c i t izenship.   She did not  show 

me the resul ts,  on ly to ld me who i t  was.  

She st ressed that  the Finance Department is a very 

sensi t ive area.   Therefore,  I  cannot afford to have 

someone who has fai led the securi ty c learance.  

She suggested the fol lowing day I  should have an 

off -s i te  meet ing wi th Ms Lindsay and f i rst  update her  

about  the vet t ing resul ts  and secondly give her  two 

opt ions.  

Ei ther to  d ismiss her  or she could choose an 10 

al ternat ive department to work wi thin SAA Group.  

I  d iscussed this  matter wi th the act ing CEO the  

fol lowing day,  rais ing my concerns about Ms Myeni ’s  

instruct ions as i t  may lead to SAA facing labour 

disputes especial ly when the employees are able to  

prove that  the SSA process was never part  of  thei r  

employment cont ract  when they were appointed by 

SAA.  

We then agreed that  we wi l l  d iscuss this i tem at  the 

next  Exco meet ing and the company needs to  20 

compi le or der ive a pol icy that  wi l l  address this and 

the pol icy.  

I  d id not  arrange any meet ing wi th L indsay.   

Ms Myeni  cal led me the same day and asked how 

the meet ing went between Lindsay and I .  
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I  gave her the update and she. . . ”  

 That  is the reference to you,  as I  understand i t  in the 

context .  

“ . . .was not  happy wi th i t . ”  

 Do you dispute Ms Nhantsi ’s evidence on this issue? 

MS MYENI :    I  wi l l  not  respond Chairperson in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  I  would l ike to move f rom the 

involvement of  the State Securi ty Agency,  both in providing 

protect ion services to you and in conduct ing securi ty vet t ing 10 

at  SAA to evidence that  has been received in th is  

Commission by former Minister Nene and Minister Gordhan.  

So that . . .  those are the topics we are going to move to now.  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Chairperson.   I  am ready.   Sorry,  I  was 

just  moving this f i le.   I  am ready.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now Ms Myeni ,  Minister Nene gave 

evidence before this Commission about a meet ing that  he 

was cal led to in November 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second Ms Hofmeyr.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  apologies.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am giving away this f i le.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  you can do so.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And DD24, can I  g ive i t  away? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  you can.    



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 103 of 265 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    We completed our work wi thin there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  so we just  remain wi th 34? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now Ms Myeni ,  when former Minister  Nene 

test i f ied before th is Commission,  he gave evidence about a 

meet ing that  was cal led in  November 2014 with the former 

President  and yoursel f .   Are you aware of  that  evidence? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  10 

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now his ev idence was that  that  meet ing 

was cal led af ter  he had shared concerns about your  

leadership at  SAA with col leagues at  an ANC Study Group 

Meet ing.   Were you present  at  that  meet ing? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to the quest ion Chai rperson 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now what Minis ter Nene said is,  af ter he 

had communicated those concerns at  the ANC Study Group 

Meet ing.   He surmises that  somebody told you.    20 

 He does not  have actual  knowledge of  that  but  he 

surmises because the next  th ing that  happens is,  he is cal led 

to a meet ing wi th you and former President  Zuma.  

 I  would l ike to  ask you some quest ions about that  

meet ing.   Can you conf i rm whether meet ing took place? 
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MS MYENI :    I  do not  have. . .   Sorry.   I  do not  have a 

response Chairperson.   May invoke the pr iv i lege of  not  

responding to the quest ion in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Minister Nene said that  dur ing the course 

of  the meet ing,  you compla int  to the former President  Zuma 

about him. Do you dispute that? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

because in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Minister Nene said that  dur ing that  

meet ing,  he said to former President  Zuma that  you were 10 

obstruct ive and that  you played the media.   Do you dispute 

that  he said that  to President  Zuma? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  not  respond to the 

quest ion?  May I  invoke the pr iv i lege so I  do not  incr iminate 

mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    He a lso sa id that  at  that  meet ing,  he told  

former President  Zuma that  the board under your leadership 

had been act ing recklessly.   Do you dispute that  he told that  

to former President  Zuma? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chairperson?  I  would not  20 

want to incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    He also said that  he communicated to  

former President  Zuma at  that  meet ing that  you should be 

removed as chai rperson of  the board  Do you dispute that  he 

said that? 
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MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    He said of  that  meet ing that  he also 

conveyed to former President  Zuma that  as a resul t  of  the 

cr is is si tuat ion that  was then present  in SAA – remember we 

are in November 2015 – there was a ser ious threat  that  the 

ai r l ine would defaul t  on i ts government guaranteed 

obl igat ions and that  that  would have a r ipple effect  to the 

f iscus and the economy as a whole.   Do you dispute that  he 

said that  to former President  Zuma? 10 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  not  respond in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Minister Nene was qui te clear in his 

evidence before this Commission that  he was concerned 

about your Board .   But  he  has a lso  g iven ev idence in  wh ich  

he  has ind i ca ted  tha t  any recommendat ion  fo r  a  new board  

o f  SAA a t  tha t  t ime,  tha t  d id  no t  inc lude you,  wou ld  no t  

pass th rough cab ine t  because  fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma 

wou ld  no t  suppor t  i t .   Do you d i spute  h is  vers ion  on  tha t  

score?  20 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you and fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma ever  

d iscuss the  v iew tha t  Min is te r  Nene conveyed to  fo rmer  

Pres ident  Zuma a t  tha t  November  2015 meet ing?  
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MS MYENI :    I  beg your  pardon?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you and fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma ever  

d iscuss what  Min is te r  Nene had  communica ted  a t  tha t  

November  2015 meet ing?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion ,  

Cha i rperson?  May I  invoke my p r iv i lege tha t  I  was g iven  

by  you not  to  incr im inate  myse l f .   But ,  Cha i r,  p lease a l low 

me to  say someth ing  wh ich  w i l l  no t  invoke the  pr iva te  

pr iv i lege o r  maybe respond to  the  message? 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  tha t?  10 

MS MYENI :    I t  i s  someth ing ,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  

s ta te  be fo re  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

MS MYENI :    I  sa id  someth ing  yeste rday,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  say i t .   I  am gu i l t y,  Cha i rperson,  by  assoc ia t ion  o f  

P res ident  Zuma and i t  appears  here  the re  has been very  

g la r ing  l ines  to  everyone who chooses to  make g la r ing  –  

sor ry,  who chooses not  to  d is t ingu ish  p roper l y  be tween the  

re la t ionsh ip ,  the  pro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip  and the  

re la t ionsh ip  where  a  person pres ides over  the  Jacob Zuma 20 

Foundat ion .   I  have been gu i l t y  s ince  I  assumed o f f i ce  as  

the  Cha i rperson  o f  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion .   I  am 

s ta t ing  th is ,  Cha i rperson,  because a  pro fess iona l  

re la t ionsh ip  and  an ord inary  re la t ionsh ip ,  those are  two 

separa te  re la t ionsh ips .    
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There fore ,  I  am jus t  say ing  th is ,  Cha i r,  because i t  

does bothe r  me and the  Cha i rperson d id  say i f  someth ing  I  

fee l  s t rong ly  about ,  I  must  pu t  i t  be fore  the  Cha i rpe rson.   I  

am s t i l l  do ing  the  same,  Cha i r,  because the re  has  been a  

nar ra t i ve  tha t  I  cannot  k i l l  tha t  suggest  tha t  be ing  or  

work ing  fo r  a  foundat ion  meant  tha t  I  wou ld  w i l l y  n i l l y  and  

anyhow d iscuss  issues tha t  a re  no t  re levant  to  the 

foundat ion  anywhere  or  anyt ime  and i t  i s  a  l ie  tha t  

somebody can jus t  use  prox im i ty  to  do  cer ta in  th ings tha t  

a re  un toward  and tha t  a re  no t  p ro fess iona l .   That  a lso  10 

compromises the  fo rmal  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  i s  wr i t ten  down 

tha t  ta lks  to  i ssues o f  work ing  and opera t iona l  ma t te rs  o f  

e i ther  the  Founda t ion  o f  South  A f r i can A i rways.    

And Cha i r,  las t l y,  may I  pu t  i t  on  record  tha t  South  

A f r i can A i rways was ass igned to  Pres ident  Ramaphosa as  

a  Deputy  Pres ident  a t  the  t ime who was respons ib le  fo r  

government  bus iness.   SOEs tha t  were  seen by  cab ine t  to  

be  prob lemat ic  were  a l l  ass igned under  Pres ident  Cyr i l  

Ramaphosa.    

But ,  as  you have seen,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  a l l  the  20 

t ime whenever  there  i s  SAA mat te r  and fo rmer  Cha i rperson 

mat te r  on  SAA,  I  wou ld  be  seen wa lk ing  w i th  the  Pres ident  

who v is i ted  South  A f r i can A i rways in  the  med ia  and 

paraded as  Pres ident  Jacob Zuma is  the  on ly  one who  

v is i ted  SAA.   P res ident  Ramaphosa,  as  Deputy  Pres ident ,  
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respons ib le  fo r  government  bus iness,  v is i ted  South  A f r i can 

A i rways but  you  w i l l  never  see a  p ic tu re  o f  Dudu Myen i  

w i th  Pres ident  Ramaphosa on any med ia  ye t  I  we lcomed 

h im and I  wa lked h im out ,  as  I  d id  w i th  Pres ident  Zuma.   

And Pres ident  Cyr i l  Ramaphosa was happy when we met  a t  

SAA and he rea l l y  sang pra ises about  the  work  we had 

done.   That ,  I  be l ieve ,  tha t  was the  s ta tement  o f  

conf idence because I  never  worked fo r  h is  foundat ion  no r  

d id  I  have prox im i ty  because o f  the  foundat ion- re la ted  

work .    10 

I  am jus t  pu t t ing  i t  across  to  you,  Cha i r,  as  

someth ing  tha t  i s  ins ide  my sp i r i t  to  share  w i th  you.   Thank  

you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   But  I  must  jus t  po in t  ou t  the  

quest ions tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  was put t ing  to  you re la ted  to  

ev idence tha t  was p laced before  the  Commiss ion  by  Mr  

Nene in  regard  to  a  meet ing  tha t  he  sa id  he  had w i th  you 

and fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma.   Tha t  i s  where  the  quest ions 

emanated f rom.   Okay,  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Jus t  be fo re  your  las t  20 

in te rchange w i th  the  Cha i r,  Ms Myen i ,  I  had asked you  

whethe r  you had d iscussed what  Min is te r  Nene had  

communica ted  a t  tha t  meet ing  w i th  fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma 

a f te rwards.   I  unders tand you  to  have invoked your  

p r iv i lege to  dec l ine  to  answer,  so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  the  
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nex t  quest ion .  

 Ms Myen i ,  in  the  face  o f  tha t  hav ing  been  

communica ted  to  fo rmer  Pres iden t  Zuma a t  the  meet ing  

w i th  the  then f inance min i s te r,  can you ass is t  the 

Commiss ion  in  unders tand ing  how,  i f  you  d id ,  you managed  

to  persuade fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma to  re ta in  you  on the  

board  desp i te  what  Min is te r  Nene was reck less  leadersh ip  

tha t  r i sked SAA defau l t ing  on  loans?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  do  you have the  – does the  

Commiss ion  have  the  m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  re fer red  to?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  there  were  m inutes  

taken,  th is  was not  a  m inuted meet ing .   What  i s  your  

answer  to  the  quest ion  whethe r  –  on  what  bas is  you  

managed,  i f  you  d id ,  to  persuade fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma to  

re ta in  your  on  the  board  desp i te  the  Min i s te r  o f  F inance  

hav ing  sa id  to  h im tha t  he  was worr ied  tha t  your  reck less  

leadersh ip  wou ld  r i sk  SAA defau l t ing  on  loans?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  th is  quest ion ,  

Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  fo rmer  Min i s te r  Nene a lso  20 

l inked h is  remova l  a  month  l a te r  in  December  2015 

amongst  o ther  th ings to  the  v iews he had expressed  a t  tha t  

meet ing  about  you to  fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma.   Do you have 

any ins igh t  as  to  the  reasons  why fo rmer  Nene was  

removed in  December  2015.    



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 110 of 265 
 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  a re  you aware  o f  what  

happened to  the  market  the  morn ing  a f te r  fo rmer  Min is te r  

Nene was removed in  December  o f  2015?  

MS MYENI :    Which  market ,  Ma ’am? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  i t  was the  impact  rea l l y  on  the 

bond y ie lds  and  the  deprec ia t ion  o f  the  South  A f r i can  

cur rency the  next  morn ing .   A re  you aware  o f  those 

impacts?  10 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  need  to unders tand not  the  – 

run  the  r igged markets- re la ted  issues,  I  must  ge t  a  b i t  o f  

c la r i t y  because there  was too  much o f  the  r igg ing  o f  the  

rand dur ing  tha t  t ime and there  was a l so  a  lo t  o f  o ther  

economic - re la ted  issues tha t  happened in  many  o ther  

p laces.   So I  need to  know what  i s  spec i f i c  about  th is  

par t i cu la r  quest ion  tha t  when Mr  Nene was removed the  

market  pe r fo rmed  bad ly  o r  the  r igg ing?  Was i t  the  r igg ing  

o f  the  rand?  Sor ry,  was th is  the  r i gg ing  o f  the  rand  or  was  

i t  the  poor  per fo rmance o f  genera l  markets?   I  need to  20 

unders tand because I  am not  a  f inance person.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Ms Hofmeyr  w i l l  respond.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Th is  i s  –  in  fa i rness to  you,  Ms  Myen i ,  

an  issue tha t  the  Commiss ion  i t se l f  has grapp led  w i th  and  

the  Commiss ion  in  fac t  requested Nat iona l  Treasury  to  do  a  
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submiss ion  fo r  i t  about  th is  very  th ing .   I t  has  co l l oqu ia l l y  

been ca l led  the  impact  o f  Nenegate  and what  the  

Commiss ion  rece ived was an a f f idav i t  f rom the  then 

D i rec tor  Genera l  o f  Nat iona l  Treasury  and th is  i s  what  i s  

sa id  in  tha t  a f f idav i t ,  tha t :  

“The morn ing  a f te r  the  announcement  o f  Min i s te r  

Nene ’s  remova l  there  was an increase in  bond  

y ie lds  and a  deprec ia t ion  o f  the  cur rency as  

investors  re -p r iced r i sks  assoc ia ted  w i th  invest ing  

in  South  A f r i ca .  “  10 

Were  you aware  tha t  Min i s te r  Nene ’s  remova l  had tha t  

impact?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe jus t  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rpe rson,  to  th is  

quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .   The  c la r i t y  

was we l l - rece ived ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe you  can jus t  ment ion ,  Ms 

Hofmeyr,  the  name o f  the  fo rmer  D i rec tor  Genera l  who  

deposed to  tha t  a f f idav i t .  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  tha t  was D i rec tor  Genera l  Madondo.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And the  o ther  po in t  tha t  i s  made in  tha t  

submiss ion  be fo re  the  Commiss ion  is  tha t  the  change in  

m in is te rs  –  so  the  remova l  o f  Min is te r  Nene and h is  
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rep lacement  w i th  Min is te r  van Rooyen was – increased the  

percept ions o f  r i sk  tha t  the  South  A f r i can Government ’s  

commi tment  to  f isca l  sus ta inab i l i t y  was weaken ing .   Were  

you aware  o f  tha t  impact  o f  the  remova l  o f  then Min is te r  

Nene?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  –  Cha i r,  I  see  tha t  we are  jus t  

be fore  one o ’c lock  and I  am about  move on so  i t  may be  

appropr ia te  to  take  the  break now.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Okay,  le t  us  take  the  lunch break,  

we w i l l  resume a t  two o ’c lock .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay are  we ready?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We are  indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Ms Myen i  be fore  the  break  

we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  ev idence tha t  fo rmer  Min is te r  

Nene had presented befo re  the  Commiss ion ,  about  tha t  20 

meet ing  tha t  he  had w i th  you and fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma in  

November  o f  2015.   I  wou ld  now l i ke  to  tu rn  to  the  

ev idence tha t  Min is te r  Gordhan gave be fore  the  

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  jus t  be fore  you do tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  
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I  want  to  ind ica te  tha t  I  cannot  th ink  o f  what  poss ib le  c r ime  

Ms Myen i  cou ld  expose he rse l f  to  by  answer ing  quest ions  

re la t ing  to  tha t  meet ing .   As  I  unders tand f rom Mr  Nene ’s  

ev idence tha t  meet ing  was a  meet ing  wh ich  where  Mr  Zuma 

was seek ing  to  t ry  and he lp  the  two o f  them to  reso lve  

some tens ions be tween the  two o f  them.   I  cannot  poss ib l y  

th ink  what  c r ime she cou ld  expose  herse l f  to  be  prosecuted  

about  in  re la t ion  to  the  content  o f  tha t  meet ing .  

 So un less  her  Counse l  in tends advanc ing  any  

argument  I  am inc l ined to  ask  her  to  respond to  those  10 

quest ions.   Mr  Bu the lez i?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Thank you Cha i r.    The quest ion  tha t  

the  Cha i r  says he  sees no potent i a l  exposure  to ,  I  th ink  i t  

i s  inherent  in  the  subsequent  quest ions tha t  fo l lowed,  one 

be ing  i t  was a l leged tha t  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  meet ing  Ms 

Myen i ’s  adv i ce  or  impressed upon Pres ident  Zuma to  

d ismiss  Min i s te r  Nene tha t  i s  number  1 ,  number  2 ,  tha t  

d ismissa l  subsequent ly  led  to  a t  the  t ime the  markets .   

Now i t  i s  the  quest ions tha t  fo l low tha t  a re  open to  – 

because i f  she then concedes tha t  she par t i c ipa ted  in  a  20 

meet ing  w i th  Min is te r  Nene and Pres ident  Zuma and  

shor t l y  thereaf te r  Min i s te r  Nene was d i smissed.    

I t  then ventures  i n to  the  po tent ia l  tha t  an  a l legat ion  

cou ld  be  made tha t  i t  cou ld  have been as  an  a l legat ion  

cur ren t ly  ex i s ts  to  say i t  i s  on  the  back o f  her  in f luence on  



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 114 of 265 
 

the  Pres ident  tha t  a  Min is te r  was d ismissed.    

So I  th ink  Cha i r  i t  i s  the  avers ion  to  subsequen t  

quest ions tha t  a  quest ion  o f ten  is  p receded by  a  p la in  and 

a  fac tua l  quest ion  bu t  i f  you  then a l low yourse l f  in to  the  

te r ra in  o f  answer ing  tha t  quest ion  you then bound yourse l f  

to  answer  a l l  quest ions tha t  fo l low because you say yes I  

conf i rm I  par t i c ipa ted  in  th is  meet ing ,  yes  I  was  in  th is  

meet ing .   There fore ,  th ings tha t  f low and the  a l legat ions  

tha t  f low f rom admi t t ing  to  be ing  present  in  tha t  meet ing  

you are  ve ry  s t randed in  te rms o f  now not  be ing  ab le  to  10 

deny your  par t i c i pa t ion  the re ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you see I  th ink  we are  a l l  agreed 

tha t  she needs to  dea l  w i th  each quest ion  on  i t s  own  

mer i t s .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  i t  maybe tha t  she might  no t  have  

reasonab le  grounds to  re fuse to  answer  a  par t i cu la r  

quest ion  bu t  she might  have reasonab le  grounds to  answer  

the  next  one.            

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  is  a  fo l low up so  I  th ink  a  lo t  

depends s imp ly  on  whether  in  regard  to  each quest ion  i f  

one can say they are  reasonab le  grounds.   

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  even w i th  tha t ,  w i th  what  you have 
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sa id  in  m ind I  wou ld  s t i l l  have the  concern  tha t  what  c r ime  

she cou ld  expose  herse l f  to  be ing  charged fo r  i s  no t  c lear  

even i f  she cou ld  be  sa id  to  have  had an in f luence on Mr  

Zuma.   Even i f  she sa id  you must  f i re  Mr  Nene now I  

cannot  know what  c r ime she cou ld  poss ib ly  be…[ in te rvene]  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    I t  i s  the  greates t  i rony Cha i r  because  

the  very  purpose o f  th is  Commiss ion  is  to  answer  tha t  very  

same quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  tha t  i s  what  I  want  you to  address 

to  say we l l  th is  cou ld  lead he r  to  tha t  par t i cu la r  c r ime tha t  10 

is  what  I  want  because there  can be a  number  o f  th ings 

tha t  maybe are  improper  bu t  a re  no t  c r imes,  you see.   

Some a re  improper  bu t  a re  a lso  c r imes but  there  may be  

o thers  tha t  a re  no t  p roper,  tha t  a re  improper  bu t  no t  

c r imes.   So tha t  i s  my concern  and i t  a r i ses  f rom seek ing  

to  s t r i ke  a  ba lance between one respect ing  her  p r iv i lege to  

no t  to  incr im inate  herse l f  bu t  a t  the  same t ime mak ing  sure  

tha t  we a l low tha t  on ly  when i t  fa l l s  w i th in  the  reasonab le  

grounds tha t  case law ta lks  about  and tha t  where  the  r i sk  

o f  be ing  p rosecu ted cr im ina l l y  i s  qu i te  remote  tha t  tha t  20 

fa l l s  ou ts ide  the  pr iv i lege.   So i t  is  a  quest ion  o f  t ry ing  to  

see where  we shou ld  s t r i ke  tha t  ba lance.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Wel l  Cha i r  maybe you may prov ide  

gu idance but  the  d i f f i cu l t y  i s  here .   Incr im inat ion  may not  

ex tend to  a  c r im ina l  p rosecut ion  bu t  incr im inat ion  may 
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ex tend to  a  po in t  where  somebody concedes to  par t i c ipa tes  

in  an  improper  conduct  wh ich  enab les  you f rom where  you  

s i t  to  make an adverse  f ind ing  and tha t  adverse  f ind ing  

aga ins t  the  pe rson made down the  l ine  const i tu tes  par t  o f  

conduct  used in  ev idence in  a  c r im ina l  p rosecut ion  even in  

an  unre la ted  cr ime but  can be used to  cor robora te  cer ta in  

fac ts  o r  can be used to  d raw ce r ta in  con jec ture  or  

c i rcumstant ia l  ev idence tha t  may then s tand as  a  bu lk  o f  

ev idence aga ins t  an  ind i v idua l .    

So i t  i s  a  genera l  ave rs ion  to  say ing  to  what  ex ten t  10 

can I  expose myse l f  g iven the  unknown and what  the 

po tent ia l  consequences may be and I  cannot  par t i c i pa te  in  

my own persecut ion  and tha t  i s  the  d i f f i cu l t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr,  do  you have someth ing  to  

say about  th is?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  I  do  Cha i r  I  have l i s tened care fu l l y  

to  my lea rned f r i end.   The one th ing  I  have not  heard  h im 

do is  ident i f y  a  c r ime tha t  answer ing  these quest ions  cou ld  

poss ib ly  lead to .   I  have heard  about  adverse  f ind ings  

be ing  made,  I  have heard  about  adverse  f ind ings  20 

potent ia l l y  ind ica t ing  improper  conduct  bu t  I  have  not  ye t  

heard  the  ident i f ica t ion  o f  a  c r ime  and I  th ink  tha t  tha t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  wou ld  we igh  w i l l  you  as  you dec ide  whether  

to  exe rc i se  your  d iscre t ion  to  requ i re  an  answer.   

The second po in t  and i t  i s  the  f ina l  one I  w ish  to  
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make is  on  th is  l ine  be tween the  f i rs t  seeming ly  innocuous 

quest ion  to  a  quest ion  where  you  might  ge t  in to  the  rea lm 

o f  an  exposure  to  a  c r im ina l  cha rge there  is  a  p ro tec t ion  

l i v ing  in  the  regu la t ions o f  th is  Commiss ion .   So i f  you  are  

dec id ing  be tween  you know a  ser ies  o f  quest ions the  four th  

o f  wh ich  cou ld  expose to  a  c r im ina l  charge and you a t  the  

th i rd  and you happen to  c ross  over  to  the  fou r th  i f  an 

answer  i s  g i ven Regu la t ion  82  o f  the  regu la t ions o f  th is  

Commiss ion  sa id  and I  quote :  

“A se l f - inc r im inat i ng  answer  or  a  s ta tement  g iven by  10 

a  w i tness be fore  the  Commiss ion  sha l l  no t  be  

admiss ib le  as  ev idence aga ins t  tha t  person in  any  

cr im ina l  p roceed ings brought  aga ins t  tha t  person  

ins t i tu ted  in  any cour t  except  and I  am paraphras ing  

now fo r  the  cr ime  o f  per ju ry. ”  

So Cha i r  aga ins t  tha t  back d rop i t  wou ld  be  the  

submiss ions  o f  the  lega l  team tha t  ask ing  Ms Myen i  o r  

d i rec t ing  Ms Myen i  to  answer  about  tha t  meet ing  does not  

on  a  reasonab le  bas is  tend to  imp l ica te  her  in  the  

commiss ion  o f  a  c r ime.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Buthe lez i .   

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Cha i r  the  pos i t ion  as  i t  ex i s ted  a t  

the  fo rmula t ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  under  Ru le  82  I  wou ld  

agree w i th  Ms Ho fmeyr  tha t  tha t  was the  in i t ia l  pos i t ion  bu t  

the  subsequent  amendment  tha t  have come th rough tha t  
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enab led  the  Commiss ion  to  co l labora te  w i th  law  

enforcement  agenc ies  in  our  v iew inva l ida tes  82  or  a re  a t  

odds w i th  82  and 82 now as i t  ex i s ts  in  our  v iew is  no  

longer  in  e f fec t .   We are  no  longer  en joy ing  what  we  

thought  we in i t ia l l y  en joyed under  82  because the  

subsequent  amendments  t ha t  have come th rough as  

promulgated fo l low ing I  wou ld  no t  g ive  you the  exact  da te  

bu t  i t  was qu i te  recent ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    January.            

ADV BUTHELEZI :    January,  a t  the  s ta r t  o f  th is  yea r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  I  th ink  January  or  la te r.           

ADV HOFMEYR:    These ones were  Ju ly.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh Ju ly.   

ADV BUTHELEZI :    I t  was Ju ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  were  January  ones and then Ju l y  

ones.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    But  the  recent  ones gave the  

Commiss ion  b igger  tee th  and the  s ize  tee th  tha t  the 

Commiss ion  now has in  our  v iew no longer  g i ve  us  the  

pro tec t ion  tha t  we en joyed prev ious l y  under  82 .   So tha t  20 

has no t  been tes ted  outs ide  th is  Commiss ion  bu t  to  e re  on  

the  s ide  o f  sa fe ty  we a re  assuming the  wors t  in  te rms o f  

what  those regu la t ions  and amendments  are  to  th ink  tha t  i f  

we were  to  go  and re ly  on  a  de fence o f  tha t  we were  

pro tec ted  by  82  tha t  de fence can  be inva l ida ted  by  these  
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amendments  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  somebody might  jus t  have  to  read  

the  prov is ion  re la t ing  to  the  shar ing  o f  in fo rmat ion .         

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  can  do so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  my unders tand ing  is  tha t  there  i s  

no th ing  in  the  prov is ions tha t  re la te  to  the  shar ing  o f  

in fo rmat ion  be tween the  Commiss ion  and the  NPA or  law  

enforcement  agenc ies  tha t  says  ev idence g iven  by  a 

w i tness in  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  be  admiss ib le  aga ins t  tha t  

w i tness in  subsequent  c r im ina l  p roceed ings.    10 

So one has got  to  read d i f fe ren t  p rov is ions o f  the  

regu la t ions as  fa r  as  poss ib le  in  a  manner  tha t  wou ld  make  

a l l  o f  them work  and i f  one adopts  tha t  approach as  I  reca l l  

tha t  p rov is ion  s imp ly  ta lks  about  shar ing  o f  in fo rmat ion  bu t  

does not  say  what  the  law enfo rcement  agenc ies  may do  

w i th  the  in fo rmat ion  once they have got  i t .   Obv ious ly  they  

must  no t  do  anyth ing  tha t  i s  no t  permi t ted  by  law now one  

o f  the  th ings tha t  Regu la t ion  82  says is :  

“Any ev idence tha t  a  w i tness has g iven in  the  

Commiss ion  w i l l  no t  be  admiss ib le  aga ins t  tha t  20 

w i tness in  any cr im ina l  p roceed ings. ”      

That  m ight  no t  mean tha t  the  ev idence o f  tha t  w i tness 

cannot  be  used cannot  be  used aga ins t  somebody e lse  no  

i f  there  were  two  or  th ree  peop le  who were  invo lved in  a  

c r ime and one g i ves ev idence before  the  Commiss ion  the  



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 120 of 265 
 

one who g ives  ev idence tha t  ev idence i t  may we l l  be  

argued maybe used aga ins t  the  o ther  one,  the  o ther  

person.    

But  in  te rms o f  Regu la t ion  82  i t  cannot  be  used  

aga ins t  the  one who gave ev idence and the  idea has to  be  

obv ious ly  tha t  the  d ra f te rs  o f  the  regu la t ion  sor t  to  

encourage persons to  come fo rward  and g ive  ev idence.   So 

the  one in te rp re ta t ion  to  wh ich  I  am inc l ined is  the  one tha t  

wou ld  say the  shar ing  o f  in fo rmat ion ,  the  p rov is ion  re la t ing  

to  the  shar ing  o f  in fo rmat ion  does not  say,  does not  nu l l i f y  10 

what  Regu la t ion  82  says.    

The law enforcement  agenc ies  who obta ined 

in fo rmat ion  f rom the  Commiss ion  cannot  subsequent ly  

p resent  tha t  ev idence in  cour t  in  a  c r im ina l  case aga ins t  

the  pe rson who gave i t .   They may  we l l  use  i t  and present  

i t  aga ins t  somebody e lse .   So i f  tha t  in te rpre ta t ion  is  

cor rec t  then the  immuni ty  wou ld  s t i l l  be  in  tac t  what  i t  

wou ld  mean is  s imp ly  tha t  where  you have g i ven ev idence  

you are  p ro tec ted  f rom the  NPA or  the  Po l ice  us ing  tha t  

ev idence in  subsequent  c r im ina l  p roceed ings aga ins t  you.   20 

They might  use  i t  aga ins t  somebody e l se  bu t  no t  aga ins t  

you.   That  i s  one poss ib le  in te rpre ta t ion  there  may be o the r  

poss ib le  in te rp re ta t ions.   

ADV BUTHELEZI :    May I  go  to  another  poss ib le  

in te rpre ta t ion  Cha i r?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.      

ADV BUTHELEZI :    I t  i s  the  one o f  what  we have now 

observed in  recent  months  where  persons tes t i f y ing  a t  th is  

Commiss ion  are  ar res ted  days a f te r  tes t i f y ing  here  and 

whethe r  cor rec t l y  o r  incor rec t l y  so  an  impress ion  is  c rea ted  

tha t  says the  bas is  o f  you r  a r res t  i s  you r  ev idence a t  the  

Commiss ion  and  i t  now not  once  not  tw ice  I  th ink  i t  has  

happened to  I  th ink  th ree  peop le  who have tes t i f ied  and  

have subsequent ly  been ar res ted  and what  i s  a lso  a  

d is t ingu ish ing  fac tor  i s  tha t  th is  was not  happen ing  p re-10 

Ju l y  regu la t ions bu t  post  Ju ly  regu la t ions.    

We now have a  sequence o f  events  where  person ’s  

come tes t i f y  a t  the  Commiss ion  and then th i s  fo l lows.   We 

are  here  preceded by  med ia  repor t s  say ing  you a re  due fo r  

a r res t  in  th is  week.   So our  avers ion  to  whatever  and we do  

not  even know why what  the  po tent ia l  charge may  be but  

hav ing  observed how the  law enforcement  agenc ies  have  

behaved in  re la t ion  to  the  Commiss ion  and what  i s  now 

p lay ing  ou t  as  an  in te rp lay  be tween fo r  example  sor ry  to  

c i te  bu t  I  w i l l  c i te  the  issue o f  Mr  Vincent  Smi th .   H is  20 

charged based on th ings tha t  re la tes  exact ly  to  h is  

ev idence a t  th is  Commiss ion .    

So we cannot  f rom where  we s i t  take  the  r i sk  o f  

say ing  we have got  th is  p ro tec t ion  o f  82  when we a re  now 

see ing  someth ing  p lay ing  ou t  to ta l l y  d i f fe ren t  on  the 
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sur face  and ou rs  now to  ere  comple te l y  on  the  s ide  o f  

caut ion  to  say look we are  h igh ly  exposed and we want  to  

m in im ise  the  leve l  o f  our  exposure  in  the  best  way poss ib le  

and go ing  back to  where  Cha i r ’s  comments  in i t ia ted  f rom 

on the  po in t  o f  how can th is  quest ion  po tent ia l l y  expose 

you.    

But  i t  can  potent ia l l y  expose  you where  your  

admiss ion  cor robora tes  the  ev idence o f  anothe r  o r  where  

your  admiss ion  cor robora tes  cer ta in  o the r  th ings wh ich  

u l t imate ly  two,  four  quest ions down the  l ine  pu ts  you in  a  10 

ho le .   So ra ther  t han open yourse l f  up  because i f  you have 

admi t ted  to  a  quest ion  to  say I  admi t  tha t  I  was in  th is  

meet ing  then the  Cha i r  can now compel  you to  answer  to  

the  contents  o f  th is  meet ing ,  and  once you have s tepped 

in to  tha t  room then we no longer  can invoke and say I  do 

no t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f  because you have now sa id  

you were  the re  and r i gh t ly  the  Cha i r  can now then  compel  

you to  say you have a l ready admi t ted  to  be ing  there  bu t  

the  sa fer  pos i t ion  is  i f  I  say  no  I  am not  te l l ing  you i f  I  was 

there  or  no t  then I  have not  g iven  the  Cha i r  a  bas i s  to  say  20 

answer  because you have not  conf i rmed your  p resence in  

tha t  meet ing  and tha t  i s  the  d i lemma Cha i r.   And we s i t  on  

d i f fe ren t  spect rums Cha i r,  Ms Hofmeyr  s i t s  on  what  she  

needs to  do ,  I  s i t  on  what  I  need to  guard  aga ins t  and you  

s i t  on  what  you need to  do .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    I t  i s  th is  convergence now tha t  i s  

becoming a  p rob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  I  unders tand o f  course  one does  

not  know what  p rompts  law enforcement  agenc ies  to  ac t  in  

a  cer ta in  way a t  a  cer ta in  t ime but  one expects  them to  ac t  

in  acco rdance w i th  the  law.   I f  they  ac t  o r  car ry  ou t  a r res ts  

because they be l ieve  tha t  peop le  who have g iven ev idence  

tha t  they can use  in  cour t  ev idence tha t  has been g iven by  

w i tnesses in  the  Commiss ion  aga ins t  the  w i tnesses tha t  10 

m ight  be  there  v iew but  the  Commiss ion  be l ieves tha t  

Regu la t ion  82  p rov ides pro tec t ion .    

Of  cou rse  I  mus t  jus t  say  tha t  i t  i s  a  mat te r  o f  

concern  where  peop le  who are  ment ioned by  w i tnesses  

who have come before  the  Commiss ion  and have so r t  to  

ass is t  the  Commiss ion  in  i t s  work  i f  we have been 

ment ioned by  w i tnesses who have come fo rward  to  the  

Commiss ion  to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  as  hav ing  be ing  

invo l ved in  c r ime and peop le  who have not  themse lves 

come fo rward  to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  ge t  dea l t  w i th  in  a 20 

manner  tha t  may g ive  r i se  to  a  percept ion  tha t  law 

enforcement  agenc ies  a re  pun ish ing  those who coopera te  

w i th  the  Commiss ion  tha t  i s  a  mat te r  o f  concern  because i t  

cou ld  d iscourage  o ther  peop le  who want  to  come to  the  

Commiss ion  and  te l l  the  Commiss ion  about  mat te rs  tha t  
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a re  be ing  invest iga ted  by  the  Commiss ion  i f  the re  i s  a  

pa t te rn  tha t  a f te r  you have g iven ev idence befo re  the  

Commiss ion  you get  a r res ted .    

So tha t  wou ld  be  a  mat te r  o f  concern .   I  have sa id  

pub l i ca l l y  tha t  when cer ta in  a r res ts  were  made las t  yea r  

wh ich  inc luded Mr  Agr i zz i  and no ar res t  were  made o f  

cer ta in  o the r  peop le  who had been  ment ioned by  h im in  h is  

ev idence tha t  accord ing  to  h is  ev idence seems to  be  ve ry  

invo l ved in  ac ts  o f  cor rup t ion ,  a l leged ac ts  o f  cor rup t ion  i t  

was a  mat te r  o f  concern  because  Mr  Agr i zz i  cou ld  eas i l y  10 

say we l l  I  am no longer  coopera t ing  w i th  the  Commiss ion  

fo r tunate ly,  he  cont inued to  coopera te  w i th  the 

Commiss ion .  

So but  o f  course  we cannot  make  dec i s ions based  

on what  i f  the  law enforcement  agenc ies  m isread the  law or  

a t tach  a  wrong in te rpre ta t ion  o f  the  law one has got  to  look  

a t  the  law and determine what  i t  means and then make a  

dec is ion  based on tha t .   Ms Hofmeyr  you wanted to  

respond?                      

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  jus t  one submiss ion  the  p r iv i lege  20 

aga ins t  se l f - inc r im inat ion  is  no t  a  p r iv i lege not  to  ge t  

a r res ted  i t  i s  a  p r iv i lege to  dec l ine  to  answer  a  quest ion  i f  

the  answer  tends  on reasonab le  g rounds to  expose  you to  

on  reasonab le  g rounds to  a  c r im ina l  cha rge.   Tha t  i s  the 

on ly  quest ion  tha t  needs to  be  answered w i th  respect .       
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay I  am not  go ing  to  make a  

b lanket  ru l ing  bu t  i f  you  rever t  to  tha t  meet ing  I  w i l l  l ook  a t  

each quest ion  as  i t  comes and Ms Myen i  can respond i f  

she invokes the  p r iv i lege and you –  I  w i l l  then look a t  each 

quest ion  as  i t  comes.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  Ms Myen i  you were  fo l low ing the  

exchange?  

MS MYENI :     Yes,  Cha i rperson I  was thank you ve ry  much.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  thank you.   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  I  was go ing  to  ac tua l l y  be  

mov ing  f rom fo rmer  Min i s te r  Nene ’s  ev idence  to  the  

ev idence tha t  Min is te r  Gordhan gave be fore  the  

Commiss ion  and in  par t i cu la r  when  he spoke about  mat te rs  

re la t ing  to  SAA on the  20 t h  o f  November  2018 be fore  the  

Commiss ion .   Now h is  ev idence was a l so  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  

your  conduct  a t  SAA r isks  ser ious  negat ive  impacts  fo r  the  

f i scus.   A re  you aware  o f  h is  ev idence in  tha t  regard?  

MS MYENI :     Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond to  the 

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    He came before  the  Commiss ion  and 

tes t i f ied  tha t  your  e f fo r t s  to  seek to  reverse  Min is te r  

Nene ’s  dec i s ion  on  the  a i rbus  swop t ransact ion  wou ld  

l i ke ly  have t r iggered debt  de fau l ts  by  SAA due  to  the 

pressure  tha t  the  pre-de l i very  payments  under  your  
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p roposed t ransact ion  wou ld  have p laced on SAA’s  cash 

reserves.   Ms Myen i  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  the  a i rbus 

t ransact ion  tha t  was befo re  the  Min i s t ry  o f  F inance in  

2015.   Do you d ispute  tha t  you r  e f fo r ts  wou ld  have had th is  

e f fec t  on  SAA’s  cash reserves had  you been successfu l  in  

revers ing  Min is te r  Nene ’s  dec is ion?       

MS MYENI :     Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond so  tha t  I  

avo id  inc r im inat ing  myse l f .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Min is te r  Gordhan tes t i f ied  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  he  dec ided not  to  reve rse  Min is te r  Nene ’s  10 

dec is ion  desp i te  your  app l i ca t ion  to  h im fo r  tha t  to  be  done 

and he dec ided not  to  reverse  i t  fo r  the  very  rea l  impact  he  

be l ieved i t  wou ld  have on SAA’s  cash reserves.   But  then 

he rece ived a  ca l l  f rom former  Pres ident  Zuma ask ing  i f  he  

wou ld  no t  recons ide r  h is  dec i s ion .   D id  you ask  fo rmer  

Pres ident  Zuma to  p lace  tha t  ca l l  to  Min is te r  Gordhan?   

MS MYENI :     Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond to  the 

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you ever  d iscuss w i th  fo rmer  

Pres ident  Zuma your  e f fo r ts  to  seek to  reverse  Min is te r  20 

Nene ’s  dec i s ion  on  the  a i rbus swop  t ransact ion?    

MS MYENI :     Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond to  the 

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  two success i ve  F inance  

Min is te rs  have tes t i f ied  be fore  th is  Commiss ion  to  the 
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e f fec t  tha t  your  approach to  SAA and i t s  f inanc ia l  s tab i l i t y  

dur ing  pa r t i cu la r ly  the  per iod  o f  2015 was reck less .   Do 

you d ispute  tha t  ev idence?  

MS MYENI :     Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond to  the 

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  I  wou ld  now l i ke  to  go  back i f  I  

may to  the  B lake ’s  Trave l  aspect  o f  the  BOSASA ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Jus t  to  summar i se  where  we a re  

because o f  tha t  in te rac t ion  th ings have not  f lown as  10 

schemat ica l l y  as  I  had hoped but  what  we t rave rsed in  the  

ev idence so  fa r  i s  BOSASA ev idence today a t  leas t ,  

BOSASA ev idence about  a l leged payments  be ing  made and  

benef i t s  be ing  g i ven because o f  a  pa r t i cu la r  ro le  tha t  Ms  

Myen i  i s  a l leged to  have p layed in  fac i l i ta t ing  mat te rs  w i th  

fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma.     

We have then looked a t  in  the  contex t  o f  some o f  

tha t  ev idence re la ted  to  the  secur i t y  ins ta l la t ion ,  we have  

looked a t  what  happened w i th  the  search  and se i zure  

opera t ion  a t  the  end o f  las t  yea r,  we have looked  a t  the  20 

S ta te  secur i t y  agenc ies  ac t i v i t ies  w i th in  SAA and then we 

took tha t  to  some o f  the  prev ious Min is te rs  tes t imony.   I  am 

now go ing  to  loop  back to  BOSASA to  comple te  tha t  aspect  

and then we w i l l  move onto  SAA mat te rs  I  th ink  fo r  the 

remainder  o f  the  a f te rnoon.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .              

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  in  o rder  to  dea l  w i th  the  

B lake ’s  Trave l  mat te rs  you w i l l  need tha t  f i l e  T18  tha t  I  

unders tand you now have w i th  you ;  cou ld  you have tha t  in  

f ron t  o f  you.    

MS MYENI :    Yes,  I  do  Cha i rperson and I  thank you very  

much fo r  a r rang ing  fo r  i t s  de l i ve ry,  much apprec ia ted .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  Mr  Agr izz i  apo log ies  Cha i r,  Mr  10 

Agr izz i  gave ev idence to  the  Commiss ion  tha t  BOSASA 

used B lake ’s  Trave l  to  fac i l i ta te  t rave l  a r rangements  fo r  

var ious government  o f f i c ia ls  and peop le  who they be l ieved  

had in f luence over  and amongst  o thers  fo rmer  P res ident  

Zuma and I  gave  the  ind i ca t ion  prev ious ly  Cha i r  o f  where  

you w i l l  f ind  tha t  in  h is  a f f idav i t  and the  t ransc r ip t  o f  the 

22 n d  o f  January  2019.    

Now Mr  Br ian  B lake who was  an employee o f  

B lake ’s  Trave l  tes t i f ied  be fore  the  Commiss ion  and  he d id  

so  on  the  29 t h  o f  Ju ly  2020 and jus t  fo r  reco rd  pu rposes I  20 

am go ing  to  p ick  up  h is  tes t imony Cha i r  a t  the  t ranscr ip t  o f  

the  29 t h  o f  Ju ly  2020 a t  page 196 f rom l ine  11 .   Mr  B lake ’s  

tes t imony was tha t  BOSASA had pa id  fo r  va r ious a i r  t i cke ts  

and accommodat ion  fo r  you Ms Myen i .   Do you d i spute  tha t  

they d id  tha t?       
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MS MYENI :     May I  no t  respond Cha i rpe rson on the  

quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  what  I  wou ld  now l i ke  to  take  

you to  a re  the  invo ices tha t  Mr  B lake prov ided  to  the 

Commiss ion  so  tha t  I  can have your  response on each o f  

them.   You w i l l  f ind  them in  Bund le  T18 and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

s ta r t  a t  page 70,  seven zero .  Th is  i s  an  invo i ce  accord ing  

to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  B lake tha t  ev idences tha t  BOSASA 

pa id  R17 759,  60  to  enab le  you to  s tay  a t  the  Shera ton  

Hote l  be tween the  4 t h  o f  May 2014  and  the  6 t h  o f  May 2014.   10 

Do you d ispute  tha t  tha t  i s  the  case?      

MS MYENI :     May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson to  the 

quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    They d id  so  aga in  two months  la te r  

acco rd ing  to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  B lake in  Ju ly  o f  2014 and  

you w i l l  f ind  tha t  a t  page 75.  

CHAIRPERSON:    75?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  Cha i r  o f  the  same Bund le  T18.   On 

tha t  occas ion  they pay…[ in te rvene ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe I  jus t  want  to  say someth ing  here  20 

jus t  to  cont ras t  w i th  the  issue I  ra ised about  the  meet ing  

be tween invo lv ing  Mr  Nene and Ms Myen i  and Mr  Zuma.   

When i t  comes to  th is  payment  I  accept  fu l l y  tha t  Ms Myen i  

i s  en t i t led  to  invoke her  p r i v i lege because I  can see what  i t  

cou ld  lead to .   So I  jus t  want  to  ment ion  tha t  there  are  
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mat te rs  where  one can see immedia te ly  tha t  th is  cou ld  lead  

to  a  c r im ina l  cha rge but  then there  are  o thers  where  you  

s t rugg le  to  see what  poss ib le  c r im ina l  cha rge bu t  I  jus t  

wanted to  ment ion  tha t  in  pass ing ,  okay a l r igh t .           

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  th is  next  one is  two months  la te r  in  

Ju l y  2014 i t  i s  a t  page 75.   Mr  B lake ’s  ev idence was tha t  

BOSASA pa id  fo r  th is  s tay  be tween the  3 r d  o f  Ju l y  2014 

and the  4 t h  o f  Ju ly  2014.   Do you  d ispute  Ms Myen i  tha t  

BOSASA made tha t  payment  fo r  you?  

MS MYENI :     May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  10 

not  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  do  no t  want  to  go  to  every  invo i ce  bu t  I  

want  to  summar i se  and then o f fe r  you an oppor tun i ty  Ms  

Myen i  to  respond .   We have looked a t  the  invo i ce  i n  May,  

we have looked a t  the  invo ice  two months  la te r  in  Ju ly.   

Next  there  are  th ree  invo i ces dur ing  the  course  o f  August  

2014,  there  are  two invo ices in  September  o f  2014 and 

there  i s  one invo ice  in  November  o f  2014.   Do you  d ispute  

tha t  on  a l l  o f  those occas ions BOSASA made payment  fo r  

your  accommodat ion  a t  the  Shera ton  Hote l?      20 

MS MYENI :     May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  Ms Hofmeyr  to  go  to  the  

spec i f i c  invo i ces or  a re  you happy  tha t  she does not  go  to  

the  spec i f i c  invo i ces?  



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 131 of 265 
 

MS MYENI :     Yes,  I  am happy tha t  she does not  go  to  the  

spec i f i c  invo i ces Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    On my count  tha t  aggregates  to  e igh t  

accommodat ions over  seven months  a t  the  Shera ton  Hote l  

in  Pre tor ia  be ing  pa id  fo r  by  BOSASA accord ing  to  Mr  

B lake ’s  ev idence.   Do you d i spute  tha t  they pa id  fo r  those 

s tays  fo r  you?  

MS MYENI :     Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond to  the 

quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .     10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  B lake ’s  ev idence was tha t  the  

accommodat ion  was not  conf ined to  your  s tays  a t  the  

Shera ton  in  Pre tor ia  they inc luded the  Southe rn  Sun 

Bever ley  H i l l s  in  Ju l y  o f  2014 and jus t  fo r  the  record  Cha i r  

un less  Ms Myen i  wants  us  to  go  there  tha t  can be found in  

T18 a t  page 79 and they a lso  pa id  fo r  you to  s tay  a t  The 

Rad isson B lu  in  Newlands Cape Town in  February  2015 and 

tha t  fo r  the  record  is  to  be  found a t  T18 page 90.   Do you  

d ispute  tha t  BOSASA pa id  those add i t iona l  invo ices on  

your  beha l f?  20 

MS MYENI :     May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    The benef i t s  acco rd ing  to  Mr  B lake ’s  

ev idence tha t  BOSASA gave to  you were  no t  conf ined to  

cover ing  your  accommodat ion  expenses over  the  per iod  o f  
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2014 and 2015 but  a lso  p lane t i cke ts  fo r  you.   These are  

t i cke ts  th roughou t  2014,  I  w i l l  take  you to  one or  two but  I  

am go ing  to  summar i se  f i rs t  they  were  p lane t i cke ts  f rom 

Johannesburg  to  Ne lspru i t ,  f rom Durban to  Cape Town,  

f rom Durban to  Johannesburg ,  f rom Cape Town to  

Johannesburg ,  f rom Cape Town to  Durban ,  f rom 

Johannesburg  to  Durban and f rom Johannesburg  to  East  

London and Durban to  Johannesburg .   And le t  us  jus t  go  to  

one o f  them so tha t  we can have your  response on  i t .   You 

can f ind  tha t  in  Bund le  T18 a t  page 73.   10 

MS MYENI :     I  have i t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  th is  re f lec ts  an  i tem o f  South  A f r i can  

A i rways there  is  par t i cu la r  t i cke t  number,  the  passenger  

ind ica ted  on the  invo ice  is  Dudu Myen i ,  the  rou te  i s  

Johannesburg ,  Ne lsp ru i t ,  Johannesburg .   The date  i s  the  

29 t h  o f  May 2014.   Do you d ispute  Mr  B lake ’s  ev idence tha t  

BOSASA pa id  fo r  th is  p lane t i cke t  fo r  you?     

MS MYENI :     May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you d ispu te  any o f  the  remain ing  20 

invo i ces as  hav ing  be ing  pa id  by  BOSASA for  you 

accord ing  to  Mr  B lake ’s  ev idence?  

MS MYENI :     May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .     

CHAIRPERSON :     Ms Hofmeyr  jus t  fo r  the  record  te l l  me 
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where  the  o the rs  are  to  be  found?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in l y  le t  me g ive  the  fu l l  record  so  

the  one we looked a t  was Exh ib i t  T18 page 73,  the  next  

one is  T18 page 76,  the  th i rd  i s  T18…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON :     Hang on.     

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh apo log ies  Cha i r  I  am go ing  too  fas t .   

CHAIRPERSON :     Okay r igh t  cont inue.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    The next  one is  a t  page 80,  e igh t  zero  o f  

T18.  

CHAIRPERSON :     Yes.   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    The next  one is  a t  page 82 o f  T18 .   

CHAIRPERSON :     Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    The next  i s  a t  page 83 o f  T18.   

CHAIRPERSON :     Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Then we jump a  b i t  to  page 88 o f  T18.   

CHAIRPERSON :     Jus t  one second ,  yes .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then ove r  the  page a t  T18 page 89.   

CHAIRPERSON :     Those are  jus t  a i r  t i cke ts?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Those are  jus t  a i r  t i cke ts  so  I  t r ied  to  

g roup them schemat ica l l y  a l l  be  i t  tha t  they are  in  some 20 

sense mudd led  up in  there  order ing .   We d id  f i rs t  

accommodat ion  a t  the  Shera ton  in  Pre tor ia .   

CHAIRPERSON :     Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Then we d id  accommodat ion  a t  two o ther  

loca t ions Southe rn  Sun and Rad isson B lu .   
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CHAIRPERSON :     Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Then we moved to  a i rp lane t i cke ts .   

CHAIRPERSON :     Yes,  okay a t  some s tage w i l l  there  be  

an a t tempt  to  say  how much they to ta l led?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  cer ta in ly.   

CHAIRPERSON :     Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then Ms Myen i  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  

you why i t  i s  tha t  BOSASA was pay ing  fo r  you to  s tay  a t  

these hote l s  and f l y  a round the  count ry?  

MS MYENI :     Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond so  tha t  I  do  10 

not  incr im inate  myse l f .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  in  the  absence o f  any  

ev idence f rom you tha t  cou ld  exp la in  a  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  

en t i t led  you to  rece ive  those bene f i t s  f rom BOSASA I  want  

to  pu t  i t  to  you  tha t  the  fac t  tha t  these payments  were  

made is  suppor t i ve  o f  Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  ev idence befo re  th is  

Commiss ion  tha t  these benef i t s  were  g iven to  you because  

o f  the  in f luence tha t  you were  unders tood to  be  ab le  to  

exer t .   Do you d ispute  tha t?     

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  looks  l i ke  t here  i s  a  d isconnect ion  20 

aga in .   

MS MYENI :     So  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry  we had los t  you now we hear  

you,  d id  you hear  every th ing?  D id  you hear  the  quest ion  

Ms Myen i?   She cannot  hear.    
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ADV HOFMEYR:    We seem to  have a  b i t  o f  an  in te r rup t ion .    

MS MYENI :     Yes ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can you hear  me now Ms Myen i?  

MS MYENI :     I  heard  the  quest ion  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   

MS MYENI :     Yes,  I  hea rd  the  quest ion  Cha i r  and I  

responded.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  was the  answer?   

MS MYENI :     I  d id  respond to  the  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh jus t  repeat  the  response because I  10 

d id  no t  hear  i t?   

MS MYENI :     The  answer  was may I  no t   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  she gets  cu t  o f f  aga in .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  I  have  been in fo rmed tha t  the  

issue is  a  bandwid th  i ssue i t  happens in te rmi t ten t ly  i t  i s  on  

Ms Myen i ’s  s ide  so  there  is  no th ing  we can do s i t t ing  here  

bu t  i t  has  been res tored prev ious ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    So maybe we wa i t  a  few more  seconds 

and i f  no t  we cou ld  take  an ad journment .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t  i s  f ine  I  am sure  she is  go ing  to  

come back.   I f  you  are  back i f  you  can hear  us  Ms Myen i  

jus t  te l l  us?   
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  what  we are  go ing  to  now t ry  and 

do is  jus t  res tar t  the  sess ion ,  the  zoom sess ion  because  

tha t  somet imes s tops.   So i f  we cou ld  request  jus t  a  shor t  

ad journment  to  fac i l i ta te  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  we ad journ .   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS  

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  understand we are able to cont inue now.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  can you hear us? 

MS MYENI:   Yes very wel l  thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Ms Myeni  before we lost  

connect ion wi th you I  had put  i t  to you that  in the absence of  

any explanat ion f rom you that  would give this commission 

insight  into why BOSASA was making these payments for 

you rout inely between the per iod of  2014 and 2016.   There is 

credence added to Mr Agrizzi ’s version that  these payments 

were made because of  the inf luence that  BOSASA bel ieved 

you had in  respect  of  former President  Zuma.  Do you 20 

dispute that? 

MS MYENI:   May I  not  respond Chairperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  the total  value of  these var ious 

payments that  Mr Blake f rom Blake’s Travel  has test i f ied 
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before this commission were paid on your behal f  by BOSASA 

is amount  of  R101 576.67.   Do you dispute that  you received 

a benef i t  of  that  amount f rom BOSASA in the per iod 2014 to 

2015? 

MS MYENI:   May I  not  respond Chairperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you able to provide any legi t imate 

reason why BOSASA would have spent  these amounts on 

your behal f?  

MS MYENI:   May I  not  respond to you Chairperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   In order not  to incr iminate yoursel f .  

MS MYENI:   Just  for – sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In order not  to incr iminate yoursel f .  

MS MYENI:   Sorry Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am saying are you… 

MS MYENI:   Correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then just… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Just  for the record of  that  20 

R101 576.67 R21 660.00 of  i t  was spent  on the t ravel ,  the 

f l ights,  the air  t ickets and R69 916.00 on accommodat ion.   

Ms Myeni  Mr Blake also test i f ied that  in 2014 the Hawks had 

started to invest igate the BOSASA travel  benef i ts wi th 

respect  to var ious government off ic ia ls.   And part  of  that  
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invest igat ion involved cloning Blake’s Travels hard dr ive wi th  

al l  of  i t  customer informat ion on i t .   Are you aware that  Mr 

Blake gave that  evidence before the commission? 

MS MYENI:   May I  not  respond Chairperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Blake also test i f ied and Chair  just  for  

the record you wi l l  f ind these parts of  h is test imony in the 

t ranscr ipt  of  the 29 July 2020 f rom page 198.    

He also test i f ied that  he had deposed to an aff idavi t  

for the Hawks and was prepared to test i fy  about  what he 10 

knew regarding these benef i ts that  you had received but  that  

the Hawks had then suddenly informed him that  the case had 

“d isappeared”.    

Can you assist  the commission in  relat ion to those 

facts?  Do you have any basis for d isput ing them? 

MS MYENI:   May I  not  respond to the quest ion Chair  to avoid 

sel f - incr iminat ion.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then f inal ly Mr Blake test i f ied that  in 

2019 af ter Mr Agrizzi  had test i f ied Mr Blake fol lowed up wi th  

the Hawks about his cloned hard dr ive and was informed that  20 

the hard dr ive had been stolen or  had d isappeared f rom 

Hawks custody.   Again Ms Myeni  do you have any insight  

that  you could provide to  the commission or any evidence 

that  you can make avai lable to us to  dispute that? 

MS MYENI:   Clar i ty – the d isappearance or – of  the 
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informat ion f rom the Hawks and my involvement and what I  

need to dispute what is i t  that  I  have got  to dispute/  

ADV HOFMEYR:   What I  am asking is i f  you have… 

MS MYENI:   When somebody says the informat ion  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink there is a l i t t le bi t  of  d isconnect ion.   

Can you hear me Ms Myeni .  

MS MYENI:   Yes.   There was a disconnect ion Chai r.   I  am 

back now.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  th ink just  – just… 

MS MYENI:   Yes very wel l  Chai rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  start  your response afresh because 

we heard some parts but  I  th ink we did not  hear some parts  

of  your response. 

MS MYENI:   In other words Chai r  I  was asking for c lar i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   These technica l  chal lenges are real l y  

problemat ic.   We cannot hear you f rom this s ide Ms Myeni .   

Maybe you do hear us.    

MS MYENI:   To say when they have – what is i t  a lso I  cannot  

hear you.   Chai r  I  can hear you very wel l .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you can hear us?  We cannot hear you.   20 

Now I  can hear you but  as you give your response you get  

cut  off .   So I  do not  know before lunch you know the – 

everything seemed to be smooth.   I  do not  know whether  

there is something that  should – should not  be used for too 

long or what.   We – we – I  th ink we wi l l  t ry again.   Let  us t ry 
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again Ms Myeni .   Each t ime you start  g iv ing your response a 

disconnect ion – a disconnect ion  happens.  So just  t ry again 

to g ive your response again.   I  th ink she … 

MS MYENI:   I  need to assist  the commission about 

disappearance of  what is i t  that  I  can assist  wi th when the 

Hawks say the – their  informat ion disappeared and I  do not  

know Blake said that  Hawks said that  – so what is i t  that  I  

have got  to respond to?  That  is  what I  am t rying to ask 

Chai r.   I  need clar i ty in other words.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is f ine.   Ms Hofmeyr.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   Ms Myeni  I  completely 

understand your request  for c lar i ty.   I t  is s imply and i f  you 

say I  have no knowledge of  those al legat ions at  al l  that  

would certainly be an answer you could give.   What I  am 

seeking to do is give you an opportuni ty that  i f  you happen 

to have some informat ion that  you thought was relevant  to 

indicate that  what Mr Blake had said was fa lse we would 

certainly want that  to come before the commission.   So i t  is  

just  an opportuni ty to say to you can you – do you have any 

evidence that  indicates that  what he has said is not  correct? 20 

MS MYENI:   May I  not  respond to th is quest ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS MYENI:   To avoid se l f - incr iminat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  I  would then – that  completes the 
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B lake’s Travel  evidence.   And so now I  would l ike to go i f  we 

may to – back to South Af r ican Ai rways actual ly and matters 

ar is ing there? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay before you do that .   So this has 

completed the BOSASA related evidence quest ions? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  r ight .   Okay Ms Myeni  wi th regard 

to BOSASA I  just  want to say this and you can – you can say 

that  you do not  have any comments or you do not  want to 

say anything that  is f ine.    10 

I  just  want to say that  the – the fact  that  you have not  

responded to most  i f  not  al l  the quest ions relat ing to 

BOSASA and to Mr Agrizzi ’s  evidence that  was put  to you.  Mr 

Le Roux’s evidence about the securi ty instal lat ions and the – 

Mr Agrizzi ’s evidence relat ing to the meet ing at  the Sheraton 

may wel l  make anyone who has been fol lowing the evidence 

to ask the quest ion what relat ionship was there between 

BOSASA or Mr Watson or Mr Agrizzi  and Ms Myeni  and or  Mr 

Zuma that  made BOSASA spend the amounts that  Mr Agrizzi  

spoke about because a lot  of  that  evidence has not  been 20 

denied in your ora l  evidence.    

What is i t  that  made BOSASA spend the kind of  

monies that  accord ing to Mr Richard Le Roux they spent  I  

th ink close to hal f  a mi l l ion at  your residence in Richards 

Bay in terms of  securi ty – securi ty  instal lat ions.   That  made 
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them spend the kind of  money they spent  on you in  regard to  

t ravel l ing and accommodat ion.    

So in other  words i t  would make somebody ask that  

quest ion to say why would a company spend so much money 

on somebody who does not  work for i t  and who does not  

seem to have been conduct ing any business wi th i t  and so 

on?  And of  course when I  evaluate the evidence that  is 

before me and I  need to ment ion this to you as part  o f  be ing 

fai r  to you.    

When I  evaluate the evidence before me to t ry and 10 

establ ish what happened I  wi l l  be having this ev idence of  

these payments wi thout  any denial  f rom you or any 

explanat ion to say no but  these payments there was nothing 

wrong with they were legi t imate.   This is what they were 

about – about the payments for ai r  t ickets and payments for  

accommodat ion.    

I  wi l l  be evaluat ing evidence in ci rcumstances where 

I  wi l l  not  have your evidence to say no there was nothing 

wrong with these – wi th BOSASA paying for these ai r  t ickets 

and paying for accommodat ion because of  a,  b,  c,  d .   And i f  20 

there is no evidence that  gives an explanat ion on these 

things i t  might  be di ff icul t  not  to accept  the reason being 

advanced by Mr Agr izzi  just  to mark because Mr Agrizzi  says 

BOSASA spent the monies they spent  on you for a part icular  

reason that  he has given.    
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So I  am just  ment ioning that  so that  you understand 

the impact  of  there being no answers f rom  you on – or 

evidence f rom you that  ei ther denies or explains some of  

these things.   You understand? 

MS MYENI:   I  do understand Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

MS MYENI:   Is the Chairperson want ing me to make – to 

comment or the respond? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  just  wanted you to be alert  what the 

impl icat ions are.   That  is what I  wanted.   Did you want  to say 10 

something?  You do not  have to comment but  i f  you want to 

comment I  can l isten.  

MS MYENI:   With respect  Chai rperson thank you for  your – 

the clar i ty you have made in relat ion to the BOSASA matters 

and al l  what  the Chairperson has al luded to.    

 Chairperson I  th ink also I  need to c lar i fy that .   When 

I  say I  would not  l ike to comment or  to respond to a quest ion 

that  is put  before me Chai rperson i t  does not  mean 

admission of  gui l t  nor admission of  wrong doing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MS MYENI:   So that  i f  I  say I  do not  want to incr iminate 

mysel f  people or any other l istener  or i t  is placed on record 

that  when I  do not  say anything about what is put  before me 

I  am and I  have in another – dur ing another t ime I  have 

responded.   
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L ike for instance there is an aff idavi t  – an aff idavi t  I  

sent  – I  submit ted to the commission but  Chairperson at  a – 

at  the r ight  forum i f  I  am charged I  wi l l  be able to give proper 

responses that  are not  muddied by – by any other narrat ive 

that  is – is – has been happening in the country.    

Chair  wi th respect  as wel l  in my submission that  I  

made before you – before coming into the – to th is  

commission I  referenced your comments regarding BOSASA 

and I  am sure the Chairperson has been able to read the 

comments I  made.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have… 

MS MYENI:   When somebody is – sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have read yes.  

MS MYENI:   That  Chairperson somebody would be test i fy ing 

not  ment ioning my name but  my name wi l l  be drawn in into 

that  part icular person’s evidence that  he is put t ing to  say oh 

[Afr ican language] you know l ike [Afr ican language] when a 

person has not  ment ioned my name and then the person gets 

led into ment ioning my name.   

The c lassical  example is Vincent  Smith.   So I  am 20 

saying Chai r  let  me remain wi th my si lence as the pr iv i lege 

been given to me by your good sel f -Chai r  so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f .    

And then I  get  into a p lace where – or a forum where 

I  wi l l  be able to clear my name on things that  have been said 
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at  th is commission or even by the media.    

So Chairperson maybe I  should just  say thank you 

very much but  I  th ink I  wi l l  cont inue wi th the preference that  

I  have made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   To say I  would rather  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   Not  respond to some of  the things that  have 

been put  before the commission.   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no thank you Ms Myeni .   I  appreciate 10 

that  and what I  sa id was not  meant to say change your  view.   

I t  was simply to  – to make sure that  you are understand the 

impl icat ions.   Because si t t ing here i f  I  l ike I  can s i t  here and 

just  keep quiet  even i f  there is something that  I  am thinking 

and keep quiet .    

But  the other approach which I  prefer is to art icu late 

what is going on in my mind because then i t  g ives you an 

opportuni ty  to know what is going on in my mind and put  

your s ide of  the story and inf luence me in regard to  a certain 

issue so that  I  can l isten to everybody.    20 

Otherwise i f  I  l i ke I  can just  keep quiet  and you might 

then think I  am not  th inking anything but  I  prefer  to put  

matters in f ront  of  you to say there is th is issue what do you 

say about i t?  You get  a  chance to address i t .   I t  does not  

mean I  have made up my mind.    
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I t  just  means I  want to hear what  you have to say 

about i t  so that  i f  I  make a f inding about i t  you have had a 

chance to have your say on i t .   You understand? 

MS MYENI:   Thank you very much Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS MYENI:   And i t  is great ly appreciated.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay al r ight .   Ms Hofmeyr you may 

proceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   Ms Myeni  I  would now 

l ike to take us back to SAA i f  I  might?  You recal l  that  on 10 

Wednesday we le f t  SAA matters real ly at  the end of  2014 

af ter qu i te I  would say tumultuous year at  SAA given the 

fact ions that  had developed in the board.   We saw the report  

that  the DPE had done about that .   We t raversed the 

complaints that  s ix  board members had made against  you 

and your responses to them.  And we culminated wi th the 

decision of  then Minister  Brown to reta in you and Ms 

Kwinana on the board in October and the rest  of  the other  

board members lef t  and you were jo ined on the board as I  

understand i t  by Dr Tambi and Mr Dickson.    20 

But  I  want to focus in a l i t t le  b i t  further in 2014 

because at  the t ime where there was that  conf l ict  amongst  

the board members as we saw evidence in the let ters that  we 

looked at  we have evidence before the commission that  you 

engaged the services of  Werksmans At torneys to  provide 
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advice on the issues that  you were having wi th the board.   Is 

that  correct? 

MS MYENI:   May I  not  respond Chairperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now what Werksmans did is Chai r  we have 

received an aff idavi t  f rom Mr Manaka at  Werksmans which 

we can go to and just  enter into the exhib i t  i f  we may – enter 

into the record as an exhibi t .   I t  is actual ly the last  document  

that  has been included in Ms Myeni ’s Bundle DD34[b]  and i t  

is under Tab 43 and i t  starts at  page 1977.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chair  i f  I  could request  that  we 

enter th is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us check i f  Ms Myeni  has got  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you got  i t  Ms Myeni? 

MS MYENI:   I  am going to  i t  Chairperson.   I  just  would l ike to 

check i f  th is document – 1977? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja the page is 1977.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Of  DD34[b]  20 

MS MYENI:   34[b]  

CHAIRPERSON:   The bundle that  has got  your aff idavi t .   34 

– DD34[b] .  

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson i t  ends on – i t  ends on page 1960.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh I  know why that  is.   That  is because 
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the updates have been sent  v ia emai l  s ince Wednesday. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And we are going to encounter the same 

di ff icul ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  I  can do this part  of  the evidence 

wi thout  reference to Manaka’s evidence – aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So let  us rather do i t  that  way.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh sorry.   Sorry 

MS MYENI:   Sorry – sorry Chairperson I  was asking i f  i t  was 

emai led as a Rule 3.3 to us when Mr Manaka was present ing 

to the commission? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No Ms Myeni  i t  was not  because Mr 

Manaka has not  presented to the commission.   He prepared 

this aff idavi t  for  your evidence and that  is why i t  was 

provided to you when we received i t  which was – I  have lost  

t rack of  the days – today – we got  i t  on Wednesday the 4 t h 20 

November so i t  was sent  through on that  date to your  

at torneys.   So we only received this about  two days ago and 

that  is why I  intended to t raverse i t  wi th today.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  th ink your counsel  wishes to say 

something Ms Myeni .   Mr Buthelezi .  
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ADV BUTHELEZI:   Sorry Chai r.  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai r.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   We have this aff idavi t .   We received this 

morning.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   On our arr ival .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   And this aff idavi t  presents us wi th several  

chal lenges.   And i f  I  would l ike to  go to the aff idavi t  wi th you 

Chair  start ing at  paragraph 3.   I t  says the fol lowing under the 10 

heading Purpose of  Aff idavi t .  

“ I  have been requested by”  

Oh sorry i t  is the aff idavi t  of  Mr Manaka.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:    

“ I  have been requested by the State Capture 

Commission legal  team work ing on matters 

pertaining to South Af r ican Airways SOC 

Limited [SAA]  to  provide i t  wi th an aff idavi t  

detai l ing the c i rcumstances which culminated 20 

in the issue and the payment of  certain 

invoices dur ing 2014.”  

Then I  skip I  go to paragraph 6 and then I  wi l l  go to  

paragraph 7 and 7.1.   I t  says:  

“On Sunday 30 March 2014 I  received a 
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te lephone cal l  f rom Advocate Lindi  Nkosi  

Thomas SC a former member of  the SAA 

board.    Advocate Nkosi  Thomas advised me 

that  then chai rperson of  SAA board Ms Myeni  

– Ms Dudu Myeni  {Myeni }  required an opinion 

on a number of  issues and would be 

contact ing me di rect ly in th is regard.”  

Paragraph 7.  

“On 31 March 2014 fol lowing the telephone 

cal l  f rom Advocate Lindi  Nkosi  Thomas I  10 

received a cal l  f rom Ms Myeni  dur ing which 

she advised that ”  

7.1 

“She in her capaci ty as chai rperson of  the 

SAA board required the advice rela t ing to her  

powers and dut ies and responsibi l i t ies.”  

Now Chai r  in my understanding of  the law this seeks 

to violate cl ient  at torney pr iv i lege.   How i t  is that  the 

commission can wri te to an at torney and ask for informat ion 

that  th is person had consul ted.    20 

Now Chai r  I  wi l l  refer  you to  the leading author i ty  

Chair  on – on – in  th is country here a company – A company 

and Others versus The Commission of  South Afr ican 

Revenue Services in support ing case where they say the 

fol lowing:  
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“1.  The requirements to claim legal  pr iv i lege 

is the fol lowing:  

The legal  advisor must  have been act ing in a 

professional  capaci ty at  the t ime. ”  

So Manaka says he is contacted in his capaci ty as a legal  

person.  

“2.  The advisor must  have been consul ted in  

conf idence.  

 3.  The communicat ion must  have been made 

for the purpose of  obtaining legal  advice.   10 

The legal  requirements of  the – of  c l ient  

at torney pr iv i lege. ”  

Now I  am saying to you Chair  th is is sacrosanct  in  

the legal  space and we cannot comprehend how this 

commission Chai r  and by extension yoursel f  then can 

venture into the space where an at torney is now on record 

saying:   

“ I  have been asked to give evidence about  

the ci rcumstances where the former SAA 

chairperson asked me about legal  advice.”    20 

We saying Chai r  th is now then br ings the 

proceedings into ser ious disrepute to have such an aff idavi t .  

Now two problems with th is aff idavi t  that  cont inue Chai r.   

This aff idavi t  i f  you go the back of  the page is deposed to on 

the 4t h day of  November.   The 4t h day of  November we were 
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here test i fy ing.    

The confusion that  then ar ises is to say why do we 

have an aff idavi t  whi le the wi tness is on the stand being 

deposed to whi le she is giv ing ev idence?  Are we ambushed 

with this evidence?  When would we have consul ted?  And i t  

is not  the only one Chai r.    

Two aff idavi ts referred to today are aff idavi ts  

deposed to th is week,  th is week.   The aff idavi t  of  Le Roux 

was deposed to on the 2nd.   The aff idavi t  of  Mr who else?  

The other Captain Nevin his aff idavi t  is deposed to on the 3r d  10 

talk ing about incidents that  happened last  year when they 

said they did an inspect ion.    

Now sinister as wel l  we have got  a  si tuat ion wi th respect  to  

counsel  she seeks to amend the aff idavi t  of  Mr Bezuidenhout 

f rom the Bar about a contradict ion that  emerges on the dates 

and she says no this must  def in i te ly be a mistake,  but  she 

knows legal ly that  is  not  how you amend an aff idavi t  and she 

throws this into the ev idence and says:   The evidence – the 

commission must  accept  th is as a bundle or an annexure.   

However but  these are the problems that  emerged.  We are 20 

register ing Chai r,  for purposes of  th is hearing,  extreme 

prejudice,  extreme prejudice that  has been going on,  even 

unt i l  now.   

 The last  bundle that  Ms Myeni  has to deal  wi th was 

del ivered to her now.   Now,  dur ing lunch t ime.  And the 
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Commission has had knowledge of  her at tendance for  the 

longest  t ime.   

 And we have to cont inuously bend over backwards and 

accommodate ineff ic iencies that  emanat ing f rom the other 

side.    

 And I  ask this  one last  quest ion Chair.   In  which forum in 

th is year – count ry,  which court  would al low one l i t igant  to 

behave the way that  the evidence leaders have behaved 

here?   

 I t  has never happened Chai r  where a wi tness is on the 10 

stand and the one other party is a l lowed to give them 

aff idavi ts whi le they give the ir  evidence.   I t  has never 

happened. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  let  me start  wi th the – your  last  

concern.   Up to know, I  d id not  hear any concerns relat ing to 

the lateness of  any aff idavi ts.    

 And the reason I  am ment ion ing that  is s imply that  one 

knows that  between col leagues there is accommodat ion.   

You accommodate one another.    

 Obviously,  somewhere you are ent i t led – everyone is  20 

ent i t led to draw a l ine but ,  you know, somet imes you 

accommodate one another.   So I  have not  had any issues 

about – any complaints about the lateness of  aff idavi ts .    

 But  where there are real  concerns because the aff idavi ts  

have been made avai lab le late.   You know, those concerns 
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need to be looked into properly.  

 With regard to at torney-cl ient  pr iv i lege.   I  wi l l  hear what  

Ms Hofmeyr may have to say but  I  wonder whether the 

problem that  ar ises – that  may ar ise in invoking i t ,  would not  

be that  the pr iv i lege did not  at tach to Ms Myeni  personal ly  

because the pr iv i lege related to her,  in her off ic ia l  capaci ty  

as chai rperson of  the board at  the t ime.  

 So that  once she is no longer chairperson of  the board,  

the person who is  chai rperson of  the board at  the t ime when 

such an aff idavi t  is sought,  is the person who could object  10 

rather than the person is no longer in that  posi t ion.   So there 

may be that  issue.    

 But  wi th regard to the quest ion of  the lateness,  I  th ink 

that  may need to be looked at .    

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Sorry,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    May I  just  give you a few pointers?  I  

th ink the reason why that  the lateness issue only ar ises now.  

We have not  been – we t r ied our  very best  not  to be 

obstruct ive.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  accept  that ,  ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    [ Indist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  accept  that .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    But  i f  we now look at  a st r ing of  

. . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    . . .of  incidents . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    . . . i t  then br ings us to a point  to say.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    I  th ink we have been very understanding 

in that  regard.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    And I  th ink to be now saying,  c l ient  must  

now go to th is aff idavi t  that  she does not  have and we 10 

ourselves only received this morning.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    I t  is the last  hour of  the hearing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no.   When I  sa id I  had not  had any 

complaints about  the lateness.   I  d id not  mean that  as 

cr i t ic ism to you.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Actual ly,  I  meant to say.   Probably i t  is 

because you were t ry ing to accommodate one another as 

col leagues.   I t  is meant as cr i t ic ism at  al l .   Ms Hofmeyr,  do 20 

you want to say anything? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  certainly Chai r.   Let  me being wi th  

the pr iv i lege point  because my learned f r iend began with i t  

and pick up Chair  on the point  that  you made.  Indeed, the 

si tuat ion is such that  th is memorandum was procured f rom 
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Werksmans by Ms Myeni  when she was chairperson in  Apri l  

of  2014.    

 I t  is work that  Ms Myeni  – that  Werksmans d id and 

Ms Myeni  required SAA to reimburse her fu l l  on the basis 

that  the memorandum had been presented to the board and 

had been procured for the benef i t  o f  SAA.  

 The consequence of  that  is that  i t  is SAA’s pr iv i lege.   I t  

is not  Ms Myeni ’s pr iv i lege and there have been 

engagements wi th  SAA in respect  of  which they consented to  

the product ion of  the memorandum. 10 

 Mr Manaka at  Werksmans was very careful  to conf i rm 

that  that  pr iv i lege,  the holder of  the pr iv i lege SAA was such 

that  they were happy wi th him t ravers ing the matters in the 

aff idavi t .   So pr iv i lege is not  an issue in my submission.    

 I  then want to  address the quest ion of  lateness.   I  began 

on Wednesday,  I  th ink i t  was,  to  reference some of  the 

history of  the engagements wi th Ms Myeni .  

 And the point  that  I  would l ike to  emphasise there is.   

The Commission has been t r ied for  many. . .   Wel l ,  i t  is more 

than a year now to engage Ms Myeni  because our 20 

invest igat ions wi thin SAA was so cr i t ical ly relevant  to her  

and her posi t ion and i t  was essent ia l  for us to obtain her 

vers ion to our current  invest igat ions.  

 So those engagements started in  2019.  There were 

repeated invi tat ions for  Ms Myeni  to meet  wi th the 
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Commission in i t ia l ly  to  discuss what we were invest igat ing.   

To give her an opportuni ty to assist  us wi th her version.  

 She was asked repeatedly when those meet ings were 

decl ined to give an aff idavi t  to  the Commission and 

numerous correspondences fol lowing up,  wi l l  i t  be 

forthcoming.    

 Unt i l  Chai r,  you issued the Sect ion 10(6) di rect ive to  

Ms Myeni  which you did on the 9 t h  of  October.   Other than 

the aff idavi t  in  response to Mr Agrizzi  which we have looked 

at  a l ready,  there was no aff idavi t  forthcoming f rom Ms Myeni .  10 

 So f rom the point  of  v iew of  ear l ier engagement  on 

issues,  certainly  the Commission has endeavoured f rom 

more than a year ago to be engaging wi th Ms Myeni .  

 So let  me be move to why we get  to where we got  to  on 

the 4 t h of  November and the bundle.   Chai r,  you wi l l  have 

seen in many of  the proceedings of  the Commission.   We are 

running against  the clock and we do not  have cont ro l  over  

the t imel ines that  th i rd part ies have in coming back to us.  

 And somet imes,  we do get  th ings late in the day but  we 

have one chance and the Commission’s work is  about  to end 20 

and so what we endeavour to do is ,  where we do get  th ings 

late,  we make them avai lable as soon as possible.  

 Now important ly,  there are two di fferent  types of  

engagement wi th wi tnesses.   There are wi tnesses who come 

real ly keen to tel l  thei r  story and of ten ear ly on ask for the 
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bundle which wi l l  be presented and deal t  wi th in thei r  

evidence so that  they can prepare.  

 At  no point ,  pr ior to Wednesday of  th is week,  was there 

a request  on behal f  of  Ms Myeni  or her lawyers to be 

provided wi th any of  the bundle that  would be presented to 

her.  

 I  must  be clear.   There was a request .   I  th ink i t  is a  few 

weeks ago.   I  can get  the re levant  correspondence i f  i t  

becomes pert inent .   Where Ms Myeni  new at torneys,  

because she has moved at torneys,  requested us to provide 10 

them again wi th  al l  the 3.3 not ices that  Ms Myeni  had 

received and the underl in ing aff idavi ts.  

 We indicated to them that  Ms Myeni  would have those in 

her possession.   We have al ready provided them on one 

occasion previously.   We suggested that  they engage her to  

obtain the documents.  

 And we furthermore said,  i f  they in doing so discover  

any that  are missing,  we then stand ready to send on a 

second occasion those documents but  we did not  ever  

receive an indicat ion that  there was something miss ing.   The 20 

only th ing we did receive was the response to your 10(6)  

di rect ive.    

 So when we have a si tuat ion where we get  aff idavi ts late 

in the day,  i t  has happened on many occasions in th is 

Commission that  the aff idavi t  is presented to the wi tness.   I t  
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is another version.    

 The wi tness is given an opportuni ty i f  there is a need for  

an adjournment or a considerat ion of  i t ,  to take the t ime to 

do so but  at  most ,  i t  is another version in respect  o f  which 

they now have the opportuni ty to respond to that  version.  

 So again I  want to emphasise.   This is nothing pecul iar 

about  Ms Myeni ,  what has t ranspi red this  week.   I t  has 

happened on many previous occasions wi th wi tnesses.   I t  is 

a funct ion of  the fact  that  we do not  cont rol  the t imel ines 

against  which thi rd part ies who are present ing evidence to 10 

the Commission can produce i t  for us.  

 And when we do have the fortune of  a wi tness before the 

Commission wi th  l i t t le t ime lef t  in which to complete the 

work,  we endeavour to put  whatever informat ion we have 

received,  versions we have received f rom others to the 

wi tness for the ir  comment.  

 So Chai r  that  is just  a background on pr iv i lege and then 

why we got  to where we are today and certainly explaining 

the lateness,  why i t  has ar isen and the efforts,  certainly as 

soon as we were in receipt  of  them, to get  them to the 20 

at torneys as quick ly as possible.  

 There is a process where they have be paginated but  

then they get  across.   Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr Buthelezi .   In terms of  t ry ing to 

f ind a way forward in regard to th is aff idavi t .   Have you got  
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any ideas? 

ADV BUTHELEZI :    No,  Chai r.   I  th ink in as far  as the 

evidence leader insists that  th is aff idavi t  be admit ted and to 

may have i t .   The problem we have got  is the cl ient  has not  

seen i t  and she does not  have i t .    

 So,  but  she said she wi l l  proceed without  i t  and that  is 

okay.   The extent  of  our complaints to you Chai r  is  just  to 

register our prejudice.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    So that  you note our pre judice in these 10 

proceedings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    And we st i l l  proceed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   How long is th is aff idavi t  of  

Mr Manaka,  Ms Hofmeyr? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  i t  is 20 pages but  I  do want to  

emphasise the point .   You see,  we met some t ime ago with  

Werksmans and there has,  understandable,  been a delay in 20 

product ion of  the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is  why the documents actual ly 

reference the under l ine work product  l ike the opinion which 

we received f rom SAA and which was in the bundle f rom 
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Wednesday when Ms Myeni  received the bundle.  

 So I  can deal  wi th  th is evidence wi thout  the necessi ty of  

going to  the aff idavi t  but  of  s imi lar ly,  we have absolutely no 

di ff icul ty wi th some arrangement where we do not  deal  wi th i t  

now, we admit  i t  later but  i t  is a 20-page aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  am just  concerned i f  she has not  

had a chance to read i t ,  that  is Ms Myeni .   Of  course,  i f  – i t  

may be that  i f  you tel l  her what Mr Manaka’s version is about  

the matters that  are covered in the aff idavi t ,  i t  may be that  

she wi l l  say she prefers not  to answer.  10 

 But  preferable,  one would prefer that  she had the 

chance to read i t  f i rst .   I  th ink Mr Buthelezi  is keen not  to  

obstruct  the proceedings or delay the proceedings but  he 

just  wants to place on record thei r  concerns as wel l ,  at  the 

same t ime.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Indeed so Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  So one way is to – one approach is  

to deal  wi th other matters and when they are deal t  wi th,  

adjourn,  give her  a chance to go through i t .   She might  need 

30-minutes and then she is ready.   I  do not  know what  a fast  20 

reader she is.   But  i f  she reads fast ,  she might  be able to.  

 Another opt ion is to ask her to  respond to cer tain 

quest ions by way of  an aff idavi t  a f ter reading i t  which she 

can send to the Commission by a certain date.   That  would 

be another way.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   You have no problem with that? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  have absolute ly no di ff icul ty wi th that .   

What might  even be useful  is,  wi thout  reference to the 

aff idavi t  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . . to take her to the under l ine documents.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So that  Ms Myeni  has a sense of  the 

issues ar is ing f rom the documents.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then to faci l i tate an opportuni ty  in due 

course.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Yes.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Or an aff idavi t  responding to Mr Manaka 

to be produced.  That  should – certainly,  the legal  team 

would have no di ff icul ty wi th that .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.   Okay.   I  th ink what should be 

done, therefore,  is to give you a chance to inform her of  the 

real  issues or underl ine documents.   I f  – wi thout  asking her  20 

quest ions or i f  you ask her quest ions,  she must  feel  f ree to  

say:   I  rather prefer to deal  wi th  i t  af ter I  have read the 

aff idavi t .   Then that  can be done.  Ms Myeni ,  have you been 

fol lowing the discussion? 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Chairperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   There are two or three possibi l i t ies.   

One possibi l i ty is that  Ms Hofmeyr wi l l  not  ask you about th is 

aff idavi t  now but  wi l l  ask you about other matters and when 

she is done,  we could adjourn for 30-minutes or so to al low 

you to read the aff idavi t  and then we resume af ter that  and 

she can ask you quest ions.   That  is scenario 1.  

 Scenar io 2 is that  she does not  ask you quest ions on 

this aff idavi t  today but  she sends you,  through your lawyers,  

quest ions that  you must  look at  and then you prepare an 

aff idavi t  af ter you have read this aff idavi t .   You then respond 10 

to those quest ions by way of  an aff idavi t .   That  is scenario 2.  

 Included in Scenario 2 is that ,  i f  she wishes to alert  you 

to certain  th ings connect  wi th th is aff idavi t  now,  she can 

alert  you so that  when you respond later,  you have the 

background.  You understand the issues.   I  th ink i t  is those 

two scenarios,  real ly.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed, Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got  a  preference of  which one 

you prefer Ms Myeni? 

MS MYENI :    The second one is much more preferred 20 

Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is the second f ine? 

MS MYENI :    Because I  need to read . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS MYENI :    . . . that  part icular 20-page aff idavi t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja.  

MS MYENI :    And as wel l  as other related documents.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS MYENI :    And get  a sense as the Chairperson suggested.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS MYENI :    Scenario 2 is much more preferable Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  that  is f ine.   So let  us go wi th 

that  route.   And then Ms Hofmeyr,  i f  you do have things that  

you want to br ing to her  at tent ion in connect ion wi th that  

aff idavi t  for her  benef i t ,  so that  when she deals wi th 10 

quest ions later in  terms by way of  an aff idavi t ,  she has the 

context .   I t  is f ine.   We can do that .   Or i f  you want to move 

to other matters.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  I  th ink i t  makes sense to move.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  appreciate the s i tuat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    What I  want to emphasise is that  i t  was 

not  of  our making at  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    We real ly are beholden to others and their  

own t ime constraints for th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So my suggest ion is.   We simply leave i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    We can send the set  of  quest ions through.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni  can consider them in the 

goodness of  t ime.   We wi l l  g ive a reasonable amount of  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And she can provide an answer on the 

aff idavi t  when i t  is  convenient .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay alr ight .   So that  is what wi l l  happen 

Ms Myeni .   You wi l l  get  correspondence f rom the 

Commission through your lawyers and then you wi l l  respond 10 

by your aff idavi t .   Okay a lr ight .   Thank you,  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Of  course,  let  me just  

emphasise on Ms Myeni ’s behal f .   I f  her  at t i tude is s imi lar to  

the one that  she has taken today that  she invokes her 

pr iv i lege,  of  course,  that  could be the response that  she 

gives.   But  we wi l l  wai t  to see af ter considerat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja.   Okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   So then I  would l ike to  move 

Ms Myeni  to a topic that  I  p icked up on yesterday 

momentar i ly  but  now I  would l ike to explore in a bi t  more 20 

detai l .   And that  was the role that  Mr Nick Linnel l  p layed at  

SAA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or maybe Ms Hofmeyr,  seeing that  we are 

twenty to four,  maybe we may as wel l  d iscuss now what is  

possible in terms of  how far we go.   I  am avai lable to 
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cont inue beyond four o’c lock.   What is your si tuat ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  I  certainly  can cont inue and I  would 

be very keen to make a push to  complete the evidence.   I  am 

not  very far f rom the end.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And so subject  to the convenience of  my 

learned f r iends and Ms Myeni ,  I  would suggest  we run on to  

complet ion i f  that  is possible.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What is your est imate of  how much more 

t ime you need to get  to complet ion? 10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  would think.   We are not  at  three thi r ty.   

Maybe f ive th i r ty.   Something of  that  order.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Possible six.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Buthelezi ,  how is your si tuat ion? 

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Five thi r ty is too far Chai r.   I  have got  

toddlers in wai t ing but  the best  that  I  can accommodate is to  

say f ive.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is f ive? 

ADV BUTHELEZI :    That  we even started at  nine Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    So I  th ink for  me about f ive o’clock 

would be the longest  st retch.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    But  i f  I  am ventur ing to hal f -past  f ive,  I  
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have st i l l  got  to negot iate t raff ic to t ry and get  . . . [ indist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    I t  would be highly . . . [ indist inct ]  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  course,  having started at  n ine,  we 

would have – we probably would have been f in ished by four  

i f  we did not  have . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the technical  g l i tches that  we had.   Ja,  10 

ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ms Myeni ,  what is your si tuat ion? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  I  am f lexible.   My f l ight  was this  

evening.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    But  I  am wi l l ing to t ravel  tomorrow Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    yes.  

MS MYENI :    Therefore,  the f ive o’clock is okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay let  us cont inue and see where 20 

we are by f ive o’clock.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is a l r ight .  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   Mr Linnel l .   Can you assist  us wi th 

what services he was providing at  SAA?  

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to th is quest ion 

to avoiding incr iminat ing mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Mr Linnel l  test i f ied before the Commission 

just  a few weeks ago that  he was brought in to coordinate 

some of  the di ff icul t  invest igat ions into senior execut ives l ike 

Mr Ngqula,  the former CEO.  Can you conf i rm that  that  was 

part  of  the role that  he played? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 10 

to avoid incr iminat ing mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Why was h is serv ices requi red by SAA? 

MS MYENI :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you hear that  Ms Myeni? 

MS MYENI :    A delay Chai r.   I t  was. . .   I  do not  know whether 

there was a delay.   Yes,  I  have heard. . .   I  have got  no 

response Chai rperson.   I  do not  want to incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  the reason why I  ask is because 

the invest igat ion and then the post-proceedings against  

Mr Ngqula were being managed through ENS Attorneys,  was 20 

i t  not? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson unless I  make – 

I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see.   So,  al ready SAA had i ts lawyer,  

ENS, running the Ngqula Invest igat ion and then proceedings 



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 169 of 265 
 

and yet  in addi t ion to that ,  Mr Linnel l  appears to have 

provided services despi te,  on his own version in his 

evidence before this Commission,  the fact  that  he was not  an 

admit ted at torney in South Af r ica.   Had never  held himsel f  

out  to such and just  have a law degree f rom Zimbabwe.  

 Against  that  backdrop Ms Myeni ,  what would role  he 

have been p laying in addi t ion to that  of  SAA’s f i rm of  

at torneys on the matter? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to the quest ion Chai rperson?  

I  do not  wish to incr iminate mysel f?   10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Was he b i l led for his services to SAA? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  in your Bundle DD34-B, we 

have col lated the var ious invoices that  Mr Linnel l  submit ted 

to SAA over a per iod of  December 2014 to August  2016.   I t  is 

just  over a year and a hal f  and I  would l ike to take you to 

some of  those i f  I  may?  We wi l l  start  in DD34-B at  page 

1590.   

MS MYENI :    [No audible reply]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you say 1950? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    1590,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    1590.   Sorry,  I  heard i t  the other way 

around.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  i t  is possib le  I  said i t  the other  way.   I  
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have to confess.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    A smidgen of  f ive-ness but  we wi l l  keep 

going.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is late in the day.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is and in the week.  [ laughing]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And in the week.   [ laughing]   And you are 

working tomorrow also.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  know.  [ laughing]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]   Wel l ,  I  am working too.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    You. . .   Indeed, Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  do you have page 1590? 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  I  do.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So you see,  th is invoice is consistent  wi th  

Mr Linnel l ’s evidence before the Commission.   He indicated 

that  he had been involved par t icular ly in relat ion to  

Mr Ngqula’s invest igat ions.   And you wi l l  see on this page,  

there is a very. . .   Wel l ,  let  us go back a page, actual ly,  i f  we 

may.  To 1589.   20 

MS MYENI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you have that? 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  1589.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   So this is  an invoice submit ted to 

SAA dated the 2n d of  February 2015 f rom what is,  I  
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understand to be Mr Linnel l ’s business,  the Project  Off ice.   

Can you conf i rm that? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson?  I  am on page 

1589 but  may I  not  conf i rm any – or may I  not  respond to 

whatever needs to  be conf i rmed in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    So,  as I  said,  2 February 2015 invoice 

f rom the Project  Off ice and you wi l l  see i t  covers the per iod 

– i t  is headed:  Independent Advise wi th regard to al leged 

i rregular i ty  at  SAA, December 2014 and January 2015.  And 

i t  is addressed to yoursel f  as Chai rperson of  South Afr ican 10 

Airways.   Can you conf i rm having received this invoice? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to the quest ion Chai rperson 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    I f  you look in the box,  in the middle of  the 

page where there is a descr ipt ion of  the work done,  you wi l l  

see under the second column, Matter.   I t  says:  

“To our advice to  the sub-commit tee and the board 

regarding the Ngqula Invest igat ion and related 

matters for December 2014 and January 2015.  See 

bi l l ing memorandum at tached. ”  20 

 And then you go over to that  page where we started and 

you have a,  what  I  would suggest ,  is a fa i r ly detai led bi l l ing 

memorandum, deal ing wi th the work that  Mr Linnel l  had 

done.   

 And there is an invoice and a total  of  R 192 654,26 
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excluding VAT which br ings the total  wi th VAT to 

R 219 615,60.   Ms Myeni ,  do you know i f  that  invoice was 

paid by SAA? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to the quest ion Chai rperson 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now we have managed to obtain al l  of  the 

invoices that  Mr Linnel l  submi t ted over that  per iod,  

December 2014 to August  2016 to SAA.   

 And what we noted,  and I  would be interested in your  

comment on,  is that  the invoices start  of  th is sort  of  detai l  10 

where you get  a very detai led memorandum.   

 Over the second page of  the invoice,  explaining wi th 

some part icular i ty  what Mr Linnel l  was doing f rom t ime to 

t ime.   

 But  then as you get  later in the course of  2015,  his  

invoices become much more br ief .   Let  me take you to one,  

for example.   You wi l l  f ind that  at  DD34-B f rom page 1686.   

MS MYENI :    One,  six. . .?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    E ight ,  s ix.  

MS MYENI :    I  missed that .   What page?  One, s ix. . .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    1686.    

MS MYENI :    Thank you.   Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Chai r.   I  have got  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    This is an invoice dated the 

19t h of  Apri l  2016.   And there under matter,  i t  becomes much 

more br ief .   I t  says:  

“12 fees in respect  of  advise provided to the board 

on var ious matters. ”  

 And in brackets,  narrat ion included in a separate bi l l ing 

memorandum which we were – certainly,  there is no record in 

SAA of  that  more detai led bi l l ing memorandum.  Are you 

aware whether one was provided? 

MS MYENI :    So r ry,  Cha i r,  th is  invo i ce  i s  p rov ided  to  the  10 

d i rec to r. . .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  tha t  i s  a  good po in t .   Th is  one i s  

addressed to  the  d i rec tor,  i t  jus t  says South  A f r i can  

A i rways a t ten t ion  Ms Yakhe Kwinana.    

Were  you aware  o f  th is  invo ice  when you were  a  

Cha i rperson in  Apr i l  o f  2016?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  I  wou ld  no t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana gave ev idence ear l i e r  th is  

week and she was asked about  Mr  L inne l l  and h i s  serv i ces  20 

and the  adv i ce  tha t  he  had g i ven  to  the  board  and,  as  I  

have i t ,  her  ev idence was e f fec t i ve ly  tha t  he  wou ld  on  

occas ion  a t tend board  meet ings and answer  when a  lega l  

quest ion  cropped  up.  

But  her  approach  to  Mr  L inne l l ’s  serv i ces  was tha t  
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they  were  no t  rea l l y  needed.   Do you ag ree w i th  her  in  tha t  

ev idence?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  to  the 

quest ion ,  I  do  no t  want  to  incr im ina te  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then,  Ms Myen i ,  there  are  a  ser ies  

o f  invo ices wh ich  cont inue in  tha t  pa t te rn  o f  the  serv i ce  

be ing  genera l  adv ice  to  the  board  and w i th in  th is  sec t ion  o f  

your  bund le  we a lso  have the  expense author isa t ions f rom 

South  A f r i can A i rways re la ted  to  these invo ices and I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  take  you to  one o f  them,  fo r  example ,  you w i l l  f ind  10 

tha t  a t  page 1684 .  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Cha i r.   I  have go t  i t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   You w i l l  see  there  as  an  

expense –  i s  th is  the  type o f  expense author isa t ion  you  

were  fami l ia r  w i th  when you were  a t  SAA? 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rpe rson,  to  th is  

quest ion  and I  wou ld  want  to  invoke my pr i v i lege by  say ing  

I  was a  Cha i rperson,  I  was not  a  CEO and I  was not  a  CFO,  

so  I  wou ld  leave i t  a t  tha t ,  Cha i r.   May I  no t  respond to  the  

quest ion .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  caught  our  eye on th is  page is  

where  you see sor t  o f  a  th i rd  –  in  the  bo t tom th i rd  o f  the 

page there  is  in  red  someth ing  tha t  says:  

“P lease conf i rm the  fo l low ing”  

And then there  is  a  box tha t  says one p rocurement  p rocess  
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has  been compl ied  w i th .   Do you see tha t?  

MS MYENI :    I  see i t ,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then 2 :  

“Compl iance w i th  the  DOA”  

I  unders tand tha t  to  be  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y.   And  then 3 :  

“Budget  fac i l i t y  i s  ava i lab le  fo r  th is  cos t  e lement ”  

Do you see tha t  next  to  3  i s  wr i t ten  there :  

“No budget ,  no t  acc rued fo r ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MS MYENI :    I  have seen tha t .   Yes,  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And jus t  in  re la t ion  to  1 :  

“P rocurement  p rocesses then compl ied  w i th ”  

There  does not  seem to  be  an ind i ca t ion  tha t  one was.   A re  

you aware  o f  any  procurement  hav ing  been fo l lowed  before  

Mr  L inne l l ’s  serv ices  were  p rocu red?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  was a  Cha i rman,  I  was not  a  

CEO.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes and happ i ly,  Ms Myen i ,  i f  you  do not  

have any know ledge about  whether  h is  p rocu rement  

p rocesses were  fo l lowed,  you cou ld  ce r ta in ly  say  so .   Were  20 

you aware?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  when he was a t tend ing  those  board  

meet ings –  when  we were  quest ion ing  Ms Kwinana  ear l ie r  
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in  the  week,  the  Cha i rperson ac tua l l y  ra ised the  quest ion  

o f  why there  wou ld  be  a  th i rd  par t y  ou ts ider  a t tend ing  

board  meet ings  and,  as  I  unders tood Ms Kwinana ’s  

ev idence i t  was tha t  he  was there  to  be  sor t  o f  genera l l y  

ava i lab le .    

I  th ink  she sa id  he  on occas ion  d id  ad hoc  

p resenta t ions.   She,  I  do  no t  th ink ,  cou ld  g i ve  us  c la r i t y  on  

a t  whose inv i ta t ion  he  appeared.   D id  he  appear  on  your  

inv i ta t ion?  

MS MYENI:    On tha t  par t i cu la r  quest ions,  Cha i r,  can I  10 

have a  suppor t ing  document?   When you a t tend a  board  

meet ing  there  is  an  a t tendance reg is te r.    

There  is  an  inv i t a t ion  to  a t tend the  board ,  there  is  

an  a t tendance reg is te r,  there  is  a l so  obv ious l y  somebody – 

when somebody i s  t rave l l ing  there  w i l l  be  a  s tub ,  maybe a  

s l ip ,  tha t  he  f lew a t  th is  t ime on th is  day to  a t tend a  board  

meet ing  on  th is .    

Can I  have tha t  record  o f  Mr  L inne l l  a t tend ing  board  

meet ing ,  then I  w i l l  be  ab le  to  he lp ,  Cha i rperson,  by  

respond ing  pe rhaps to  the  quest ion  or  maybe,  when I  say  I  20 

do  not  want  to  respond to  th i s  quest ion  then I  am ab le  to  

make a  p roper  judgment  so  tha t  I  do  no t  appear  no t  to  be  

usefu l  to  the  Commiss ion  bu t  th is  in fo rmat ion  I  am ask ing  

is  fo r  me to  ver i f y  Mr  L inne l l ’s  a t tendance to  board  

meet ings.  



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 177 of 265 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI:    And jus t  -  maybe  jus t  one board  meet ing  

where  he  a t tended,  the  a t tendance  reg i s te r,  h i s  f l i gh t  f rom 

wherever  he  came f rom to  Gauteng to  a t tend the  board  

meet ing .   Thanks,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  may be tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  does have  

such documents ,  i t  may be tha t  she does not  have but  I  

jus t  want  to  say th is .   I f  –  I  mean,  the  t roub le  tha t  

somet imes the  Commiss ion  goes to  in  o rder  to  ob ta in  

documents  ar ises  when i t  knows  tha t  cer ta in  th ings are  10 

be ing  den ied  o r  d isputed but  i t  does not  go  to  cer ta in  

t roub le  i f  i t  knows tha t  everybody admi ts  tha t  cer ta in  th ings  

happened.    

Now i f ,  fo r  examp le ,  you were  to  say I  do  know tha t  

he  a t tended ce r ta in  meet ings bu t  i f  you  ask  me about  a  

par t i cu la r  meet ing  whether  he  a t tended i t ,  I  wou ld  need  

minutes  to  see,  i t  i s  one th ing .    

But  a lso ,  i f  you  say as  fa r  as  I  know he never  

a t tended any meet ings,  i t  m igh t  war ran t  t ry ing  to  ge t  tha t  

in fo rmat ion .   So  the  s ta r t  m ight  we l l  be  to  say on  your  20 

reco l lec t ion  o r  as  fa r  as  you know,  d id  he  a t tend  cer ta in  

board  meet ings or  d id  he  no t  a t tend any board  meet ings 

where  you were  present  o r  do  you not  remember  and then  

–  because Ms Kwinana ce r ta in ly  sa id  he  a t tended  cer ta in  

board  meet ings  and he a t tended meet ings o f  cer ta in  
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commi t tees.   So maybe do you want  to  look  a t  tha t  o r  

maybe le t  me check w i th  Ms Hofmeyr.   Do you  want  to  

react  to  the  quest ion  ra i sed by  Ms Myen i?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   And I  must  be  

c lea r  here .   I  have looked a t  l o ts  o f  board  m inutes ,  I  

cannot  have sa id  a l l  o f  them but  as  I  s tand here ,  I  have no 

reco l lec t ion  o f  any board  m inutes  –  m inutes  o f  any board  

meet ings re f lec t ing  Mr  L inne l l  as  an  a t tendee.    

I  cou ld  be  wrong,  there  m ight  be  one o r  two,  my 

team knows these papers  be t te r  t han  me so  I  have asked  10 

them jus t  to  address i t  bu t  ac tua l l y,  tha t  i s  why I  was  

somewhat  surpr i sed by  Ms Kwinana ’s  ev idence the  o ther  

day because  she ind i ca ted  the  ro le  he  p layed w i th  tha t  

board  meet ings.    

So ac tua l l y,  Ms Myen i ,  when I  pu t  i t  to  you,  i t  is  

p redominant ly  based on the  ev idence tha t  Ms Kwinana  

gave and what  I  was go ing  to  fo l low up w i th  you is  we l l ,  i f  

he  was a t  those  board  meet ings,  we have not  seen h im  

re f lec ted  in  the  m inutes  and you ,  as  Cha i rperson ,  wou ld  

cer ta in ly  have had overs igh t  a t  those meet ings.    20 

So cou ld  you he lp  us  jus t  f rom your  persona l  

knowledge?  Can  you conf i rm whe ther  he  d id  o r  he  d id  no t  

a t tend meet ings o f  the  board  o f  SAA? 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  the  prob lem I  have is  tha t  I  am 

expected to  respond to  an  ev idence tha t  was presented  
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be fore  the  Commiss ion  by  Kwinana wh ich  I  have not  –  

perhaps I  s t i l l  need to  s i t  down,  go  th rough th is  

Commiss ion  o f  Inqu i ry ’s  webs i te  to  l i s ten  to  Kwinana.   I  

have not  had tha t  oppor tun i ty  to  do  so .   I  have not  heard  

Ms Kwinana ’s  ev idence in  the  Commiss ion .   So i f  I  am 

go ing  to  re l y  on  what  she sa id  then I  am not  empowered to 

respond.   But ,  Cha i r,  the  eas ies t  th ing  fo r  me as  we l l  to  

add on what  I  have requested,  i f  I  am to  ass is t  th is  

Commiss ion ,  because go ing  fo rward  I  am cer ta in l y  go ing  to  

be  ab le  to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  even pos t  your  10 

Commiss ion ’s  te rm maybe.   I  wou ld  be  ab le  to  ta lk  to  th is  

in fo rmat ion  i f  the  cont rac ts  tha t  Mr  L inne l l  s igned wou ld  be  

a t tached in  th is  f i l e  w i th  h is  invo ices and a lso  the  t i t le  Mr  

F i x ,  i f  i t  was par t  o f  h is  cont rac t .   Then I  w i l l  be  ab le  then 

to  conf i rm.  

 A lso ,  Cha i r,  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion ,  there  is  a  

company secre ta r ia t  a t  South  A f r i can A i rways,  whether  i t  i s  

me ass i s t ing  the  Commiss ion  or  i t  i s  South  A f r i can A i rways 

ass is t ing  the  Commiss ion ,  inc lud ing  Ms Kwinana,  then tha t  

wou ld  be  –  we w i l l  a l l  be  ab le  t o  g ive  proper  in fo rmat ion  20 

wh ich  w i l l  be  fac tua l  in fo rmat ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  l i s ten  to  

what  Ms Kwinana sa id .   A l l  I  can  say tha t  i f  I  am 

empowered w i th  the  in fo rmat ion  be fore  me,  I  w i l l  be  ab le  

then,  Cha i rperson,  to  be  o f  ass i s tance to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  on ly  th ing ,  Ms Myen i ,  i s  tha t  a l l  
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tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  was ask ing  i s  what  you know or  what  you 

do not  know,  wha t  you r  reco l lec t ion  is ,  i r respect ive  o f  what  

documents  m ight  say.   I t  may be  tha t  there  are  m inutes  

somewhere .   Ms  Hofmeyr  says she has seen a  lo t  o f  

m inutes  o f  board  meet ings bu t  she does not  reca l l  see ing  

any minutes  tha t  re f lec ted  Mr  L inne l l  as  hav ing  a t tended  

the  board  meet ing  –  any board  meet ing  o f  those tha t  she  

saw.   She does not  say  tha t  there  are  no t  board  meet ings 

tha t  m ight  re f lec t  tha t .   She does not  know i f  somebody in  

her  team might  have seen such m inutes .   But ,  o f  course ,  10 

she does say what  Ms Kwinana sa id ,  namely  tha t  she sa id  

Mr  L inne l l  d id  a t tend some board  meet ings.   So she is  

s imp ly  ask ing  you to  say on  your  reco l lec t ion ,  do  you 

remember  Mr  L inne l l  as  hav ing  a t tended some meet ings or  

do  you have no  reco l lec t ion  whether  he  a t tended any 

meet ings or  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you fee l  tha t  you might  

incr im inate  yourse l f  and wou ld  pre fer  no t  to  answer  the  

quest ion .  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  needed to  have Mr  L inne l l ’s  

cont rac t  wh ich  wou ld  have been genera ted  by  SAA not  by  20 

Dudu.   That  i s  one.   And the  board  reso lu t ion ,  Cha i r,  tha t  

was taken to  appo in t  Mr  L inne l l  as  an  adv iser  to  the  board ,  

no t  as  a  [ ind is t inc t ]  13 .18  w i th  somebody but  as  an  adv i ser  

to  the  board .   The board  reso lu t ion  wou ld  ar t i cu la te  those 

th ings and h i s  cont rac t  wou ld  ar t i cu la te  those th ings.   And,  
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Cha i r,  f rom my unders tand ing ,  SAA had consu l tan ts ,  

d i f fe ren t  consu l tan ts ,  bu t  no  consu l tan t  wou ld  s imp ly  be  

par t  and pa rce l  o f  a  board  meet ing .    

The consu l tan t  wou ld  be  requ i red  to  wa lk  ins ide  the  

board  meet ing  to  p resent  a  cer ta in  aspect  tha t  the  board 

wou ld  need in  te rms o f  update  o r  in  te rms o f  a  repor t  to  

a lso  unders tand  the  s ta tus  o f  where  –  whatever  the  

consu l tan t  i s  do ing  where  the  s ta tus  o f  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  

adv ice  to  the  board  or  to  the  company is .    

But ,  fo r  me to  –  because th is  th ing  is  pu t  be fore  me 10 

as  Dudu ’s  Mr  F i x .   I  wou ld  pre fe r  tha t  I  ge t  the  a t tendance 

reg i s te r,  a l l  the  th ings tha t  I  have  requested,  the  cont rac t  

and the  board  reso lu t ion  tha t  appo in ted  N ick  L inne l l  to  

adv ise  the  board ,  no t  Dudu.   Thank  you,  Cha i r.    

So in  o ther  words  then,  Cha i rperson,  in  tha t  regard ,  

I  leave th is  quest ion  as  someth ing  tha t  I  can  be o f  

ass is tance to  the  Commiss ion  and  to  the  Cha i rpe rson but  I  

need to  be  empowered w i th  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  have  

spoken about ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS MYENI :    O ther  than tha t  I  cannot  then he lp  you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  Ms Myen i ,  the  prob lem wi th  

tha t  answer  i s  tha t  Mr  L inne l l ’s  cont rac t  i s  no t  go ing  to  te l l  

you  whethe r  he  a t tended a  par t i cu la r  meet ing  o f  the  board  

o f  how many mee t ings he  a t tended .   So what  you are  be ing  
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asked is  someth ing  tha t  you e i t her  know or  you  do not  

know or  you remember  or  you do not  remember.   That  i s  a l l  

tha t  i s  be ing  asked and i f  you are  no t  sure ,  you are  no t  

sure .   So the  m inutes  o f  a  board  meet ing ,  i f  they  re f lec t  

tha t  he  a t tended,  they m ight  ass i s t ,  bu t  i t  may be tha t  they  

do  not  re f lec t  and a l l  tha t  you are  be ing  asked is  on  your  

knowledge,  on  your  reco l lec t ion ,  what  was the  pos i t ion .   

D id  he  a t tend some meet ing  o f  the  board ,  the  who le  

meet ing?  D id  he  a t tend on ly  b r ie f l y  on  cer ta in  spec i f i c  

i ssues o r,  on  your  reco l lec t ion ,  he  d id  no t  a t tend a t  a l l?  10 

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  the  answer  you have jus t  

g iven is  cons is ten t  w i th  the  answer  tha t  you gave  in  your  

a f f idav i t  when you were  asked by  the  Cha i rperson  o f  th is  

Commiss ion  in  h is  Regu la t ion  10 .6  d i rec t i ve  to  t e l l  h im 20 

every th ing  you know and p rov ide  as  much in fo rmat ion  as  

poss ib le  about  the  lega l  fees pa id  by  SAA to  N ick  L inne l l  

and re imbursements  to  yourse l f .   You remember  answer ing  

tha t  quest ion  in  the  Cha i rpe rson ’s  d i rec t i ve?  

MS MYENI :    Not  sure .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay.   Wel l ,  i t  i s  a t  page 8  o f  DD34A 

wh ich  i s  the  f i le  tha t  we are  no t  o f ten  in  bu t  i t  i s  par t  o f  

your  bund le .   I f  you  wou ld  l i ke  to  tu rn  i t  up  a t  page 8  o f  

DD34A? 

CHAIRPERSON:    DD34A page 8 ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MYENI :    Page 8?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  page 8 .  

MS MYENI :    I  have got  i t ,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You w i l l  see  there  you dea l  w i th  the  

second top ic  in  the  Cha i rpe rson ’s  d i rec t i ve  and i t  i s  

headed:  

“Lega l  fees pa id  by  SAA to  N ick  L inne l l  and  

re imbursements  to  myse l f . ”  

And you say a t  paragraph 23 there :  

“ I  am adv ised tha t  in  v iew o f  the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  the 

Nat iona l  P rosecu t ing  Autho r i t y  may want  to  charge  

me in  accordance w i th  the  orde r  o f  To lmay J ,  I  do  

no t  have to  answer  th is  quest ion . ”  20 

So,  Ms Myen i ,  do  you accept  tha t  you had fa i r  warn ing  

be fore  today tha t  th is  was go ing  to  be  a  mat te r  to  be  

t raversed?  

MS MYENI :    I  th ink ,  Cha i rpe rson,  as  much as  the  Cha i r  

had sa id  I  must  no t  have a  b lanket  response but  anyth ing  
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per ta in ing  to  wha t  the  orde r  i s  be fore  me by the  judge,  th is  

i s  cons i s ten t  w i t h  the  orde r.   But ,  Cha i r,  fo r  what  I  have 

been asked now,  may I  invoke the  pr iv i lege  o f  not  

respond ing  so  the  quest ion?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  Ms Myen i ,  I  asked you about  

p rocu rement  p rocesses because in  ou r  engagements  w i th  

SAA we d id  no t  f ind  any procurement  p rocess hav ing  been 

fo l lowed.   What  we d id  f ind  was tha t  there  had been an 

endeavour  to  mot iva te  fo r  Mr  L inne l l ’s  invo ices to  be  pa id  

and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  tha t  mot iva t ion .   You w i l l  10 

f ind  i t  –  we l l ,  le t  me c lear,  i t  i s  a  mot iva t ion  tha t  comes  

before  the  SAA board  o f  d i rec tors  on  the  29  February  2016  

and you w i l l  f ind  i t  in  DD34B,  the  o ld  f i le  we were  in .  

MS MYENI :    What  page?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    A t  page 1695  

MS MYENI :    I  do  have i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  you see there  –  the  f i rs t  th ing ,  I  

have to  say to  you in  fa i rness,  tha t  I  no t iced when I  looked  

a t  th is  memo is  i t  i s  very  l i ke  the  memos tha t  you  usua l l y  

see f rom South  A f r i can A i rways and tha t  me and my team 20 

have became fa r  too  fami l ia r  w i th  fo r  our  good.   I t  usua l l y  

has tha t  b lock  a t  the  top  where  i t  says :  

“To  SAA board  o f  d i rec tors ,  da te  29  February  2016”   

But  there  is  ac tua l l y  usua l l y  a  th i rd  b lock  the re  tha t  

ind ica tes  who w i th in  SAA was the  au thor  o f  the  document .   
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Does i t  surp r ise  you l i ke  i t  surpr ised me tha t  there  is  no t  a  

th i rd  b lock  the re?  

MS MYENI :    What  i s  surpr is ing  you,  Ma’am,  sor ry?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  there  is  no t  -  you know,  on  the  

usua l  board  memos –  my team wi l l  maybe he lp  me jus t  to  

f ind  one so  I  can take  you to  i t  –  there  is  usua l l y  tha t  b lock  

a t  the  top ,  i t  shows who i t  i s  addressed to ,  the  da te  o f  i t  

and then i t  usua l l y  says who wro te  i t ,  f rom,  you know,  i t  

has  been wr i t ten  by  the  Act ing  CEO or  i t  i s  a  document  

p repared by  the  lega l  depar tmen t  bu t  th is  one does not  10 

have tha t  th i rd  b lock .   I s  tha t  unusua l?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rpe rson,  the  on ly  

th ing  I  am see ing  here  is  the  company secre tary.   So may I  

no t  respond because I  do  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Where  do  you see the  company  

secre tary  because I  was about  to  say a  reso lu t i on ,  one 

wou ld  expect  the  company sec re tary  to  s ign  a t  leas t .   Is  

there  someth ing  to  suggest  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    A t  the  top  r igh t ,  Cha i r,  to  ass i s t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Top r i gh t?   Jus t  be low the  address?  Are  20 

we on the  same page 1695?  Ms Hofmeyr,  i s  tha t  the  page 

you sa id  we must  go  to?  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  where  we are ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Where  about  a t  the  top  r igh t?   I  
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can  see South  A f r i can A i rways Company Secre ta ry  –  oh ,  

tha t  i s  what  you a re  re fer r ing  to .  

MS MYENI :    Tha t  i s  what  I  am re fer r ing  to ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    Wel l ,  th is  i s  what  I  am see ing  now,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    That  ta lks  to  the  le t te rhead o f  the  company  

secre tary  and a t  the  back he re ,  Cha i rperson,  I  see tha t  

there  i s  a  reso lu t ion  tha t  was genera ted  by  the  company 

secre tary,  so  –  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  le t te rhead s t i l l  may be  tha t  o f  

the  company secre tary  bu t  one  wou ld  normal ly  expect  

reso lu t ion  to  be  s igned by  somebody.   My impress ion  is  

tha t  i t  i s  normal ly  s igned by  the  company secre ta ry  bu t  i t  

may be tha t  somet imes the  Cha i rperson s igns,  I  am not  

sure .   But  I  do  no t  see anybody  hav ing  s igned here  and 

o ther  than the  company secre tary  be ing  re f lec ted  on the 

le t te rhead,  there  seems to  be  noth ing  on  the  document  

i t se l f  to  ind ica te  who prepared the  document .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  I  m igh t  jus t  be  ab le  to  ass i s t .   20 

I f  you go to  DD19,  you w i l l  have DD19 amongst  your  f i les  

there .   I t  i s  the  bund le  o f  Mr  Moth ib i ’s  ev idence.   I  have  

jus t  p icked tha t  randomly  because i t  i s  one o f  the  

memoranda tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  show you as  s t r i k ing  

me as a  compar ison.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Ms  Hofmeyr,  p lease  do not  

fo rgo t  what  you want  to  go  on to .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    O f  course .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  tha t  on  the  next  page,  namely 

1696,  there  i s  a  le t te r  f rom the  company secre tary  

addressed to  –  or  Dear  D i rec to r  and then i t  says :  

“SAA board  o f  d i rec to rs  reg ion  reso lu t ion  2016/B04.   

Rat i f i ca t ion  o f  the  appo in tment  o f  the  ex terna l  

adv iser  to  the  board . ”  

And i t  says :  10 

“We re fe r  to  the  above mat te r  and a t tached here to  

the  wr i t ten  reso lu t ion  2016/B04.   K ind ly  cons ide r,  

s ign  and re tu rn  to  us ,  the  wr i t ten  reso lu t ion  by  12  

o ’c lock ,  Thursday 3  March 2016  v ia  emai l .   K ind  

regards,  Ruth  K ibuuka,  Company Secre tary. ”  

Now I  do  no t  know whether  –  oh ,  tha t  m ight  –  I  th ink  tha t  i s  

a  re ference to  th is  reso lu t ion  because th is  reso lu t ion  a t  

page 1695 because i t  does re fer  to  –  i t  does say wr i t ten  

reso lu t ion  number  2016/B05.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  tha t  i s  so  then one can take  i t  tha t  the  

company sec re tary  knows about  o r  knew about  the  

reso lu t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    What  I  –  rea l l y  my quest ion  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  par t  o f  what  I  d id  no t  unders tand.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    O f  course .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  tha t  par t  seems to  be  c la r i f ied  

now.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  i t  does indeed,  Cha i r,  and we a re  

indebted fo r  tha t .   I  guess where  my po in t  d r ives  a t  –  and 

maybe I  jus t  go  there  immedia te l y.   I t  i s  no t  c lea r  to  me 

who the  au thor  o f  th is  document  was because usua l ly  i t  i s  10 

ident i f ied ,  Act ing  CEO is  p resent ing  th is  to  the  board  fo r  

cons idera t ion  and requ i res  a  pa r t i cu la r  reso lu t ion  to  be  

taken.   Th is  document  i s  no t  l ike  tha t  and I  was jus t  

wonder ing  i f  Ms Myen i  found i t  unusua l  in  the  same way  

tha t  I  d id .   Ms Myen i ,  wou ld  you l i ke  to  answer  tha t?   I s  

tha t  unusua l  to  you too?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  f i rs t  check,  d id  you fo l low what  I  

was say ing  abou t  the  le t te r  o r  emai l  a t  page 1696,  Ms 

Myen i?   I  know …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    I  d id ,  Cha i r .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  fo l low what  I  was say ing .  

MS MYENI :    I  d id ,  I  heard  every th ing .   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  I  

s tood up to  take  the  f i le ,  Cha i r ,  so r ry .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay,  

maybe you can repeat  you r  quest ion  then,  Ms Hofmeyr .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  I  was jus t  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    I  heard  what  you wan t  me to  respond to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cou ld  you g i ve  us  your  response? 

MS MYENI :    I  am go ing  to ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  

MS MYENI :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you may respond,  Ms Myen i .  

MS MYENI :    No,  Cha i r ,  I  am go ing  to  –  I  am not  go ing  to  

respond to  th i s  par t i cu la r  document ,  Cha i rpe rson,  bu t  I  am 10 

go ing  to  say tha t  a  ra t i f i ca t ion  o f  a  dec i s ion  tha t  has 

a l ready been made might  be  d i f fe ren t  f rom a  memo to  the  

board  wh ich  is  a  normal  memorandum tha t  ge ts  submi t ted  

by  the  s ta f f ,  by  the  execut ives .    

So when the  execut ives  presented  or  wou ld  l i ke  the  

board  to  approve  someth ing  and the  board  meet ing  maybe  

is  s t i l l  fo r thcoming,  maybe the  board  meet ing  is  in  a month  

or  two months  because the  board  is  no t  a  Monday to  Fr iday  

th ing ,  Cha i r ,  the  board  wou ld  meet  maybe b imonth ly  o r  

every  quar te r ,  four  t imes a  year ,  depend ing  on the  s ize  o f  20 

the  en t i t y .  

So some dec is ions tha t  a re  needed u rgent ly  wou ld  

be  sent  -   a  mot iva t ion  wou ld  be  sent  e lec t ron i ca l l y  to  a l l  

boa rd  members .   Board  members  then wou ld  send 

ind iv idua l  responses to  the  company secre ta ry ’ s  o f f i ce .  
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When the  company secre tary  has  a l l  the  responses  

then the  company secre tary  a t  the  board  meet ing  fo rmal ly  

w i l l  say  we have  to  ra t i f y  what  was e lec t ron ica l l y  dec ided  

upon.   So the  ra t i f i ca t ion  I  see here  is  based on many 

o ther  ra t i f i ca t ions tha t  wou ld  occur  under  normal  

c i rcumstances,  under  no rmal  c i r cumstances.  

So I  am say ing  th is  cou ld  be  amongst  those,  bu t  I  

cannot  conf i rm tha t  th is  i s  –  a l l  I  am say ing  is  tha t  i f  i t  i s  

d i f fe ren t  f rom a  board  tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  re fe rs  to ,  one,  two,  

ra t i f i ca t ion  o f  the  Board  reso lu t ion  is  no t  a  Board  10 

reso lu t ion  tha t  wou ld  be  an no rma l  way o f  ask ing  the  Board  

to  approve someth ing  a t  the  Board  meet ing  wh i le  the  Board  

is  meet ing .   That  i s  my on ly  way to  ass i s t  you Cha i rperson.    

A lso  i f  I  touch here  on  page 1698 no rmal ly  a t  the  

Board  meet ing  the  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  wou ld  s ign  there  

where  i t  says  name o f  the  d i rec to r  in  favour  o r  aga ins t  o r  

absta in ,  so  we wou ld  s ign  such th ings bu t  somet imes they  

wou ld  send us  in fo rmat ion  ind iv idua l l y  fo r  us  to  take  a  

dec is ion  a f te r  read ing  whatever  t ha t  i s  be ing  p roposed by   

the  execut ives  o r  whatever  tha t  i s  requ i red  in  te rms o f  20 

urgent  approva ls ,  so  th is  fo r  me is  a  ra t i f i ca t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:  Thank you Ms Myen i  we are  indebted to  

you fo r  tha t  ins igh t .   I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  take  you to  page  

1697 o f  th is  document ,  and i t  we  rea l l y  do  –  we are  now  

chas ing  the  c lock  so  we are  go ing  to  t ry  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 191 of 265 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and I  am ter r ib ly  sor ry  I  th ink  we  

must  take  jus t  a  b r ie f  ad journment ,  le t  i t  be  ten  m inutes  

on ly  and then we w i l l  resume.  

 We ad journ .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r ,  I  am ve ry  m indfu l  o f  10 

the  l im i ted  t ime,  so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  ra ise  one  fu r ther  

aspect  in  re la t ion  to  Mr  L inne l l  w i th  Ms Myen i .    Ms  Myen i  

over  the  per iod  tha t  Mr  L inne l l  was prov id ing  serv ices  to  

SAA which  was between December  o f  2014 and August  o f  

2016 do you know how much SAA pa id  h im in  tha t  per iod?  

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  don ’ t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana ’s  ev idence the  o ther  day 

was tha t  h is  serv ices  were  no t  rea l l y  needed,  do  you ho ld  

tha t  v iew as we l l?  20 

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  don ’ t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you accept  tha t  i f  a  S ta te  Owned  

Ent i t y  pa id  jus t  under  R2mi l l ion  fo r  se rv i ces  tha t  were  no t  

rea l l y  needed tha t  wou ld  const i tu te  waste fu l  expend i tu re?  
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MS MYENI :    May I  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  don ’ t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  I  wou ld  then l i ke  to  move to  an  

a l legat ion  tha t  has been made in  th is  Commiss ion  

prev ious l y  by  Ms  Nans i ,  you w i l l  have rece ived a  Ru le  33  

not ice  in  re la t ion  to  Ms Nans i ,  d id  you fo l low he r  ev idence  

a t  a l l?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson I  don ’ t  watch  the  S ta te  Capture  

Inqu i ry  ev idence o f  anyone,  so  I  . . .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l  le t  me te l l  you  what  she d id  say in  10 

her  ev idence.   She dea l t  w i th  th is  top ic  o f  fa lse  

wh is t leb lower  repor ts  tha t  she ind i ca ted  she had been to ld  

by  Ms Kwinana you used to  p repare  in  o rder  to  ge t  r id  o f  

execut ives  who you no longer  wanted in  the  management  

o f  SAA,  a re  you aware  o f  those a l l egat ions?  

MS MYENI :    In  th is  regard  Cha i rperson I  th ink  I  responded 

when I  was asked a  quest ion ,  what  I  don ’ t  reca l l  p roper ly  

w i th  regards to  Nans i ,  who was the  Act ing  CFO and  

became CFO,  what  I  don ’ t  remember  proper ly  i s  whethe r  

my response was as  a  resu l t  o f  you know – whether  my 20 

response was as  a  resu l t  o f  the  med ia  enqu i ry  o r  

someth ing  bu t  I  remember  respond ing ,  in  par t i cu la r  to  the 

a l legat ions tha t  were  leve l led  aga ins t  me by  Nans i ,  and I  

sa id  I  wou ld  hope,  tha t  was my response then and i t  i s  

go ing  to  be  my response now,  I  wou ld  hope Cha i rpe rson  
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tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  no t  a  h id ing  p lace fo r  ta in ted  

employees who  leave employment  hav ing  commi t ted  

ser ious o f fences where  they come f rom,  tha t  was a  genera l  

response I  made when I  was asked about  Nans i ,  and 

there fo re  i t  i s  the  same response  I  am mak ing  r igh t  now 

about  what  i s  be ing  sa id  about  wh is t leb lowers  and  about  

what  Nans i  a l leges I  wou ld  have done regard ing  the  

wh is t leb lowers  bu t  a lso  Cha i r  the re  are  too  many goss ips  

go ing  around.    

 Now when I  read  Nans i ’ s  a f f idav i t  on  wh is t leb lower  10 

she was s i t t ing  w i th  her  f r iend,  Kw inana,  goss ip ing ,  ta lk ing  

about  wh is t leb lower  and I  cannot  then change my response  

then and my response now.    Kwinana and Nans i  a re  

f r iends and they have been bus iness par tners  or  they have 

worked togethe r  in  some bus inesses,  inc lud ing  Dene l ,  

there fo re  I  do  no t  want  to  g lo r i f y  what  i s  be ing  sa id  here 

about  Nans i  ta lk ing  about  me and  wh is t leb lower .   That  i s  

my long-winded  response Cha i rpe rson because  I  am 

re fer r i ng  to  what  I  responded to  las t  t ime and i t  i s  the 

same response I  am mak ing  r igh t  now Cha i r .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  d id  you prepare  fa lse  

wh is t leb lower  repor t s  in  o rde r  to  ta rge t  members  o f  

management  who  you d id  no t  want  in  the  organ isa t ion?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to  tha t  

par t i cu la r  quest ion  be ing  re fer red  to ,  in  o rder  no t  to  
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incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  I  d idn ’ t  have an oppor tun i ty  to  

ask  Ms Kwinana about  these a l legat ions because her  

ev idence d idn ’ t  comple te  on  Tuesday and I  was s t i l l  coming  

to  the  quest ion ,  bu t  a re  you aware  tha t  she gave th is  

account  o f  fa lse  wh is t leb lower  repor ts  to  OUTA shor t l y  

a f te r  she le f t  SAA in  August  o f  2016?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion  so  tha t  I  don ’ t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  I  do  jus t  want  to  fo r  the  record  be  10 

c lea r ,  Ms Kwinana was asked about  th is  in  her  regu la t ion  

10 .6  d i rec t i ve ,  he r  response in  he r  10 .6  d i rec t i ve  i s :  

“ I  have no way  o f  knowing whether  the  fa lse  

wh is t leb lower  repor t s  a l leged ly  p repared by  Ms  

Myen i  a re  fa lse  o r  no t . ”  

That  i s  her  vers ion  on  a f f idav i t ,  I  in tend to  pursue tha t  w i th  

her  tomorrow in  the  ev idence.   I  wanted to  g i ve  Ms Myen i  

an  oppor tun i ty  to  answer  tha t  a l legat ion  aga ins t  her  

though.  

 Ms Myen i  I  wou ld  now l i ke  to  move to  the  BNP 20 

t ransact ion ,  i s  tha t  a  t ransact ion  you are  aware  o f?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rpe rson  to  the  

quest ion ,  to  avo id  incr im inat ing  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  we rece ived ev idence  o f  Ms 

Cynth ia  S t impe l  be fore  th is  Commiss ion ,  I  th ink  she 
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tes t i f ied  over  two days dea l ing  w i th  the  BNP t ransact ion  

and she exp la ined tha t  a round February  2015 SAA was in  

d i re  need o f  cash  and had repor ted  tha t  to  Treasury  and so  

i t  was in  the  p rocess o f  secur ing  fund ing .   Can you  conf i rm  

tha t  tha t  was the  pos i t ion  in  February  2015? 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

Cha i rperson to  avo id  inc r im inat ing  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms S t impe l ’s  ev idence was tha t  there  

was a  c ross- funct iona l  team estab l i shed in  o rder  to  secure  

th is  fund ing  and tha t  they worked  qu i te  s tead i l y  on  i t  bu t  10 

then in  October  2014 remember  when the  o ld  compla in ing  

members  o f  the  Board  are  no t  re ta ined and a  much smal le r  

board  o f  yourse l f ,  Ms Kwinana,  Mr  D ixon and Dr  Thambi  i s  

then put  in  p lace .   The Board  on  he r  vers ion  s ta r ted  to  

invo l ve  i t se l f  in  secur ing  fund ing .   Can you d ispu te  her  

ev idence on tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion  so  tha t  I  don ’ t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms S t impe l ’s  ev idence was tha t  tha t  

leve l  o f  Board  invo lvement  was someth ing  tha t  she had not  20 

exper ienced befo re  a t  SAA in  her  many years .  A re  aware  o f  

tha t  leve l  o f  Board  invo lvement  p r io r  to  t ransact ion  a t  

SAA? 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond so  tha t  I  don ’ t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  go t  to  a  po in t  where  the  Board  ac tua l l y  

invo l ved i t se l f  bo th  in  rev iewing  the  dra f t  RFP fo r  the  

fund ing  tha t  was requ i red ,  eva lua t ing  proposa ls  and  

appo in t ing  b idders  and Ms S t impe l  sa id  tha t  s im i lar ly  was 

unprecedented in  the  h is to ry  o f  SAA’s  fund ing  endeavours ,  

do  you d i spute  tha t?   

MS MYENI :    What  i s  the  name o f  the  person?   Sor ry ,  what  

i s  the  name o f  the  person?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms S t impe l ,  Ms S t impe l .  

MS MYENI :    Was  she an execut ive? 10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    She was Group Treasure r  a t  the  t ime.  

MS MYENI :    Was  she an execut ive  ma’am? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    No she was not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :    Was  she in  the  Exco?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no  she was runn ing  the  cross-

funct iona l  team who was respons ib le  fo r  secur i t y  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :    I t  i s  unprecedented fo r  a  jun io r  execut ive  or  a  

jun io r  manager  o r  a  manager  to  expect  tha t  the  

Cha i rperson wou ld  jus t  know her  f rom Cynth ia .    Under  20 

normal  c i r cumstances Cha i rperson i f  the  board  members  

ment ioned here  do  not  inc lude execut ive  d i rec tors  then i t  i s  

no t  a  fac tua l  repor t ing  or  accura te  rep resenta t ion .   The 

Board  was const i tu ted  in  accordance w i th  the  MOU of  the  

organ isa t ion .   There  w i l l  be  a  spec i f i c  number  wh ich  wou ld  
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be  m in imum to  max imum.    Now what  I  am surp r ised about  

i s  the  ment ion  o f  the  non-execut ive  d i rec tor  bu t  the  

execut ive  d i rec to rs  a re  no t  ment ioned Cha i rperson.  

 Second ly  i f  you  were  no t  a  deputy  f inance person or  

a  deputy  CEO o r  maybe an HR execut ive ,  o r  any o the r  

execut ive  i t  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  remember  the  o the r  

laye r  tha t  was not  a t  the  execut ive  leve l ,  so  there  is  an  

assumpt ion  by  Ms Hofmeyr  tha t  when she says  Cynth ia  

then I  wou ld  au tomat ica l l y  know who Cynth ia  i s .   I  was not  

a  CEO of  SAA,  I  was a  non-execut ive  d i rec tor  and the  10 

cha i rperson o f  the  Board .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :    So  tha t  i s  why I  am ask ing  who is  Cynth ia .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  p roduc t  o f  the 

de lay  and maybe   a  break in  t ransmiss ion .   I  wou ld  never  

in  the  proceed ings o f  th is  Commiss ion  re fe r  to  somebody 

by  on ly  the i r  f i rs t  name.   I  d id  re fe r  to  her  as  Ms Cynth ia  

S t impe l ,  I  asked you about  whether  you had watched her  

ev idence and the  quest ion  I  pu t  to  you i s  jus t  the  ev idence 

she has presented to  the  Commiss ion .   Her  ev idence is  20 

when they were  seek ing  th is  fund ing  in  o f  February  2015  

and the  months  thereaf te r  the  Board  go t  invo l ved in  ve t t ing  

the  RFP for  the  fund ing ,  eva lua t ing  the  proposa ls  fo r  the  

fund ing  and appo in t ing  the  b idders  in  a  way tha t  she had  

never  –  sor ry  –  appo in ted  the  b idders  to  whom the  RFP 
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wou ld  be  c i rcu la ted  and she  sa id  she had never  

exper ienced tha t  be fore ,  and so  what  I  was ask ing  you was  

do you d i spute  tha t  th is  was the  f i rs t  t ime in  a  fund ing  

scenar io  tha t  the  Board  was get t ing  i t  i t se l f  invo lved.  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

Cha i rperson,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  happened  was the  RFP went  ou t  

acco rd ing  to  Ms  S t impe l ’s  ev idence,  b ids  were  rece ived,  

eva lua t ions were  done and tha t  c ross- funct iona l  sourc ing  

team in  wh ich  she was invo lved se lec ted  a  combinat ion  o f  10 

th ree  banks to  source  the  funds S tandard  Char te r ,  

Nedbank and ABSA and they were  ready to  go  bu t  then 

there  was a  board  meet ing  tha t  was convened on the  3 r d  o f  

December  2015 a t  wh ich  i t  was dec ided tha t  the  Free S ta te  

Deve lopment  Corpora te  shou ld  be  the  funder  fo r  SAA.   Do 

you reca l l  tha t  dec is ion  be ing  taken by  the  Board?  

MS MYENI :    May I  Cha i rperson not  respond  to  the  

quest ion  be ing  posed to  avo id  inc r im inat ing  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  you are  ind ica ted  as  hav ing  

been a  member  o f  the  Board  a t  the  t ime and a  suppor te r  o f  20 

tha t  dec is ion  and tha t  was the  ev idence o f  Ms S t impe l  

inso fa r  as  the  reco rds  o f  the  dec is ion  mak ing  was  

concerned and in  the  l igh t  o f  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  you  

how i t  cou ld  be  tha t  you took the  v iew,  as  one o f  the  vo t ing  

board  members  tha t  a  pub l i c  en t i t y  l i ke  the  Free S ta te  
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Deve lopment  Corpora t ion  cou ld  become invo lved in  fund ing  

an SOE? 

MS MYENI :    What  i s  the  prob lem wi th  the  quest ion  you are  

ask ing  me ma’am? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  Nat iona l  Treasury  regu la t ions says 

tha t  i t  was no t  w i th in  the  Free S ta te  Deve lopment  

Corpora t ion ’s  lega l  mandate  to  fund an ent i t y  l i ke  South  

A f r i can A i rways,  i t s  mandate  was l im i ted  to  deve lopment  

p ro jec ts  w i th in  the  Free S ta te ,  so  I  am ask ing  you why you  

as  a  Board  member  suppor ted  the  FBC fund ing  SAA to the  10 

tune o f  R15b i l l i on?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  tha t  quest ion  

Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  I  don ’ t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  what  happened f i r s t  i s  tha t  there  is  

th is  dec i s ion  o f  the  Board  on  the  3 r d  o f  December  2015 to  

ge t  FDC to  be  the  funder ,  bu t  tha t  i s  scuppered because in  

ear l y  January  2016 Nat iona l  Treasury  conveys to  the  team 

a t  SAA tha t  the  FBC wou ld  be  beyond  i t s  mandate  i f  i t  were  

to  p rov ide  th is  fund ing ,  and on Ms  S t impe l ’s  ev idence what  

then happens is  tha t  the  Board  dec ided to  appo in t  a  20 

t ransact ion  adv isor  to  source  and fac i l i ta te  th is  fund ing  

tha t  SAA was look ing  fo r .   Do you remember  mak ing  tha t  

dec is ion?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .    
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you d i spute  tha t  you were  a  member  

o f  the  Board  tha t  made tha t  dec is ion?  

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  don ’ t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms S t impe l  sa id  the  Board ’s  dec is ion  

was to  her  m ind concern ing  because a l l  tha t  work  tha t  he r  

team had done in  runn ing  the  RFP process,  in  ge t t ing  the  

b ids  f rom the  banks was now go ing  to  be  redone  by  th is  

t ransact iona l  adv isor .   Why was the  Board  th ink ing  a  

t ransact iona l  adv isor  needed to  be  appo in ted  to  do  work  10 

tha t  had a l ready been done.  

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond Cha i rperson I  don ’ t  want  to  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  a process was run  accord ing  to  the  

ev idence o f  Ms S t impe l ,  and an en t i t y  ca l led  B  &  P Cap i ta l  

was awarded the  cont rac t  as  a  t ransact ion  adv i so r .   We 

rece ived the  ev idence o f  Mr  Mhlangu who was a  d i rec to r  o f  

B  &  P Cap i ta l  be fore  th is  Commiss ion  and in  the  course  o f  

h is  ev idence i t  was po in ted  out  to  h im tha t  there  were  

numerous fa lse  s ta tements  and incomple te  documents  in  20 

the  b id  submiss ion .   Does i t  surpr i se  you tha t  an  en t i t y  l i ke 

B  &  P Cap i ta l  cou ld  run  th rough a  procurement  p rocess a t  

SAA wh i le  you were  i t s  cha i rperson,  be  awarded a  tender  

and then hav ing  done so  when  i t  had inc luded fa lse  

s ta tements  and  incomple te  documents  in  i t s  b id  
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submiss ion?  

MS MYENI:     Only  wh i te  t ransac t ion  p lan  adv i so rs  wou ld  

ra the r  be  pre fer red ,  i s  i t  because he was a  Mhlangu or  i s  i t  

because he had no capab i l i t ies  o f  do ing  the  work  o r  he  d id  

no t  compete  w i th  o ther  tenderers ,  w i th  o ther  serv i ce  

prov iders ,  i t  i s  a  quest ion  o f  c la r i t y  cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  cer ta in l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :   Wha t  wou ld  make h im  not  ab le  to  do  a  job  fo r  

South  A f r i can A i rways,  was i t  a  reserved space fo r  e i ther  

banks o r  was i t  a  reserved space fo r  some o f  the  10 

consu l tan ts  o r  f inanc ia l  en t i t ies  tha t  wou ld  be  ab le  to  

source  fund ing  fo r  South  A f r i can A i rways,  I  am jus t  ask ing  

a  quest ion  because there  must  be  a  beg inn ing  fo r  a  new 

ent ran t  to  be  ab le  to  be  a lso  counted in  the  cur ren t  

s i tua t ion  i n  the  count ry  where  any o ther  pe rson  who is  

competent  to  do  the  work  must  do  the  work ,  bu t  now I  am 

asked why Mhlangu,  why B  &  P  Cap i ta l ,  I  have never  met  

h im,  I  don ’ t  know h im,  bu t  I  am be ing  asked a  quest ion  

wh ich  is  opera t iona l .    Cynth ia  Cha i rperson wou ld  have 

repor ted  to  the  CFO who is  an  Execut ive  D i rec to r  o f  SAA, 20 

there fo re  Cha i r  w i th  th is  background I  am not  invok ing  my  

pr iv i lege but  I  am not  respond ing  to  the  quest ion  tha t  has  

been asked.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  tha t  i s  no t  an  answer  to  my 

quest ion ,  my quest ion  was based on the  ev idence before  
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th is  Commiss ion  tha t  B  &  P Cap i ta l  submi t ted  a  b id  

conta in ing  fa lse  s ta tements ,  and incomple te  documents  

and desp i te  tha t  were  awarded a  tender .    And I  asked you 

whether  i t  wou ld  concern  you to  learn  tha t  tha t  i s  how a  

procu rement  p rocess was run  a t  SAA.  

MS MYENI :    The non-execut ive  d i rec to r  –  sor ry  i f  the 

Execut ive  D i rec to r ,  the  CFO,  had come to  me and to ld  me  

tha t  these b idders  are  be fore  us  w i th  fa lse  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

i s  someth ing  e lse ,  bu t  fo r  me to  say d id  i t  concern  me or  

does i t  concern  me o r  wou ld  i t  have concerned me.   Cha i r  10 

may I  no t  answer  th is  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Mhlangu tes t i f ied  tha t  a  Mr  Masotsha  

Mugad i  was –  I  am paraphras ing  now,  bu t  rea l l y  the  bra ins  

beh ind  B  &  P  and tha t  i t  was he who had a l l  the  meet ings  

w i th  SAA and there  was an a l legat ion  tha t  Mr  Mugad i  i s  a  

bus iness assoc ia te  o f  you r  son ’s ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  

Cha i rperson in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  then happened in  the  passage o f  

events  i s  a f te r  B  &  P  was appo in ted  as  a  t ransact iona l  20 

adv isor  there  was  a  dec is ion  taken  to  ge t  the  B  &  P  to  then 

source  a  R15b i l l i on  tha t  had never  impar ted  the  or ig ina l  

tender  bu t  the  Board  took a  dec is ion  to  now extend the  

scope o f  B  &  P ,  w i thout  go ing  ou t  on  tender  fo r  the  

sourc ing  o f  the  funds and to  ge t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MS MYENI :    Sor ry  Cha i rperson ,  can I  jus t  ge t  c la r i t y  

there ,  who appo in ted  B  &  P  Cap i ta l?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    B  &  P  Cap i ta l  as  t ransact ion  adv isor  was  

appo in ted ,  I  th ink  i t  fe l l  w i th in  the  CEO’s  de legat ion ,  I  

wou ld  jus t  have to  check tha t .  

MS MYENI :    I  th ink  fo r  c la r i t y .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sure .   So now I  am ask ing  th is  ex tens ion  

o f  the  scope o f  the  t ransact iona l  adv isor  was a  dec is ion  o f  

the  Board ,  so  the  t ransact iona l  adv i sor  had then se lec ted  

th rough a  procurement  p rocess ,  bu t  then the  Board  10 

in te rvened on the  21s t  o f  Apr i l  2016 to  ex tend B  &  P ’s  

scope to  inc lude  the  sourc ing  o f  funds.   Do you  reca l l  

hav ing  made tha t  dec i s ion?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rpe rson  to  the  

quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you d i spute  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]    

MS MYENI :    . . . in  case I  imp l ica te  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you d ispute  tha t  as  a  member  o f  the  

Board  you took tha t  dec is ion  to  ex tend the  scope in  a  

s i tua t ion  where  no  procurement  p rocess was fo l lowed pr io r  20 

to  i t s  ex tens ion?  

MS MYENI :    I  request  to  invoke the  pr i v i lege Cha i rpe rson  

o f  no t  respond ing  to  the  quest ion ,  in  case I  inc r im inate  

myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Then a  fa i r l y  odd th ing  happened,  
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because the  Board  had taken the  dec is ion  to  ex tend the  

scope o f  B  &  P  to  inc lude sourc ing  o f  funds,  bu t  –  and tha t  

was on the  21 s t  o f  Apr i l ,  bu t  then  on the  6 t h  o f  May,  a  few 

weeks la te r ,  Ms S t impe l  was  asked to  s ign  a  b id  

ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee  submiss ion  mot iva t ing  fo r  the 

dec is ion  tha t  the  Board  had a l ready taken.   Is  tha t  

someth ing  tha t  regu lar l y  happened a t  SAA under  your  

watch?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond  Cha i r  pe rson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms S t impe l  a round the  6 t h  o f  May was  

go ing  away and  she was concerned tha t  th is  BEAC 

submiss ion  shou ld  no t  be  s igned,  and she ins t ruc ted  her  

co l league,  Mr  K l ine ,  no t  to  s ign  the  BEAC submiss ion  bu t  

she was to ld  by  h im tha t  he  had rece ived pressure  to  do  so  

and had done so .   Were  you aware  o f  th is  p ressure  be ing  

app l ied  pursuant  to  the  Board ’s  reso lu t ion  on  the  21s t  o f  

Apr i l  2016 to  ge t  the  BAC submiss ion  s igned? 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond  Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  

respond I  don ’ t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then what  happened was the  Board  

approved the  appo in tment  fo r  a  second t ime o f  B  &  P on 

the  24 t h  o f  May 2016.   Do you d ispute  tha t  you were  a  

member  o f  the  Board  tha t  took tha t  dec i s ion?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  
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Cha i rperson I  don ’ t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now the  Board  took the  dec is ion  on  the 

24 t h  o f  May 2016,  i t  was communica ted  to  B  &  P  on the  25 t h  

o f  May 2016,  and on the  same day tha t  B  &  P  was  

appo in ted  to  source  funds,  B  &  P  wro te  back to  SAA and  

sa id  tha t  i t  wanted SAA to  commi t  i t se l f  to  a  cance l la t ion  

fee  fo r  the  work  t ha t  i t  had  a l ready  done on sourc ing  funds,  

desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  i t   hadn ’ t  been appo in ted  to  do  so   

Were  you aware  tha t  B  &  P  was seek ing  a  cance l la t ion  fee  

on  those te rms?  10 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  Cha i r  in  

case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  on the  very  same i t  i s  appo in ted  i t  

wants  SAA to  commi t  to  a  cance l la t ion  fee .   I  th ink  the  

cance l la t ion  fee  s ta r ted  o f f  a t  about  R300mi l l ion .   Do you  

reca l l  Ms Nans i  hav ing  d iscussed tha t  w i th  you?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you d ispute  tha t  tha t  in i t ia l  amount  o f  

R300mi l l ion  was brought  to  your  a t ten t ion?  20 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    There  was a  ser ies  o f  co r respondence 

between B  &  P  and SAA a t  the  t ime as  i t  kep t  mo t iva t ing  

fo r  th is  cance l la t ion  fee .   I t  made re ference to  the  fac t  tha t  
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they  had been t ry ing  to  seek funders  in  a l l  sor ts  o f  fo re ign  

loca t ions and had to  take  t r ips  there  in  o rder  to  do  so .  We 

rece ived however  the  ev idence o f  the  main  funder ,  wh ich  

was an ent i t y  ca l led  Gr i ssag,  do  you know the  en t i t y  

Gr issag?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond  Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  

respond Cha i rperson because I  don ’ t  want  to  incr im inate  

myse l f .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    The Commiss ion  rece ived the  ev idence  

o f  Mr  van der  Merwe,  who was a  d i rec tor  o f  Gr i ssag,  who  10 

to ld  the  Commiss ion  tha t  what  B  &  P  was te l l ing  SAA about  

a l l  the  costs  and work  tha t  i t  had done was fa lse .   A re  you  

aware  o f  tha t  ev idence?  

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  don ’ t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    A l l  o f  a  sudden in  th is  in te rchange  

between SAA and B  &  P Cap i ta l  tha t  in i t ia l  fee  o f  

R300mi l l ion  dropped to  R49.9mi l l ion  and Ms  Nans i ’ s  

ev idence was tha t  tha t  fo l lowed a  ca l l  tha t  she was to ld  

you had made to  Mr  Zwane.   Do you d ispute  tha t  you made 20 

a  ca l l  to  Mr  Zwane dea l ing  w i th  th is  d rop  o f  the  B  & P 

Cap i ta l  cance l la t ion  fee  amount?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Nans i ’ s  ev idence was tha t  tha t  
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conversa t ion  –  in  tha t  conversa t ion  as  re layed to  her  by  Mr  

Zwane was tha t  you had enqu i red  about  the  leve l  o f  the 

CEO’s  CAP o f  de legat ion  because Ms Nans i  was  ra is ing  

issues about  i t  go ing  to  the  Board  and you wanted to  f ind  

ou t  f rom Mr  Zwane a t  what  leve l  the  dec is ion  to  approve  

the  cance l la t ion  fee  wou ld  no t  be  requ i red  to  go  to  the  

Board .   Do you d ispute  tha t  tha t  conversa t ion  took p lace 

between you and Mr  Zwane? 

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  don ’ t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  you were  I  th ink  on  ou r  

records  the  on ly  member  o f  the  Board  who suppor ted  

approv ing  the  cance l la t ion  fee ,  do  you d ispute  tha t  you 

were  the  on ly  member  o f  the  Board  tha t  approved the  

cance l la t ion  fee?  

MS MYENI :    Where  d id  the  approva l ,  the  mot iva t ion  come 

f rom Ms  Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  a  moment .    I t  

came f rom Ms Nans i ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you f i rs t  to  your  

emai l  in  wh ich  you convey your  approva l .    You w i l l  f ind 20 

tha t  in  Bund le  DD1,  so  i f  you  can  p ick  tha t  up  and  i t  i s  the  

second f i le ,  so  i t  w i l l  be  DD1B and  we need page 559.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  we are  a t  f i ve .    

MS MYENI :    I  have i t ,  I  have i t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you intend to ask one or two quest ions 



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 208 of 265 
 

or what is your… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  I  could just  deal  wi th  th is  emai l  and then 

we could think about logist ics Chai r.   Could I  complete the 

emai l  depending on my learned f r iend’s posi t ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh Mr Buthelezi  is that  f ine?  Okay alr ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   You have 559 in f ront  of  you,  

do you Ms Myeni? 

MS MYENI:   I  was going to ask for the page.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sorry.  

MS MYENI:   I  have the f i le I  found so page 559? 10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes you wi l l  f ind i t  under Tab 59 in that  f i le  

is that  assists.    

MS MYENI:   I  have i t  Chai rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  would l ike to s tart  mid-way on the page 

because that  is an emai l  f rom the com – Deputy Company 

Secretary i t  is addressed:  

“Dear SAA board member”  

And i t  says:  

“At tached herewi th for your considerat ion 

and approval  p lease f ind the Round Robin in  20 

respect  of  the approval  of  the cancel lat ion 

fee to  the t ransact ion advisor.   P lease kindly 

communicate your decisions as indicated in  

the Round Robin form” 

And then above that  is an emai l  f rom your Jacob Zuma 
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Foundat ion address dated the 7 July 2016 return ing – 

responding to the Deputy Company Secretary and your emai l  

reads:  

“Dear Mdu does this need board approval  i f  

so I  approve i t .   Regards Ms Dudu Myeni  

Execut ive Chairperson. ”  

Ms Myeni  do you dispute having sent  th is emai l?  

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson may I  not  respond so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  is fa i rness to you I  must  put  i t  to  10 

that  your f i rst  sentence of  that  emai l  querying whether th is 

decision needed board approval  is consistent  wi th the 

vers ion that  Ms Nhantsi  presented to this commission related 

to your conversat ion wi th Ms Zwane about what the level  

would be in order  for  the matter not  to come to the board for 

approval? Do you dispute that? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chair  those were my quest ions in re lat ion 

to that  emai l  and I  am very conscious of  my learned f r iend’s 20 

constraints so maybe we should be thinking about taking 

matters forward.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   You might  be needing about th i r ty  

minutes or at  least  not  more than an hour to f in ish? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh yes certain ly.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Should we – should we make 

arrangements to – for Ms Myeni  to  give evidence dur ing one 

of  the evening sessions that  we can – we can look at  on one 

of  the days.   From your side how does that  –  wi thout  

speaking about the date how does that  sound to Ms Hofmeyr 

f rom your side? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Subject  to the date.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Mr Buthelezi  subject  to the date would 10 

that  be f ine wi th  you?  I t  might  be f rom f ive to  six – one hour 

or depending but  coming in at  f ive or at  four just  depending 

on the date that  we – we can arrange? 

ADV BUTHELEZI:  You see Chair  the t ime now we are just  

s l ight ly above f ive.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV BUTHELEZI:   I f  I  could get  a f i rm - f i rm undertaking 

that  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry? 

ADV BUTHELEZI:   I f  I  could get  a f i rm, f i rm undertaking by 20 

latest  hal f  past  f ive we could then wrap i t  up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We could wrap i t  up.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Then in i ts ent i rety so that  i t  does not… 

CHAIRPERSON:   We do not  have to  – yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Rol l  over.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   How does – how does that  sound Ms 

Hofmeyr?   I t  is just  that  you somet imes you can never be 

sure? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  real ly cannot  I  wi l l  do my absolute best  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  there is … 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  cannot commit  in a way that  – that  

means… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  guess you can commit  i f  –  i f  i t  was 

something l ike not  more than forty-f ive minutes,  not  more 10 

than an hour.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Not  more than an hour.   I  could very 

comfortably commit  to i t  is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  wi th in  the t ime that  is lef t  you might  

not  be sure.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because you do not  want to mislead him.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Of  course.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To say. .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Of  course.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  f in ish by hal f  past  f ive.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   No Chai r,  no Chai r.   I  object  to the hour.   

I  am giving th i r ty minutes because we are here now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  am not  saying let  us go for an 
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hour.   Ja I  am not  saying that .  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   So I  am saying Chai r  we have done the 

utmost  in making sure that  we wrap everything up by today 

including the fact  that  we agreed to come in ear ly even af ter 

having run days wi th – we agree now second t ime to a 

further extension.    

So I  th ink Chai r  there has got  to be a level  of  

fa i rness to say,  look the commission must  do i ts work but  

also have wi th in  reasonable parameters for the rest  of  us to 

say,  what I  do not  want to happen is to leave this hanging 10 

today and then we spend two, three,  four weeks t ry ing to 

organise the next  date because of  the avai labi l i ty issues on 

our side.    

I  th ink i t  is also pre judicial  to cl ient  to have this th ing 

now hanging by another hour af ter she spent  three days 

commit ted to the process.  So what we envisaged at  the start  

of  the process was that  come this t ime today this  would 

behind us.   So we are making as much comprises as we can 

to say,  let  us put  th is behind us.    

And we then also implore on the commission to say,  I  20 

think al locate the t ime of  three days for yourselves to  say we 

want th is wi tness here for three days.   The wi tness has been 

here for three days and we have now even on the thi rd  day 

given further – fur ther t imes.   I  th ink they also need to come 

to the party Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the problem with that  is even i f  Ms 

Hofmeyr – even i f  we proceed – cont inue then she f in ished 

by hal f  past  that  would not  necessar i ly mean – guarantee 

that  Ms Myeni  wi l l  not  be asked to come back.   So that  is  not  

a guarantee.   But  what is – what we – what I  am interested 

in is  to  t ry  and make sure that  everyone is  reasonably 

accommodated.    

 I f  we – i f  the posi t ion is that  we do not  f in ish or  we 

cannot f in ish today because of  t ime constraints we look at 

another t ime when everybody can make themselves 10 

avai lab le.   

 Now when I  ta lk  about  an evening session maybe 

f rom form f ive to six or whatever f rom my side I  am looking 

as soon as possib le but  I  accept  that  not  everybody might  be 

avai lab le so i t  is subject  to discussion that  part .  

 When we are looking at  a date that  is c lose by l ike 

wi thin two weeks that  we discuss – we can discuss but  when 

we looking at  a date that  is qu i te far we do not  discuss that .   

We can f ix the date because we are giving reasonable 

not ice.   But  when i t  is c lose we accept  that  that  might  not  be 20 

reasonable not ice therefore i t  should be subject  to 

discussion.   

 So – so – but  I  do know – I  do not  know what – or  Ms 

Hofmeyr actual ly did say there is a  part  that  would be deal t  

wi th by another member of  the legal  team that  – that  is the 
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part  that  relates to Eskom. 

 So when Ms Hofmeyr has f in ished i t  does not  mean 

that  everything has been f in ished.   I  know that  Mr Seleka 

had in mind that  he would get  t ime today to – to quest ion Mr 

Myeni  on Eskom but  obviously that  has not  happened. 

 So i t  may wel l  be that  we should not  be looking at  – 

we might  not  be looking at  an hour.   But  the Eskom part  I  

know is a very narrow issue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is a very narrow issue.   I  cannot see i t  10 

taking more than an hour.   So i t  may be that  we should look 

at  maybe about two hours which could be four to six;  which 

could be f ive to seven on… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On an evening that  we can agree upon in 

the next  two weeks or something l ike that .  So basical ly the 

idea is we can talk about  when i t  should be as long as 

everyone accepts the pr inciple.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Sorry Chai r.   We have just  got  one or two 

proposi t ions.   In i t ia l ly we had the one quest ion that  hung 20 

over wi th Mr Manaka’s aff idavi t  maybe we had accepted that  

we could receive wri t ten quest ions which we could respond. I  

do not  know whether i f  i t  is st i l l  feasible to take the same 

approach for  the balance of  Ms Hofmeyr ’s quest ions to come 

via wri t ten quest ions.    
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I  do not  th ink – I  am not  too sure what the at t i tude is  

wi th regards to Ms Seleka’s quest ions.   However then given 

cl ient ’s constraints and logist ics I  –  we cannot commit  at  th is 

point  what we could do but  we would endeavour i f  the Chai r  

insists that  we pursue wi th oral  evidence then that  we just  do 

a simi lar formula even i f  i t  would open the evenings via  

video l ink so that  i t  does not  matter  where she is that  she is 

st i l l  able to then [00:10:01]  of  having to  plan a whole 

logist ics.    

I  – we are Gauteng based.  I t  would be easier for us.   10 

So i f  we can leave i t  to the Chair  [00:10:10]  arrange maybe 

dates.   I  cannot speak for them but  I  th ink maybe around i f  

you say Chai r  i t  should happen soon the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   She would st i l l  be al lowed to then do 

that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no in terms of  Ms Myeni  giv ing 

evidence via video l ink that  can st i l l  happen.  That  can be 

arranged.  That  is  point  1.  

2.   As long as the pr inciple is accepted to  say we might  have 20 

to use an evening session then  

1.  I  can leave Ms Hofmeyr and yourselves and maybe Mr 

Seleka to talk about  a date which I  can approve.   I f  no 

agreement is reached then I  wi l l  f ix a date and give 

reasonable t ime.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Perhaps that  wi l l  be the – that  would be 

the arrangement – but  preferably we would seek to – I  would 

seek that  we al l  agree on a date that  is c lose.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  could I  – could I  just  make the 

fol lowing submissions?  My learned f r iend referenced the 

fact  that  three days had been set  aside which we absolute ly 

accept .    

But  what – we should not  lose sight  of  the fact  that  

we started appreciably later than we had hoped to on the 10 

f i rst  day because we were told the day before and le t  me be 

clear.   I  fu l ly understand why we were told the day before 

that  Ms Myeni  had recent ly had an exposure to Covid.    

She needed to take precaut ions and because of  that  

we – f rom Tuesday late af ternoon had to start  making 

arrangements for  how to faci l i tate the video l ink evidence 

that  would happen the fol lowing day.   So what I  am just  

t ry ing to get  c lear  is there was a delayed start .    

We real ly had est imated being able to do i t  in three 

days but  unfortunately had had to take those steps to  20 

faci l i tate the Zoom evidence given her recent  exposure.   I  

understand she could not  have not i f ied us ear l ier than that .   

What I  am part icu lar ly worr ied about as I  th ink about  i t  now 

is these 55 f i les that  have to get  to Ms Myeni  wherever she 

is going to be.    



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 217 of 265 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes.   Oh okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And I  understood her  ear l ier  to  say that 

she is going to be f ly ing somewhere.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   E i ther tonight  or tomorrow.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So that  might  mean she is in  a di fferent  

locat ion when we reconvene. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And off  the back of  al l  of  that   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   What I  would l ike to suggest  is whether 

there is  any way that  at  least  th is evidence could complete 

i tsel f  today.   I  wi l l  explain why?  I f  a l l  that  is lef t  over is the 

Eskom evidence I  know that  there is  one f i le for Eskom.   

So that  would be a much easier logist ical  th ing to 

manage with Ms Myeni  wherever she is located and to do i t  

potent ia l ly by Zoom.  But  there real ly wi l l  be a logist ical  

d i ff icul ty.    

I f  we cannot go on today I  do understand i f  we cannot 20 

but  then we need to th ink very creat ively on how we are 

going to get  55 f i les to wherever Ms Myeni  is going to be 

af ter she takes her f l ight .   I  th ink i t  was ei ther later today or  

tomorrow.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the quest ion that  would ar ise is 
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whether given the fact  that  you think you are something l ike 

thi r ty minutes or  forty f ive minutes away f rom f in ishing 

whether she would st i l l  need al l  those many f i les or  whether  

there would only be a few – two or three that  she might  need 

which would obviously be bet ter than 55.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is t rue.   Though there could be – 

there could be a cul l ing def in i te ly Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes,  Yes.   Okay.   Okay.   So I  mean 

certainly i f  one is  ta lk ing about  55 or forty  something f i les 

logist ical ly that  could be a nightmare in terms – and i f  she 10 

has got  to test i fy  v ia video l ink f rom – too far f rom – out  

away f rom Gauteng.   But  i f  i t  is a  few f i les as you say that  

might  be f ine.   Okay let  us – shal l  we say  

1.  You wi l l  ta lk – the lawyers wi l l  ta lk on both s ides and 

can then be approached by yoursel f  to approve a date.   

And then as I  say i f  there is  no agreement we wi l l  – I  

wi l l  just  f ix a date.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  give reasonable t ime.  Before we 

f inal ise – oh you want to say something Mr Buthelezi .  20 

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Yes Chai r  we were going to ask that  we 

adjourn for  maybe just  f ive minutes and we discuss amongst  

ourselves the extent  to which  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja 

ADV BUTHELEZI:   We can accommodate today because f i rst  
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pr ize would be … 

CHAIRPERSON:   To f in ish.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   To f in ish.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   So in other  words that  [00:15:14]  just  can 

remain today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   I t  would be ideal .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   And I  th ink I  a lso am conscious of  c l ient  10 

not  to have this pending.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   I t  is pending [00:15:28] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   I t  is not  depending even af ter so let  the 

[00:15:31]  br ing to an end Chai r.   I t  would be real ly  

appreciated.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   So we are going to t ry  to  accommodate 

but  wi th reluctance I  am not  saying there is a reluctance to 20 

accommodate us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   I  am saying Ms Hofmeyr… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You want to explore? 

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Must  also t ry hersel f  to  say okay f ine let  
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us – let  us discuss i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No that  is f ine we can adjourn.   I  th ink 

as long as you appreciate I  do not  know Ms Hofmeyr might  

be – might  be up to date about th is.   As long as you 

appreciate that  there is the Eskom part  which might  have to 

come later or might  cont inue depending.   I  do not  know i f  Mr 

Seleka is around or whatever but  let  me adjourn for f ive 

minutes.   Ms Myeni  you understand what is being discussed 

here? 

MS MYENI:   I  do Chai r.   Thank you so much.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   From you side you do not  have any 

part icular ser ious di ff icul ty wi th whatever arrangement? 

MS MYENI:   Chairperson wi th respect  to the commission I  

made an undertaking and I  st i l l  do whatever  that  is  

reasonable to al l  of  us but  the f i rst  pr ize is to f in ish Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Today i f  possible.  

MS MYENI:   Because what I  do not  want is to f ind mysel f  

Chair  wi th the exposure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   And now the pressure that  I  am undergoing here 20 

then I  end up star t ing to have my low immune system.  So I  

am t rying by al l  means in between here these breaks have 

been assistance because I  am taking vi tamins and stuff  l ike 

that .   So I  am just  te l l ing Chai r  I  am f lexible but  I  am also 

wi thin a certain reasonable t ime I  would prefer to f in ish.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   To f in ish okay no that  is al r ight .   Let  us 

take an adjournment.   I t  is about  seventeen minutes past  so 

maybe we return at  twenty f ive past .   We adjourn.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Buthelezi .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Thank you,  Chai r.   We said let  us 

proceed Chai r  and Mr Seleka must  also come and proceed 10 

because he is one person with one party.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    So I  do not  foresee why i t  would be 

di ff icul t  for him to latch onto that .   We are running for how 

long and however i t  needs to run,  let  Ms Hofmeyr f in ish her 

part  and then Mr Seleka arr ives and then we f in ish tonight  

and then we al l  go ahead.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  – as I  said,  I  do not  know what 

Mr Seleka’s posi t ion is.   He,  as I  understand i t ,  certa inly was 

going to  be avai lable i f  Ms Hofmeyr had f in ished at  a  certain  20 

t ime but  whether  he was going to be avai lable af ter,  is  

something that  I  do not  know anything about.   So i t  just  

depends on that .   That  is something I  do not  know anything 

about.    

ADV HOFMEYR ADDRESSES THE CHAIR :    Chai r,  le t  me be 
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c lear.   I  indicated to Mr Seleka that  we were going to  run for 

the day and so that  i t  would not  be the case that  we would 

get  to th is evidence today.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And so,  he would not  be prepare in any 

way to do the evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i t  would not ,  in my view, in any way 

be feasible to drag him through those ci rcumstances.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    So we – whatever happens,  that  evidence 

– i f  we are able to complete this evidence today,  i t  wi l l  have 

to be done at  another point .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Which regular ly happens when we run out  

of  t ime on the al located days.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I f  that  is an issue for my learned f r iends,  

then we must move everything to that  other day but  I  would 

be keen again to t ry and f in ish my sect ion i f  we can.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay Mr Buthelezi .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Sorry,  Chai r.   We do not  have an answer 

on the prospects of  receiving wri t ten quest ions f rom 

Mr Seleka.    

CHAIRPERSON :    By Mr Seleka? 
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ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  one,  he is not  here.   Two,  I  doubt  

that  in regard to the Eskom part ,  I  doubt  that  I  would prefer 

that  i t  be deal t  wi th by way of  wri t ten quest ions but ,  for  

example,  wi th regard to the Manaka aff idavi t ,  I  do not  have a 

problem that  i t  be deal t  wi th. . .   Each issue depends on i ts  

own meri ts.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Then i f  we before we proceed then.   Can 

we get  an undertaking f rom Ms Hofmeyr,  how much longer 

are we here?   10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    As I  said previously,  certain ly no longer 

than an hour and maybe even shorter than that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    That  is f ine.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Then let  us proceed then on 

that  basis.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Ms Myeni ,  where we had 

stopped before we had this exchange, which unfortunately,  I  20 

am sorry i t  has taken longer and I  know that  i t  is go ing late 

into the evening -  was at  your emai l  that  we have looked at  

where you were asked whether the approval  of  the 

cancel lat ion fee requires board approval ,  and you say:   I t  is  

so.   I  approved i t .  
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 What I  would l ike to ask you fol lowing f rom that  

Ms Myeni  is,  what mot ivated you to approve R 15 mi l l ion to  

be paid to BNP Capital  as a cancel lat ion fees in 

ci rcumstances where they asked for  the fee on the very 

same day they were appointed on the basis that  they had 

undertaken work al ready?   

 How could that  be a just i f iable ground for commit t ing to  

a,  just  short  of  R 15 mi l l ion cancel lat ion fee? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  Ms Nhants i ’s evidence before 

this Commission was that  she did wri te that  recommendat ion 

that  you highl ighted a moment ago in a quest ion you asked 

me, to the board to approve the cancel lat ion fee.    

 But  her test imony before this Commission was that  she 

had reservat ions about i t  and she,  nonetheless,  wrote the 

recommendat ion because she feared what would happen i f  

she did not  do that .    

 Because she said,  you were put t ing pressure on her to  

get  th is deal  done.   Just  for the record before I  have your 20 

answer on this Ms Myeni .    

 Chai r,  that  can be found in the t ranscr ipt  of  Ms Nhantsi ’s  

evidence.   I t  is on the 19t h of  June 2019, page 51,  l ines 1 to  

19.    

 Ms Myeni ,  do you dispute that  you were placing pressure 



06 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 300 
 

Page 225 of 265 
 

on Ms Nhantsi  to get  th is matter approved? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    She also indicated that  one of  the points 

that  you made when you were encouraging her,  or  on her 

vers ion pressuris ing her,  to  get  th is deal  done,  was that  

costs have been incurred in Par is(?).   How did you know 

that? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f?   10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because Mr Van der Merwe’s evidence 

before this Commission is that  no costs had been incurred 

and that  the let ters prepared by the BNP Capital  mot ivat ing 

for the cancel lat ion fee on the basis that  those costs had 

been incurred,  was false.    

 So i t  is just  di ff icul t  for me to understand how you had 

come to have knowledge of  those al leged fees being 

incurred.   Can you assist  us wi th that? 

MS MYENI :    Chai r,  i t  is very d i ff icul t  to si t  before this 

Commission and get  asked about n i t ty-gr i t ty ’s of  operat ional  20 

matters.   May I  then,  wi th respect  Chai r  not  respond to th is  

quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    This is not  so a ni t ty-gr i t ty operat ional  

matter because you yoursel f ,  Ms Myeni ,  approved that  SAA 

would be BNP Capital  R 49.9 mi l l ion i f  SAA pul led out  of  the 
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t ransact ion.   So the reason for my quest ions is because you 

yoursel f  gave that  approval .   And I  am probing why you 

would give your approval  in a s i tuat ion . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    May . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . .when a cancel lat ion fee was sought on 

grounds that  cannot be possible be just i f ied for work that  

was done before the appointment was made.  How could that  

be a val id basis for a cancel lat ion fee? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  what emerged in the evidence 

was that  BNP Capi tal  have had i ts FSP l icence suspended at  

a point  in t ime before i t  was approved as the source of  these 

funds.   Were you aware of  that? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  the concern that  ar ises f rom that  

fact  is that  someone at  BNP was aware that  th is l icense had 

been suspended,  was aware that  the l icense was a 

prerequis i te for their  val id appointment,  and they wel l  had 20 

been concerned that  should SAA f ind out  about  the 

suspension of  the l icense,  they might  pul l  the whole 

t ransact ion.    

 And so,  instead of  scor ing a success fee which was their  

f i rst  terms of  remunerat ion in  th is t ransact ion,  they then 
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mot ivated for  a cancel lat ion fee.   Do you have any comment 

on that  being what might  have been going on in the 

background? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    There has also been evidence before this  

Commission that  your son,  Mr Thalente Myeni  is a business 

associate of  Mr Mugabi .   And I  know I  have already deal t  

wi th you about that  ear l ier but  there was a further indicat ion 

that  they had been seen at  SAA together on occasion.   Can 10 

you conf i rm whether that  is so? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  not  respond [distort ion 

present  – speaker unclear]    

CHAIRPERSON :    We lost  connect ion wi th Ms Myeni .   Can 

you hear me, Ms Myeni? 

MS MYENI :    I  can.   I  can Chai r.   Thanks.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay I  th ink your answer was not  

complete.   Do you want to repeat  i t  or your response? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    May I  not  respond to the quest ion 

Chairperson in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  were you going to benef i t  in 

any way i f  BNP Capi tal  had secured the R 49.9 mi l l ion 

cancel lat ion fee? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to the quest ion Chai rperson 
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so that  I  avoid incr iminat ing mysel f?    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  d id you lodge a cr iminal  

complaint  against  Ms Yakhe Kwinana ar is ing f rom the 

AAR/JM Aviat ion contract  on the Components Tender? 

MS MYENI :    Can you please repeat the quest ion Ma’am 

because that  would be an inst ruct ion by who?  And what is 

the mot ivat ion that  you are talk ing about? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  Sorry.   So I  th ink you may not  have 

heard me.  I  have just  asked,  d id you lodge a cr iminal  

complaint  against  Ms Kwinana ar is ing f rom the AAR/JM 10 

Aviat ion Contract  for Components? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  i t  is important  to get  a fu l l  p icture 

to say i f  I  lodged a complaint ,  as who?  Because there is no 

decision when you are a board that  you just  decide a lone on 

your own.   

 I f ,  for instance,  you are a board of  ten people.   At  least  

the major i ty of  the board must  agree to doing something.   

Now I  am saying,  Dudu Myeni  goes and open a case against  

Yakhe Kwinana or  the board takes a decision,  a resolut ion to 

go and open a case against  Kwinana per. . .    20 

 Sorry,  per inst ruct ion by the minister,  by instruct ion by 

the invest igators,  per instruct ion by the CEO.  That  is why I  

would l ike a . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no.  

MS MYENI :    . . . to hear.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no.   Ms Myeni ,  the quest ion is 

s imple.   Did you lay a cr iminal  complaint  against  

Ms Yakhe Kwinana in regard to the AAR/JM Aviat ion. . .  is i t  B 

Tender or Component cont ract? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now, i f  you want to say:   I  d id but  I  d id not  

– I  was not  act ing personal ly.   I  was act ing on the strength of  

a resolut ion of  the board.   That  is something you can clar i fy.   

But  i f  you say you did not ,  then you say you did not .  

MS MYENI :   Chai r,  may I  not  respond then Chai rperson so 10 

that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Chai r,  th is is an occasion where i t  is not  

c lear to me that  th is pr iv i lege can be invoked.  I  st ruggle to 

know what possible cr ime could ar ise f rom a quest ion that  is  

asked:   Did you lodge a cr iminal  complaint?   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  I  just  note that  and I  am happy to  

proceed, depending on your di rect ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  indicated,  I  th ink on Wednesday,  

that  we wi l l  proceed and Ms Myeni  would invoke her pr iv i lege 20 

where she considers that  is appl icable but  at  some stage,  

yesterday or today,  I  might  have a look at  – and see where 

there are not  certain quest ions where I  would rule di fferent ly.    

 So I  have not  done that  except  maybe in one or two – in  

regard to one or two quest ions over  the past  three days.   As 
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we speak now, I  am inc l ined to take the view that  when we 

are done, that  might  be important  that  the legal  team could 

go through the t ranscr ipt  and see where there are quest ions 

that  i t  wishes to present  submissions on whether  she should 

be compel led.    

 I  would probably also would want to go through and see 

that .   I t  maybe that  there might  be none.  I t  may be that  

there might  be some.  So I  – i f  you want to leave i t  and move 

on and just  place your posi t ion on record,  I  do not  have a 

problem.  But  Mr Buthelezi  wants to say someth ing.  10 

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Chai r.   Just  one point .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja? 

ADV BUTHELEZI :    There may not  be possible any cr iminal  

l iabi l i ty that  may ar ise f rom the quest ion on the surface but  

even the prospect  of  per jury yoursel f ,  renders you 

percept ib le to cr iminal  prosecut ion.    

 So I  th ink in part ,  i t  a lso goes to that  point  to say:   I  do 

not  want to incr iminate mysel f  in  as far as I  may per jury 

mysel f .    

 So this is one of  those quest ions where the wi tness,  in  20 

our view, is ent i t led to avoid the quest ion because they do 

not  want to run the r isk of  per jury themselves.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr,  you might  want to say 

something.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    You might  want  to simply say:   No,  you 

have recorded your posi t ion.   You wi l l  take i t  f rom there.   Or 

what would you l ike? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  the threat  of  commit t ing per jury 

could never be a basis for invoking the pr iv i lege against  sel f -

incr iminat ion.   I f  that  was so,  every person . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . .whoever comes before this Commission 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . .would be able to invoke that  in  order – 

in a sense,  to invoke a r ight  to s i lence which they do not  

have.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So you cannot say:   I  am.. .   I  wi l l  l ie i f  I  

g ive my answer.   So I  invoke my r ight  against  –  my pr iv i lege 

against  sel f - incr iminat ion not  to give a l ie.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  we can make further submissions in  

due course but  that  could never  be a basis for  the 20 

impl icat ion of  the pr iv i lege.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay but  you have noted.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  wi l l  leave i t .   I  have noted that  that  is. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And Chai r,  the record wi l l  show.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  have been very careful  to only ra ise the 

issue where i t  just  does not  appear on i ts face to be quest ion 

that  could ever lead to a ser ies of  quest ions to  expose her  to  

a cr iminal  charge.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And I  wi l l  just  cont inue to note them when 

they ar ise.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    My next  quest ion Ms Myeni  is,  d id you 10 

provide an aff idavi t  to the pol ice regarding the AAR/JM 

Aviat ion Contract  for Components? 

CHAIRPERSON :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson to avoid 

incr iminat ing mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You certainly. . .   Ms Kwinana gave 

evidence on Monday or Tuesday that  around the t ime that  

the contract  was being f inal ised on the AAR/JM Aviat ion 

matter,  you had asked her to give an account because there 

was commentary in  the media,  I  th ink,  f lowing f rom Ai r  

France’s l i t igat ion on the case. 20 

 I  th ink she said that  the unions may have raised a 

concern.   Do you conf i rm that  you asked for an account of  

the al legat ions that  there was something untoward in the 

award of  that  cont ract? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson in  case I  
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incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    There was also evidence given my 

Ms Mamela who appeared before th is Commission,  that  your 

speci f ic concerns about the award of  th is  contract  in  

quest ionable ci rcumstances,  have been raised at  SAAT 

Board meet ings af ter the award was made.  Can you conf i rm 

whether you had those concerns and i f  so,  what they were? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  I  would then l ike to turn to the 10 

30% set-aside pol icy that  was embarked upon at  SAA.  That  

pol icy was l inked to the President ’s State of  the Nat ion 

Address in 2015,  was i t  not? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Again Chai r,  for the record.   I t  is not  at  a l l  

c lear to me how – whether the 30% set-aside pol icy was 

l inked to the former President ’s State of  the Nat ion Address 

in 2015 could expose Ms Myeni  to a cr iminal  charge.   But  I  

wi l l  move on for now.   20 

 Ms Myeni ,  you received communicat ions,  both f rom 

Nat ional  Treasury and f rom the DTI that  the 30% set-aside 

pol icy was unlawful ,  d id you not? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   
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ADV HOFMEYR :    And having received those 

communicat ions f rom Nat ional  Treasury and the BBBEE 

Commissioner,  why was i t  that ,  despi te  that  you,  and 

part icular ly Ms Kwinana, together wi th your other board 

members,  pushed for the imposi t ion of  th is 30% set-aside 

pol icy? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not  

incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  the Commission has received 

evidence that  on that  on Fr iday the 2n d of  October 2015, you 10 

and Ms Kwinana held a lengthy meet ing wi th Dr Dahwa who 

was then the Head of  Procurement at  SAA.  

 And his version is that  you placed pressure on him to 

prepare let ters of  award to Swissport  and Engen ar is ing f rom 

the 30% set -aside pol icy.    

 Ms Kwinana had denied before this  Commission that  that  

meet ing took place.   Do you conf i rm that  the meet ing took 

place or do you,  l ike her,  deny that  i t  took place? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson?  I  do not  want  

to incr iminate mysel f?   20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Again,  Chair  i t  is  not  c lear  to  me that  that  

quest ion could – answering that  quest ion could expose 

Ms Myeni  to a cr iminal  charge.    

 Dr Dahwa’s evidence is that  at  that  meet ing you sa id to  

him that  you were keep to take his job away,  that  the EFF 
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were going to be protest ing at  SAA the fol lowing Monday,  

and he would be at  r isk because they were going to  

protest ing against  those who are ant i - t ransformat ion and 

Zimbabweans.    

 Do you recal l  issu ing that  threat  to Dr Dahwa? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you dispute that  you threatened him in 

that  way? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  not  respond to the 10 

quest ion?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Dr Dahwa.. . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    I  do not  want to incr iminate mysel f .   And 

Chairperson,  Dr  Dahwa did not  report  to the chai rman of  the 

board.   I  do not  want to incr iminate mysel f .   May I  p lease not  

respond to the quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Dr Dahwa’s ev idence was that  he was 

extremely dist ressed by that  meet ing on the 

2n d of  October 2015.  Were you aware that  he was very 

dist ressed by i t  over the course of  the day? 20 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Again,  I  – for the record Chai r,  i t  is not  

c lear to me that  that  is a quest ion that  would – the answer to 

i t  would expose Ms Myeni  to a cr iminal  charge.   A f ter that  
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meet ing,  you received a let ter f rom Ms Kwinana in which she 

cal led on you to take strong discipl inary act ion against  

Dr Dahwa for what she al leged was his insubordinat ion,  his 

efforts to  sabotage SAA.  Did you share those views of  

Ms Kwinana? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond to th is  quest ions 

Chairperson?  I  do not  want to incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Af ter that  let ter was sent  to you Ms Myeni  

on the 9 t h of  October 2015,  Dr Dahwa was served with a 

charge sheet  and he then was subjected to a disc ipl inary 10 

process.   Did you support  the decision to discipl ine him? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson to the. . .   May I  

not  Chair  to the quest ion?  I  would not  want  to  incr iminate 

mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Again Chai r,  for the record.   I t  is not  c lear 

to me that  the answer to  that  quest ion could expose 

Ms Myeni  to a cr iminal  charge.   Dr Dahwa’s let ter of  

suspension was prepared by Ms Phumeza Nhants i ,  just  a few 

days af ter she had taken up the posi t ion as act ing CFO. 

 So she was in a posi t ion where she had no personal  20 

knowledge of  the grounds for discip l in ing Dr Dahwa.  Did you 

assist  in the compi lat ion of  that  let ter of  suspension at  a l l?  

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chairperson to the quest ion?  

I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Again Chai r,  i t  does not  – i t  is not  c lear  to  
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me that  that  could be a quest ion – the answer to which would 

expose Ms Myeni  to a cr iminal  charge.   Ms Myeni ,  the 

discipl inary proceedings against  Dr Dahwa commenced on 

the 16t h of  March.   And do you have any knowledge of  these 

proceedings? 

MS MYENI :    That  is an operat ional  matter,  Ma’am.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Is the answer no then? 

MS MYENI :    The answer is,  i t  is an operat ional  matter.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is not  an answer to my quest ion.   My 

quest ion is.   Did you know that  his  discip l inary proceedings 10 

began on the 16t h of  March 2016? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  in  view of  my answer not  

acceptable,  then may I  not  respond to the quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And Ms Myeni ,  just  to be clear.   I t  is not  

that  i t  is not  acceptable.   I t  is just  that  you – that  quest ion 

requi res a yes or  a no.   And so,  i t  would be helpfu l  i f  you 

could indicate.   I f  you do not  have knowledge, that  you do 

not .   Saying i t  is  an operat ional  matter,  does not  actual ly  

answer the quest ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   You see . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

MS MYENI :    May I  then not  respond Chairperson? 

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  Ms Myeni  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    Because al l  these quest ions. . .   Sorry,  Chai r.   

Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  am saying . . . [ intervenes]   
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MS MYENI :    I  am sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am saying,  the quest ion requi res you to 

say whether you know or you do not  know.  And that  i t  may 

be an operat ion matter,  might  mean that  you do not  know.   

But  there may be operat ional  matters that  you know.  So i t  is  

more about what you know or what you do not  know.  

MS MYENI :    Chai r,  may I  then. . .   I  appreciate that  you are – 

you have given me clar i ty.   Then can I  then invoke my 

pr iv i lege to say,  I  would not  l ike to respond to the quest ion in  

case I  incr iminate mysel f?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Again Chair  for the record.   That  is not  a 

quest ion that  certainly,  as I  consider i t ,  would expose – the 

answer to which expose Ms Myeni  to a cr iminal  charge.    

 There was qui te severe concerns wi thin the HR 

Department  of  South Af r ican Ai rways about  the manner in 

which that  discipl inary process was conducted.   And despi te  

the Head of  HR ra ising those concerns. . .    

 Wel l ,  the Head of  Employee Relat ions,  rais ing those 

concerns,  the process was cont inued with.   Did those 

concerns ever reached your level  Ms Myeni? 20 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  again Chair  is not  a quest ion,  the 

answer to  which,  in  our view, would expose Ms Myeni  to a 

cr iminal  charge.   Chairperson,  I  appear to have done a l i t t le  
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b i t  bet ter on my est imat ion of  t ime.  I  would l ike,  i f  I  may 

then,  to move to some of  the conclusory aspects that  I  would 

l ike to put  to Ms Myeni  for her comment? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  that  is f ine.   Matters rela t ing to  

the suspension and ul t imate ly departure of  Ms Mpshe did 

you cover those,  someth ing  tha t . . .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  have dea l t  w i th  Dr  Dahwa because  

there  were  ind ica t ions in  the  papers  tha t  tha t  m ight  have  

e levated to  Ms Myen i ’s  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  sor ry,  Cha i r,  you do remind about  an  

aspect  tha t  I  must  t raverse .   Thank  you very  much fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  Ms Mphse gave ev idence  

before  th is  Commiss ion  about  the  A i r  Chefs  cont rac t .   Wel l ,  

i t  was f i rs t  the  LSG Sky Chefs  cont rac t ,  the  award  to  i t  to  

p rov ide  lounge ca ter ing  serv ices  a t  var ious a i rpor ts  and 

then an a t tendance a t  par l iament  on  the  2  September  

2015.   Do you remember  a t tend ing  par l iament  on  tha t  day? 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  I  do  20 

not  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  le t  me jus t  record  now,  knowing  

the  quest ions tha t  I  am ant ic ipa t ing  ask ing ,  i t  i s  no t  c lear  

to  me tha t  the  answers  to  any o f  these quest ions  wou ld  

tend to  expose Ms Myen i  to  a  c r im ina l  charge,  so  I  am 
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go ing  to  say tha t  now jus t  to  cover  a l l  o f  them so I  do  no t  

have to  keep say ing  i t .   Ms Mpshe sa id  tha t  there  was an  

issue taken up when you presented befo re  the  por t fo l io  

commi t tee  on  tha t  day and the re  was c r i t i c i sm leve l led  a t  

South  A f r i can A i rways fo r  hav ing  awarded th is  con t rac t  to  

LSG Sky Chefs .   Do reca l l  tha t  c r i t i c i sm hav ing  been  

made?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  no t  

want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Her  ev idence was tha t  when the  meet ing  10 

ad journed and you were  ou ts ide  the  room wi th  her  you 

bera ted  her  in  f ron t  o f  co l leagues  and sa id  how cou ld  we  

g ive  th is  cont rac t  to  a  fo re ign  company.   Do you remember  

say ing  tha t  to  her?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  I  know fo r  a  

fac t  tha t  I  wou ld  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  do  you d ispute  Ms Mpshe ’s  

vers ion  tha t  tha t  i s  what  you d id  a f te r  the  mee t ing  a t  

par l iament?  

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  then fo l lowed,  Ms Myen i  was 

…[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    So  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  then fo l lowed,  Ms Myen i ,  was a 

number  o f  in te rac t ions be tween the  board  and Ms  Mpshe  
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as  she endeavoured to  exp la in  to  the  board  why the  

dec is ion  had been taken to  go  ou t  on  tender  on  tha t  mat te r,  

what  had in fo rmed tha t  dec is ion ,  the  fac t  tha t  LSG Sky  

Chefs  was ac tua l l y  a  loca l  company,  no t  a  fo re ign  en t i t y.   

She exp la ined tha t  the  concerns tha t  Ms Kwinana had  

ra ised around the  loss  o f  jobs  had been ca te red fo r  

because the  emp loyees wou ld  be  moved over.   She a l so  

addressed how neg l ig ib le  a  por t ion  o f  the  revenue  o f  A i r  

Chefs  th is  cont rac t  ac tua l l y  occup ied .   She went  and got  

adv ice  f rom the  lega l  depar tment  about  the  consequences  10 

o f  SAA o f  cance l l ing  tha t  cont rac t  and desp i te  tha t ,  the 

board  o f  SAA on the  28  September  2015 took a  dec i s ion  to  

cance l  the  award  to  LSG Sky Che fs  and to  award  i t  to  A i r  

Chefs .   Aga ins t  the  backdrop o f  what  the  Act ing  CEO was 

say ing  to  you as  the  board  a t  tha t  t ime,  why d id  you make  

tha t  dec i s ion ,  Ms Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    What ,  Ma ’am,  to  cance l  LSG tender?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  

to  the  quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You took tha t  dec is ion  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    Bu t  a lso ,  Cha i rperson,  so r ry.   But ,  

Cha i rperson,  i t  can  a l so  he lp  you ,  Cha i r,  to  say  –  or  he lp  

th is  Commiss ion  to  say where  I  am s i t t ing  i t  wou ld  no t  

make sense to  take  a  compet i to r  o f  A i r  Chefs  and g ive  a l l  
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the  work  o f  South  A f r i can A i rways  to  another  company.   In  

as  fa r  as  I  am concerned,  Cha i r,  in  any work  env i ronment ,  

Cha i rperson,  there  are  dec is ions you take  tha t  a re  

mot iva ted  and in fo rmed by  the  CEO or  the  CFO,  tha t  they 

mot iva te  fo r  you to  cons ider  app ly ing  your  m ind,  exerc i se  

du ty,  care  and sk i l l  and ensure  tha t  the  dec is ion  is  a  

p roper  dec is ion  tha t  you wou ld  s tand by.   In  th is  case,  

Cha i r,  A i r  Chefs  was,  i f  i t  s t i l l  ex is ts ,  a  subs id ia ry  o f  South  

A f r i can A i rways.   So South  A f r i can A i rways Cater ing  

Serv i ces  ought  to  have been prov ided by  A i r  Che fs .   So,  10 

Cha i rperson,  I  can sa fe ly  s top  r igh t  there .   I  have p rov ided 

what  I  can but  I  am de l ibera te l y  l im i t ing  i t  to  as  fa r  as  I  

have spoken.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The board ’s  dec is ion  to  cance l  the  

award  to  LSG Sky Chefs  was aga ins t  the  adv ice  o f  i t s  own 

in te rna l  lega l  depar tment .   Why d id  you take  a  dec is ion  

aga ins t  the  adv i ce  o f  you r  own lega l  depar tment?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r,  I  sa id  the  mot i va t ion ,  when i t  comes to  

the  board ,  i t  i s  no t  a  gun put  on  the  face  o f  the  board  or  on  

the  head o f  any dec is ion-maker  w i th in  the  board .   When a  20 

mot iva t ion  come,  i t  i s  no t  a  do  or  d ie .   You have  got  to  

read what  i s  be fore  you,  unders tand the  f inanc ia l  

imp l ica t ions,  unders tand the  r i sk ,  unders tand a l so  the  –  

maybe capab i l i t ies  o f  those tha t  you pre fe r  than what  you  

a l ready have.   In  th is  case A i r  Chefs  LSG prov ided  s im i la r  
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serv i ces .   Now i f  we are  to  c lose  A i r  Chefs  and take  LSG, 

tha t  p rocess ought  to  have been  a  proper ly  de l ibera ted  

upon process bu t  whoever  p rov ides any mot iva t ion  to  the 

board ,  i t  does not  mean tha t  you w i l l  no t  have d i f fe ren t  

v iews as  the  board .   One can dec ide  to  say yes,  one can  

dec ide  to  say no .   So un less  you are  ask ing  me as  Dudu,  

then I  can te l l  you  what  my v iew was then or  what  my v iew 

is  today.   But ,  Cha i rperson,  I  am say ing  I  can on ly  go  as  

fa r  as  th is ,  i t  does not  mean tha t  when you are  g iven a  

lega l  adv i ce  you must  take  every  adv i ce  tha t  comes.    10 

I t  does not  mean  tha t  the  board  memos,  a l l  board  

memoranda tha t  were  prov ided to  the  board  meant  tha t  a l l  

o f  us  w i l l  say  yes.   I t  does not  opera te  l i ke  tha t  a t  tha t  

dec is ion-mak ing  l eve l .   You have got  to  app ly  your  m ind,  

you have got  to  ask  quest ions as  we l l .   I t  does not  mean  

a lso  tha t  when  you rece ived  the  memorandum f rom 

whoever  then i t  means tha t  memorandum is  l i ke  you must  

say  yes,  thumbs up.   You we igh t  many th ings.    

My v iews might  no t  even touch on the  –  say,  fo r  

ins tance,  another  person wou ld  look a t  a  r i sk  tha t  I  wou ld  20 

not  have thought  about .   Another  person in  the  board  m ight  

ra ise  another  quest ion  tha t  you d id  no t  th ink  about  o r  you,  

yourse l f ,  you wou ld  ask  a  quest ion  to  say have we rea l l y  

thought  about  th is  o r  shou ld  we  defer  th is  dec is ion  and  

then come back about  i t  and say maybe le t  us  exp lo re  th is .    
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So  i t  does not  mean,  Ms Hofmeyr,  tha t  because i t  

came f rom a  lega l  depar tment  o f  SAA then i t  meant  tha t  we 

must  jus t  rubber  s tamp and not  app ly  our  m inds.   I  am jus t  

say ing  tha t ,  Cha i r,  I  can  go as  fa r  as  tha t  because i t  looks  

l i ke  these quest ions,  they keep  fo l low ing each  o ther,  

fo l low ing each o the r.   I  wou ld  no t ,  in  my pe rsona l  capac i ty,  

rep lace A i r  Chefs  w i thout  fo l low ing a  proper  p rocess o f  

k i l l i ng ,  k i l l i ng  a  subs id ia ry,  and  opt  fo r  LSG ins tead o f  

cont inu ing  w i th  your  own baby.   In  o ther  words,  we ought  to  

have k i l led  a  ch i ld  tha t  was es tab l i shed by  SAA as a  10 

subs id ia ry.     

In  o ther  words,  low cost  a i r l ines  l i ke  Mango,  we 

wou ld  have l i ke  –  i t  i s  a  compara t i ve  to  say,  in  o the r  words,  

take  our  passengers  to  a  compet ing  a i r l ine ,  leave Mango.   

I t  was not  go ing  to  be  a  good dec is ion .  

Th is  i s  my v iew,  Cha i rperson,  and I  can on ly  

e labora te  fu r ther  a t  another  fo rum,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  a re  you a  lawyer?  

MS MYENI :    In  the  board  you have a  d i f fe ren t  t ype o f  

sk i l l s .   I  am not  a  lawyer  bu t  a  lawyer  m ight  no t  be  a  20 

f inance person.   A lawyer  can be a  lega l  exper t  bu t  a  

char te red accountant  can look  a t  the  f inanc ia l  r i sk .   

Another  pe rson wou ld  look a t  the  HR component  o f  the  r i sk  

o f  whatever  dec i s ion .   Then you l i s ten  to  a l l  o the r  inputs  

f rom d i f fe ren t  peop le .   I  do  no t  have to  be  a  lawyer  to  be  
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ab le  to  take  dec is ions tha t  a re  good fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r  

opera t ion  tha t  you are  runn ing .   So i f  a l l  o f  us  wou ld  be  

lawyers  in  o rde r  to  take  good dec is ions then we w i l l  no t  

complement  each  o ther.   You need  very  –  a  spread o f  sk i l l s  

to  be  ab le  to  complement  each o ther.   Def in i te ly  you have  

seen my CV,  Ma ’am,  there fore  I  do  no t  th ink  I  need to  

respond to  your  quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you seek the  gu idance o f  any o ther  

lawyers  to  check  whethe r  they d i sagreed w i th  the  adv ice  

tha t  your  own lega l  depar tment  was g iv ing  you about  the  10 

consequences o f  cance l l ing  the  LSG Sky Chefs  award?  

MS MYENI :    What  was your  quest ion ,  Ma ’am? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you seek the  v iews any o ther  

lawyers  about  whethe r  the  adv ice  o f  your  own lega l  

depar tment  concern ing  the  consequences o f  cance l l ing  tha t  

award  were  cor rec t  o r  no t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  w i th  respect ,  any submiss ion  to  

the  board ,  i s  no t  fo r  the  board  to  rubber  s tamp.   Peop le  ge t  

b r ibed to  push cer ta in  dec is ions  to  the  board .   Other  

peop le  do  not  ge t  b r ibed but  they  th ink  tha t  th is  bus iness 20 

case,  as  execut ives ,  i s  a  good bus iness case but  you need 

a lso  a  fa i r  spread o f  d i f fe ren t  m inds around an issue tha t  

you are  ta l k ing  about .    

You see,  Cha i rperson,  as  the  board ,  we were  

repor t ing  to  the  shareho lder  m in i s t ry  and as  the  board  we  
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had an overs igh t  s t ruc ture  in  par l i ament  where  we repor ted  

about  the  per fo rmance o f  the  a i r l ine .   So i f  we were  to  k i l l  

A i r  Chefs ,  we needed f i rs t  to  ge t  the  approva l  to  say then 

we are  k i l l i ng  A i r  Chefs ,  we are  tak ing  A i r  Chefs ’ func t ions 

to  somewhere  e l se .    

I  am mak ing  a  very  broad s ta tement  bu t  a  na r row 

s ta tement  I  can p rov ide  the  Cha i rperson i s  tha t  i t  does not  

mean tha t  when  a  submiss ion  i s  made to  the  board  ten  

peop le  w i l l  have the  same answer .   One person migh t  say  I  

p re fe r  no t  to  approve th is  and then somet imes they even 10 

prov ide  some mot iva t ion  in  te rms o f  the  reasons why they  

do  not  approve or  e igh t  peop le  can  say we a re  aga ins t  th is .     

Say,  fo r  ins tance,  you are  no t  a t  the  board  meet ing ,  

you are  on  your  own wherever  you s tay  bu t  you are  read ing  

someth ing  v ia  the  emai l ,  you have no one to  ask  any  

quest ions bu t  somet imes you fo l low up by  ask ing  quest ions 

to  check i f  th is  dec i s ion  you are  go ing  to  take  is  the  r igh t  

dec is ion .  

And the  o the r  th ing  is ,  I  d id  no t  have ve to  power.   

So whether  I  wanted to  say,  as  Dudu a lone,  le t  th is  20 

cont inue,  i t  wou ld  never  happen.   So I  am jus t  say ing ,  

Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  want  a l so  to  waste  much o f  ou r  t ime.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  d id  you …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI:    I t  is  impor tan t  to  say tha t  I  am not  –  one,  I  

am not  a  lawyer.   Two,  i t  does not  mean tha t  any  
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submiss ion  tha t  a  person makes in  the  board  tha t  means i t  

i s  a  done dea l .   No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  d id  you …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Apo log ies .   Ms  Myen i ,  d id  you be l ieve  

tha t  the  lega l  depar tment  o f  SAA had been br ibed to  g ive  

the  adv ice  tha t  they gave you on the  consequences o f  

cance l l ing  the  LSG Sky Chefs  award?  

MS MYENI :    When I  sa id  i t  does not  mean tha t  eve ry  

submiss ion  tha t  i s  p resented to  the  board  means everyone 10 

must  then rubber  s tamp and approve.   I  do  no t  ins inuate  

tha t  somebody was b r ibed or  no t .    

I  am say ing  the  expecta t ion  o f  th is  Commiss ion  

wou ld  be  whethe r  we were  ab le  to  app ly  our  m inds when 

tak ing  dec is ion  because then,  Cha i r,  you do not  need a  

board .   I f  then tha t  lega l  depar tment  wou ld  take  dec is ions,  

why are  they br ing ing  i t  to  the  board?  Then i t  means the  

board  was jus t  a  co l lec t i ve  o f  l i ke  maybe peop le  who do 

not  th ink  proper l y  and who are  no t  qua l i f ied  to  be  ab le  to  

use proper  sk i l l s  to  assess r i sk  i nvo lved,  f inanc ia l  s ide  o f  20 

the  organ isa t ion ,  capab i l i t y  o f  whoever  tha t  i s  coming to 

render  any se rv i ce .    

But  a lso ,  the  labour  i ssue tha t  now you are  –  you  

have equ ipped A i r  Chefs ,  now you are  c los ing  A i r  Chefs  

w i th  a l l  the  new equ ipment  tha t  ex is ted  A i r  Chefs ,  you are  
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tak ing  the  bus iness away somewhere  e lse .   I  a lso ,  

Cha i rperson,  do  no t  want  to  ta lk  too  much about  one 

serv i ce  prov ider  and take  so  much t ime about  one  serv i ce  

prov ider  because ,  Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  then mean the  who le  

count ry  los t  by  no t  g iv ing  LSG the  cont rac t .    

So,  I  am say ing ,  Cha i r,  p lease a l low me to  s top  

r igh t  there  and not  cont inue fu r ther  about  th is  quest ion  o f  

LSG.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  the  prob lem,  and in  fa i rness I  10 

must  pu t  i t  to  you,  w i th  what  you have sa id  now about  

rubber  s tamping and the  ro le  o f  the  board  to  in te r rogate  

what  i s  p laced be fore  them,  i s  tha t  th is  dec is ion  was never  

w i th in  the  de legated autho r i t y  o f  the  board ,  i t  was a  

dec is ion  tha t  had  been taken by  the  Act ing  CEO because i t  

fe l l  w i th in  u l t imate ly  her  dec is ion-mak ing  de legated ,  i t  was  

done o f f  the  back o f  a  fu l l y  lawfu l  and procedura l l y  fa i r  

p rocu rement  p rocess.    

So there  was no mot iva t ion  to  the  board ,  there  was  

no dec i s ion  tha t  the  board  was requ i red  to  take ,  the  lawfu l  20 

dec is ion  had been taken by  the  Act ing  CEO.   A le t te r  o f  

award  was sent  to  LSG Sky Chefs  and desp i te  tha t ,  a f te r  

rece iv ing  some tough quest ions  in  par l iament ,  on  the 

second September  2015,  the  board  o f  i t s  own account  

dec ided to  over ru le  tha t  dec i s ion .    
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So  I  pu t  i t   you ,  Ms Myen i ,  you cannot  jus t i f y  tha t  

dec is ion  on  the  bas is  tha t  i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  boards to  

cons ider  ca re fu l l y  what  come before  them,  you  were  

over tu rn ing  the  lawfu l  dec is ion  o f  your  Act i ng  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i ce r.   Do you have a  response to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Sor ry,  I  am los ing  –  sor ry,  I  am los ing  you a  

b i t  here .   Sor ry,  now I  hear  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr  …[ in tervenes]  10 

MS MYENI :    I  can  hear  you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Ms Hofmeyr  says the  d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  

the  response tha t  you have g iven  to  her  quest ion  is  tha t  

th is  was not  a  case where  the  board  was g iven any  

submiss ion  in  o rder  fo r  the  board  to  make a  dec i s ion .    

She says th i s  was a  case where  the  dec is ion  fe l l  

w i th in  the  de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  o f  the  Act ing  CEO Ms 

Mpshe and she had made a  lawfu l  dec i s ion  bu t  the  board ,  

a f te r  fac ing  some tough quest ions in  par l iament  on  the  2  

September  came back and then dec ided to  over tu rn  the  20 

Act ing  CEO’s  dec is ion .   Ms Hofmeyr,  d id  I  pu t  i t  cor rec t l y?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    A lmost  verbat im ,  Cha i r,  so  thank you so  

much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  tha t  i s  what  she is  say ing .   So 

she says what  do  you say to  tha t?  
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MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  then  may I  no t  say  anyth ing  

un less  I  incr im inate  myse l f  because once someth ing  is  in  

par l iament ,  Cha i r,  once someth ing  is  in  par l iament  i t  

a t t rac ts  the  board ’s  a t ten t ion .   So tha t  i s  why then ,  Cha i r,  

nobody was tak ing  away anybody ’s  de legat ions o f  au thor i t y  

bu t  i t  was be ing  asked in  pa r l iament ,  as  Ms Hofmeyr  was  

say ing .   So,  Cha i r,  I  invoke my  pr iv i lege o f  no t  say ing  

anyth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  wou ld  you  say …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    So  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  wou ld  you say to  somebody who 

says you and your  co l leagues on the  board  ought  to  have,  

a f te r  ge t t ing  quest ions in  par l iament  about  th is  i ssue,  

ought  to  have invest iga ted  i t  and  then g i ven answers  to  

par l iament  maybe la te r  on  because the  dec is ion  tha t  had 

been made was a  lawfu l  dec is ion  made by  somebody who 

was ac t ing  w i th in  her  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y?    

What  wou ld  you say to  somebody  who say maybe 

you were  caught  o f f  guard  by  the  quest ions tha t  you were  

asked in  par l iament ,  as  board  members ,  bu t  then you 20 

shou ld  have invest iga ted  and then maybe  subsequent ly  

went  back to  the  board  and say th i s  dec i s ion  was taken by  

the  Act ing  CEO,  she was ac t ing  w i th in  her  de legated  

author i t y,  maybe as  the  board  we do not  agree w i th  i t  but  

she made a  dec is ion ,  i t  was a  lawfu l  dec is ion ,  we  w i l l  no t  
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in te r fe re?    What  do  you say to  somebody who might  pu t  

tha t  p ropos i t ion  to  you?  

MS MYENI :    I  w i l l  no t  make any comments ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I f  Ms Myen i  has re fused to  answer  tha t  

quest ion  on  the  bas is  tha t  she i s  invok ing  her  p r iv i lege 

aga ins t  se l f - incr im inat ion ,  Cha i r,  we submi t  tha t  tha t  i s  an 

abuse o f  the  pr iv i lege.    

Ms Myen i  has g i ven us  a lmost  twenty  m inutes  o f  an  

account  o f  th i s  mat te r.   A t  th is  po in t  she is  seek ing  to  10 

invoke the  pr iv i lege to  avo id  answer ing  d i f f i cu l t  quest ions.   

Those w i l l  be  our  submiss ions in  due course .   Do you want  

to  respond to  tha t ,  Ms Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    Aga in ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  no t  accura te  tha t  i t  was  

twenty  m inutes ,  tha t  i s  the  s ta r t ing  po in t ,  Cha i rperson.   I  

am s i t t ing  here ,  I  am watch ing  m inute  by  m inute  on  the  

iPad he re  and i t  i s  no t  fa i r  to  say I  have g iven a  twenty  

m inutes  response to  the  quest ion  or  I  do  no t  know the  

comment  tha t  you have descr ibed,  i t  was not  twenty  

m inutes .   Cer ta in l y,  Cha i r,  no t .  20 

 Second ly,  Cha i rperson,  I  sa id  I  am mak ing  a  broad  

account  o f  submiss ions tha t  ge ts  made.   I  d id  no t  say  LSG 

was not  w i th in  t he  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  o f  Ms  Mpshe.   

And second ly,  as  the  Act ing  CEO.    

And th i rd ly,  Cha i r,  I  cannot  answer  be fore  you today  
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to  say  what  were  the  s teps tha t  were  fo l lowed then  in  the  

process o f  cance l l ing  the  LSG tender.   I  do  no t  have tha t  

in fo rmat ion ,  Cha i r,  un less  maybe  I  can go back  to  my 

documents .   Before  go ing  back to  the  documents ,  I  wou ld  

want  to  go  back to  the  record ing  o f  the  par l iament  about  

the  th ings tha t  were  ra ised.    So,  Cha i r,  even now I  have 

jus t  spoken fo r  one minute .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  you have g i ven a  vers ion  on  

th is .   You gave i t  a  few moments  ago.   You sa id  tha t  you r  10 

dec is ion  to  reverse  the  dec i s ion  o f  the  Act ing  CEO was  

based on the  fac t  tha t  you were  concerned tha t  i t  wou ld  

“k i l l  the  ch i ld ”  and you assoc ia te  the  ch i ld  be ing  A i r  Chefs .    

 Ms Myen i ,  the  ev idence –  a t  leas t  the  submiss ion 

tha t  ac t ing  CEO Ms Mpshe p laced  before  the  board  showed 

tha t  the  impact  o f  th is  cont rac t  on  A i r  Chefs  revenue was  

less  than 4 .3%.   How cou ld  you poss ib ly  dec ide  to  over ru le  

a  lawfu l  dec is ion  i f  the  impact  was on ly  go ing  to  be  less  

than 4 .3% of  revenue on the  bas i s  tha t  i t  was go ing  to  k i l l  

the  organ isa t ion?  20 

MS MYENI :    Cha i r,  the  re ference  tha t  i s  made was fo r  me 

to  exp la in  to  you ,  Cha i rperson,  in  b road te rms and now I  

am be ing  asked about  a  fu r ther  quest ion  wh ich  I  am go ing  

to  happ i ly  invoke my pr iv i lege to  say I  p re fer  no t  to  

respond to  th is  quest ion ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  Ms Myen i ,  you remember  th is  

morn ing  I  sa id  you must  make an  e lec t ion  –  and I  th ink  I  

repeated dur ing  the  day –  each t ime a  quest ion  is  pu t  to  

you whether  you  are  go ing  to  invoke your  p r iv i lege to  

re fuse to  answer  or  whethe r  you a re  go ing  to  answer  and I  

sa id  i f  you  a re  go ing  to  answer,  you know,  cannot  la te r  on  

say you are  revok ing  –  you are  invok ing  the  pr i v i lege.    

Now when you in  response to  a  cer ta in  quest ion  you 

have –  there  are  some th ings tha t  you say or  you  have a 

lo t  to  say bu t  when you are  be ing  cha l lenged on your  10 

answer  you then invoke your  p r iv i l ege and say you  pre fer  

no t  to  answer  because you do not  want  to  inc r im inate  

yourse l f ,  i t  w i l l  come across as  i f  you  are  qu i te  happy to  

g ive  an  answer  as  long as  you are  no t  be ing  cha l lenged on 

i t  o r  when you th ink  the  quest ion  is  easy,  you answer,  bu t  

the  moment  quest ions become d i f f i cu l t ,  you  then  invoke 

your  p r iv i lege.   That  i s  how i t  w i l l  come across.   So I  jus t  

ment ion  tha t  so  tha t  you a re  aware .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms 

Hofmeyr?  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   The o the r  dec i s ion  

tha t  the  board  took a t  tha t  meet ing  o f  the  28  September  

2015 when you dec ided to  cance l  the  award  to  LSG Sky  

Chefs  and g ive  the  cont rac t  to  A i r  Chefs  was to  reduce the  

Act ing  CEO’s  l im i t  on  her  de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  f rom a  
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100 mi l l ion  to  50  m i l l ion .   Was tha t  an  ac t  o f  re t r ibu t ion  

aga ins t  Act ing  CEO Ms Mpshe  fo r  hav ing  taken th is  

dec is ion  tha t  you d id  no t  l i ke  on  LSG Sky Chefs?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i r,  may I  invoke the  

pr iv i lege,  Cha i rpe rson,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  we w i l l  a rgue in  due course  tha t  

Ms Myen i  i s  no t  abus ing  the  p r i v i lege fo r  the  reasons I  

have g iven prev ious ly.   Ms Myen i ,  in  conc lus ion ,  Cha i r,  

sub jec t  to  your  quest ions,  bu t  le t  me conc lude and then,  o f  

course ,  i f  there  are  o ther  aspects  now doubt  you w i l l  10 

address them,  w i th  respect .    

Ms Myen i ,  the  lega l  team o f  the  Commiss ion  is  

l i ke ly  to  submi t  in  due course  what  I  am go ing  to  se t  ou t  

fo r  you now as hav ing  emerged f rom the  ev idence tha t  you 

have g iven over  the  las t  two days and a l l  o f  the  o ther  

ev idence tha t  has been presented  to  the  Commiss ion  and I  

do  so  so  tha t  you have an oppor tun i ty  to  answer  or  

respond to  what  I  am put t ing  to  you now.  

So,  Ms Myen i ,  the  l i ke l y  submiss ions o f  the  lega l  

team in  due course  to  th is  Commiss ion  w i l l  be  tha t  you 20 

knowing ly  m isrepresented to  the  Min is te r  o f  the  

Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses i n  2013 tha t  the  board  o f  

SAA had reso lved to  change the  Pembroke t ransact ion  in  

c i rcumstances where  you knew tha t  they had not  done so  

and tha t  m isrep resenta t ion  cost  SAA in  the  order  o f  R800 
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m i l l i on .   Do you have a  response to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  have a  response,  Cha i rperson,  so  

tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  rece ived R2 

mi l l ion  tha t  o r ig ina l l y  came out  o f  the  Free  S ta te 

Government ’s  co f fe rs ,  i t  was  rou ted  th rough VNA 

Consu l t ing ,  when f rom VNA Consu l t ing  to  your  son ’s  

company,  Premie r  A t t rac t ion ,  went  f rom Premier  A t t rac t ion  

to  Mr  X ’s  company and i f  i t  were  to  be  found  by  th is  

Commiss ion  tha t  tha t  R2 mi l l ion  const i tu tes  the  p roceeds 10 

o f  c r ime,  do  you  agree tha t  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  

shou ld  have to  pay tha t  money back to  the  Nat iona l  

Revenue Fund?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  we w i l l  a rgue in  due  course  

tha t  you se t  up  meet ings w i th  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma 

so tha t  those seek ing  to  in f luence the  Pres ident  wou ld  

have an oppor tun i ty  to  do  so .   Do you have a  response to  

tha t?  20 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  i t  w i l l  be  argued  in  due  

course ,  rece ived benef i t s  f rom BOSASA inc lud ing  secur i t y  

upgrades va lued a t  jus t  less  than ha l f  a  m i l l i on  rand,  t rave l  
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and accommodat ion  benef i t s  jus t  in  excess o f  R100 000  

and cash.   Do you have a  response to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  have a  response,  Cha i rpe rson,  may I  

invoke the  pr iv i lege o f  no t  inc r im inat ing  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You handed over  conf ident ia l  po l i ce  and 

NPA in fo rmat ion  to  Mr  Agr izz i  on  the  23  September  2015 in  

the  morn ing  a t  the  Shera ton  Hote l .   Do you  have a  

response?  

MS MYENI :    I  thought  we had –  oh  sor ry,  these are  

conc lus i ve  remarks .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  indeed.  

MS MYENI :    Okay.   I  s tand by  the  answer  tha t  I  gave,  

Cha i rperson,  and  I  wou ld  ra ther  no t  respond so  tha t  I  do 

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The submiss ion  w i l l  be  tha t  you 

managed to  de lay  and undermine the  execut ion  o f  a  search  

and se i zure  war ran t  a t  you r  home in  October  o f  2019.   Do  

you have a  response to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  to  the 

quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You ar ranged fo r  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  

Agency to  conduct  an  un lawfu l  ve t t ing  opera t ion  a t  SAA of  

managers  and the i r  suppor t  s ta f f .   Do you d i spute  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    You t r ied  to  use the  ou tcome o f  tha t  

opera t ion  to  remove a  member  o f  the  f inance depar tment  o r  

move he r  to  another  depar tment .   Do you d ispute  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You used fa lse  wh is t le  b lower  repor t s  to  

s ta r t  invest iga t ions aga ins t  managers  whom you wanted to  

remove.   Do you d ispute  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I   

incr im inate  myse l f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You crea ted  a  c l imate  o f  fear  and 

in t im ida t ion  wh i le  you served as  the  Cha i rperson  o f  the  

Board  o f  SAA.   Do you d ispute  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I   

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You bu l l ied  Dr  Dahwa,  the  head o f  

p rocu rement  when he re fused to  agree to  your  un lawfu l  

30% set  as ide  po l i cy.   Do you d ispu te  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  I  do  

no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Your  dec is ions a t  SAA dur ing  your  

tenure  as  Cha i rperson took no  account  o f  the  cons iderab le  

negat ive  consequences fo r  the  f i scus whenever  you had to  

approach the  Min is te r  o f  F inance  both  in  re la t ion  to  the  

A i rbus swap t ransact ion  and the  Pembroke t ransact ion .  
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MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I   

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R50 mi l l ion  tha t  wou ld  have const i tu ted  

the  cance l la t ion  fee  to  BNP Cap i ta l  was approved by  you in  

c i rcumstances where  the re  was no jus t i f iab le  bas i s  fo r  tha t  

cance l la t ion  fee  to  be  pa id .   Do you d ispute  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I   

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  tha t  b r ings me to  the  conc lus ion  

o f  my quest ions.   I  th ink  I  went  one minute  or  two over  the  10 

a l loca ted  hour.   Cha i r,  i t  has  done fu l l  c i rc le  because we  

ended w i th  the  BNP Cap i ta l  i ssue,  tha t  i s  the  issue tha t  we 

s tar ted ,  the  av ia t i on  ev idence was about  18  months  ago.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  thank you.   We are  go ing  to  

s top  here  fo r  the  day.   One th ing  tha t  does remain  is  tha t  

Ms Myen i  s t i l l  needs to  be  quest ioned w i th  regard  to  Eskom 

so ar rangements  w i l l  have to  be  made in  due course  about  

tha t .   So tha t  i s  the  one po in t .  20 

 The o ther  po in t  i s  the  one tha t  I  ment ioned ea r l ie r,  

namely  tha t  there  is  no  t ime now and i t  i s  no t  conven ien t  

rea l l y  to  look  a t  Ms Myen i ’s  en t i re  ev idence and see wh ich 

quest ions she may have jus t i f iab ly  invoked the  p r iv i lege 

not  to  incr im inate  herse l f  and wh ich  ones -  in  respect  o f  
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wh ich  ones she  might  no t  have  done so  jus t i f iab ly  o r  

cor rec t l y.    

I  th ink  the  lega l  team wou ld  want  to  have a  look a t  

the  t ranscr ip t  and they wou ld  take  a  v iew one way o r  

another  in  regard  to  whether  there  is  a  need to  do  anyth ing  

about  any o f  the  answers  or  quest ions or  invocat ion  o f  the  

pr iv i lege.    I  w i l l  p robab ly  w i l l  a lso  have a  look and see and  

obv ious ly  i f  there  i s  someth ing  tha t  needs to  be  ra i sed w i th  

Ms Myen i ’s  lega l  team i t  w i l l  be  ra ised and i f  there  i s  

no th ing  then there  w i l l  be  no th ing .   So tha t  i s  another  po in t  10 

tha t  I  wanted to  ment ion .  

But  apar t  f rom tha t ,  be fore  we ad jou rn ,  I  jus t  

thought  tha t  I  need to  say someth ing  or  to  d raw the  

a t ten t ion  o f  the  pub l i c  to  some –  to  say someth ing  about  

what  has happened over  the  past  th ree  days because i t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  has no t  happened before  and i t  i s  impor tan t  

tha t  the  pub l i c  a lso  unders tands some o f  the  th ings tha t  

happen and why they happen.  

When a  Commiss ion ,  such as  th is  one,  i s  

es tab l i shed,  i t  i s  es tab l i shed p r imar i l y  to  es tab l i sh  fac ts  in  20 

regard  to  cer ta in  mat te rs  tha t  fa l l  w i th in  i t s  te rms o f  

re fe rence,  mat te rs  tha t  a re  v iewed  as  very  impor tan t  and in  

the  pub l i c  in te res t  and order  to  car ry  ou t  i t s  mandate ,  a  

Commiss ion  such  as  th is  wou ld  conduct  invest iga t ions and,  

when necessary,  have pub l i c  hear ings such as  the  ones  
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th is  Commiss ion  has had s ince  August  2018 and i t  re l ies  

la rge ly  on  the  coopera t ion  o f  peop le  who have knowledge 

in  regard  to  the  mat te rs  tha t  fa l l  w i th in  i t s  te rms o f  

re fe rence in  o rde r  fo r  i t  to  car ry  ou t  i t s  funct ion  p roper ly.  

Now p r io r  to  Wednesday th i s  week then where  

about  two or  so  w i tnesses who had invoked the  p r iv i lege 

not  to  incr im inate  themse lves and there fo re  sought  no t  to  

answer  cer ta in  quest ions.   But ,  fo r  the  most  pa r t ,  they  

answered most  o f  the  quest ions tha t  they were  asked.   So  

Ms Myen i  was the  f i rs t  w i tness who sought  no t  to  answer  10 

most  o f  the  quest ions tha t  were  asked tha t  were  pu t  to  her  

and answered on ly  a  few tha t  she fe l t  she cou ld  answer  

w i thout  the  r i sk  o f  her  incr im inat ing  herse l f .  

Now when the  regu la t ions app l i cab le  to  th is  

Commiss ion  were  made,  and they were  made by  the  

Pres ident  a t  the  t ime tha t  the  Commiss ion  was es tab l i shed,  

they have s ince  been amended on two or  th ree  occas ions,  

they inc luded a  prov is ion  in  Regu la t ion  8 .2  to  the  e f fec t  

tha t  a  w i tness who g ives ev idence  before  the  Commiss ion ,  

tha t  ev idence re la tes  to  mat te rs  be fore  the  –  fa l l  w i th in  the  20 

te rms o f  re fe rence o f  the  Commiss ion ,  tha t  tha t  ev idence 

wou ld  be  inadmiss ib le  in  subsequent  c r im ina l  p roceed ings  

aga ins t  tha t  w i tness.   That ,  there fo re ,  meant  tha t  i f  

somebody gave ev idence befo re  the  Commiss ion  and,  in  

do ing  so ,  inc r im inated h imse l f  o r  herse l f ,  tha t  ev idence  
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wou ld  no t  be  used in  subsequent  c r im ina l  p roceed ings  

aga ins t  tha t  pe rson and there fore  tha t  person cou ld  fee l  

f ree  to  be  as  he lp fu l  to  the  Commiss ion  as  poss ib le  

knowing tha t  tha t  ev idence wou ld  no t  be  used aga ins t  h im  

or  he r.  

But  the  Commiss ions Act  8  o f  1947  is  the  leg is la t ion  

tha t  governs th is  Commiss ion  toge ther  w i th  the  regu la t ions  

and in  Sect ion  3 (4)  i t  p rov ides as  fo l lows:  

“Any person who has been summoned to  a t tend any  

s i t t ing  o f  a  Commiss ion  as  a  w i tness or  who has 10 

g iven ev idence  before  a  commiss ion  sha l l  be  

en t i t led  to  the  same wi tness fees f rom pub l ic  funds 

as  i f  he  had been  summoned to  a t tend or  had g iven  

ev idence a t  a  c r im ina l  t r ia l  in  a  Super io r  Cour t  he ld  

a t  the  p lace o f  such a  s i t t ing  and…” 

And th is  i s  the  re levant  pa r t :  

“…in  connect ion  w i th  the  g iv ing  o f  any ev idence or  

the  product ion  o f  any book  or  document  be fore  a  

commiss ion ,  the  law re la t ing  to  p r iv i lege as  

app l i cab le  to  a  w i tness g iv ing  ev idence o r  20 

summoned to  produce a  book or  document  in  such a  

cour t  sha l l  app ly. ”  

Now th is  la t te r  par t  o f  Sect ion  3(4)  i s  unders tood to  inc lude  

the  pr iv i lege aga ins t  se l f - incr im inat ion  and i t  i s  th is  

p rov is ion  tha t  enab les  a  w i tness who appears  be fore  th is  
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Commiss ion  to  invoke the  pr iv i lege aga ins t  se l f -

incr im inat ion  and  there fore  to  re fuse to  answer  quest ions  

tha t  may tend to  expose her  to  c r im ina l  p rosecut ion .  

 As  Ms Hofmeyr  i nd ica ted  when th is  i ssue was  dea l t  

w i th ,  e i ther  yes terday or  on  –  I  th ink  on  Wednesday,  the  

case law re la t ing  to  th is  i s  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  the  cour t ,  o r  in  

th is  case the  Commiss ion ,  tha t  i s  the  Cha i rperson ,  needs  

to  g ive  a  w i tness la t i tude i f  he  or  she c la ims tha t  she  

be l ieves tha t  i f  she  answers  a  cer ta in  quest ion  she may 

incr im inate  herse l f .    10 

As Ms Hofmeyr  ind ica ted ,  the  case law does not  

mean tha t  whenever  a  w i tness invokes the  pr i v i lege i t  

means necessar i l y  tha t  she cannot  be  compel led  to  answer  

a  quest ion  tha t  he  or  she fee l s  she may incr im inate  herse l f  

i f  she  answers  bu t  i t  wou ld  seem on the  case law tha t  the  

cour t ,  o r  in  th is  case the  Commiss ion  and the  Cha i rperson,  

i s  requ i red  to  g ive  qu i te  some la t i tude to  the  w i tness when 

she does so .    

Th is  i s  desp i te  t he  fac t  tha t  Regu la t ion  8 .2  o f  the  

Regu la t ions o f  the  Commiss ion  do  say tha t  i f  a  w i tness  20 

g ives  ev idence before  the  Commiss ion ,  her  ev idence  

cannot  be  used aga ins t  her  in  subsequent  c r im ina l  t r ia ls .  

 The fac t  tha t  Sec t ion  3(4)  o f  the  Commiss ions Act  is  

there  s imp ly  means tha t  a  w i tness  is  ab le  to  invoke i t  and  

the  Commiss ion  cannot  ac t  i l l ega l l y,  the  Commiss ion  has to  
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ope ra te  w i th in  the  ambi t  o f  the  law and tha t  inc ludes tha t  

p rov is ion .    

There fore ,  the  Commiss ion  must  respect  tha t  

p rov is ion  bu t  the  Regu la t ion  or  Regu la t ion  8 .2  enab les ,  i t  

seems,  any w i tness who wants  t o  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion  

and wants  to  pu t  h is  o r  he r  s ide  o f  the  s to ry,  to  do  so ,  i t  

enab les  h im o r  her  to  do  so  knowing tha t  h is  o r  he r  

ev idence w i l l  no t  be  used in  any subsequent  c r im ina l  t r ia ls  

aga ins t  h im or  he r.  

 So the  Commiss ion  has to  opera te  w i th in  th is  –  and 10 

I  though i t  i s  impor tan t  to  ment ion  th is  and re fe r  to  the  

Sect ion  fo r  the  educat ion  o f  the  pub l i c  as  we l l .  

 The prov i s ion  does not  mean tha t  the  Commiss ion  

cannot  compel  a  w i tness to  answer  cer ta in  quest ions bu t  i t  

can  on ly  do  so  i f  the  invocat ion  o f  the  pr iv i lege  is  no t  

jus t i f ied  and i t  wou ld  see f rom the  case law tha t  i t  wou ld  

no t  be  jus t i f ied  i f  the  apprehens ion  o f  the  w i tness tha t  she 

may inc r im inate  or  he  may incr im inate  h imse l f  o r  herse l f  i f  

she  or  he  answers  a  ce r ta in  quest ion  is  no t  based on  

reasonab le  grounds but  i t  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  the  Commiss ion  20 

needs to  dea l  w i th  p roper l y  and care fu l l y  hav ing  regard  to  

i t s  ob l iga t ion  to  opera te  w i th in  the  ambi t  o f  the  law and  

hav ing  regard  to  the  ob l iga t ion  to  s t r i ke  a  ba lance between 

the  r igh ts  o f  w i tnesses as  we l l  as  i t s  own mandate .    

I  thought  tha t  I  shou ld  jus t  make those remarks  so  
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tha t  the  pub l i c  can have some unders tand ing  o f  the  lega l  

f ramework  sur round ing  what  has happened s ince  

Wednesday because i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  had not  happened  

before  in  the  pas t  two and a  ha l f  years  tha t  –  dur ing  wh ich 

the  Commiss ion  has been hear ing  ev idence.   Ms Ho fmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  9 .30  

tomorrow morn ing ,  i s  tha t  r igh t ,  when we w i l l  be  

assembl ing?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  w i l l  be  9 .30 .   I s  the re  anyth ing  

you want  to  say a r is ing?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay.   So tomorrow,  yes,  we 

w i l l  be  –  we w i l l  have a  sess ion  here  to  comple te  Ms  

Kwinana ’s  ev idence.   We wi l l  s ta r t  a t  ha l f  past  n ine .   Mr  

Buthe lez i ,  i s  there  anyth ing  you want  to  say  ar is ing  

f rom…? 

MR BUTHELEZI :    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Noth ing .   

MR BUTHELEZI :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  i t  remains  fo r  me to  thank  you,  Mr 20 

Buthe lez i  and your  ins t ruc t ing  a t to rney or  your  co l league  

fo r  a l l  the  coopera t ion  and to  t hank Ms Myen i  and  Ms  

Hofmeyr.    

We wi l l  ad journ  and,  as  I  sa id ,  w i th  regard  to  Ms  

Myen i ,  there  is  s t i l l  the  Eskom par t  and there  may  s t i l l  be 
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someth ing  e lse  ar is ing  ou t  o f  the  invocat ion  o f  the  pr iv i lege  

but  tha t  w i l l  be  dea l t  w i th  th rough the  r igh t  channe ls  in  due 

course .   We are  go ing  to  then ad jou rn  fo r  the  day.   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 7  NOVEMBER 2020  


